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The Group is the leading medical group in China specializing in providing
hair-related healthcare services, and offers one-stop hair-related
healthcare services covering hair transplant, medical hair care, and routine
hair restoration and other ancillary services.

Through decades of dedication and commitment to China’s hair- related
healthcare industry, the Group has made Yonghe Hair Transplant (&R
1E22) a well-known and highly trusted brand among its peers, and has
promoted many major developments and advancements in the industry.
After acquiring the mainland China business of Svenson and successfully
establishing a Svenson Medical Hair Care Center (2 EHEEEfEEAH D)
in each of its clinics in mainland China under the “shop-in-shop” and
“stand-alone shop” models, the Group further expanded its footprint
outside the mainland China by acquiring the Hong Kong business of
Nu/Hart Hair (FB##1E22), a renowned hair transplant service provider
originated from the U.S.. In addition, through cooperation with prestigious
universities such as Sun Yat-sen University in the PRC, the Group is blazing
a trail towards collaborative research and development with academia
and showing the way forward for the hair-related healthcare service
industry. By breaking those new grounds, the Group is enhancing our
core competitiveness and further strengthening our leading position in the
industry.

The Group has built a one-stop shop for medical hair care services to
meet the medical demands of a wide range of patients. Leveraging a
standardized and highly scalable business model, the Group has achieved
industry-leading operational capabilities, enabling us to effectively control
costs, boost operational efficiency and improve profitability. The Group
continues to improve our diagnostic, therapeutic, and research and
development capabilities by collaborating with experts from Class IlIA
hospitals and renowned academic institutions. In addition, in order to
continuously improve medical service for patients, to stay ahead of the
technological curve and to propel business development, the Group has
always been actively promoting and adopting new technologies in its
business, including data usage and analysis, intelligent services and online
services. The Group believes that such strengths have reinforced our
industry-leading position and will sustain our growth momentum into the
future.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHANG Yu (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. ZHANG Hui
Ms. HAN Zhimei (appointed on June 28, 2022)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. GENG Jiaqi
Mr. ZHAI Feng (resigned on June 28, 2022)
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Mr. LI Xiaopei

Ms. WANG Jiping (resigned on June 28, 2022)
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Mr. CHAN Peng Kuan (Chairman)
Mr. GENG Jiaqi
Mr. LI Xiaopei
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Mr. CHAN Peng Kuan (Chairman)
Mr. ZHANG Yu
Mr. LI Xiaopei

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. ZHANG Yu (Chairman)

Mr. CHAN Peng Kuan

Mr. LI Xiaopei (appointed on June 28, 2022)
Ms. WANG Jiping (resigned on June 28, 2022)

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. HAN Zhimei
Ms. KAM Mei Ha Wendy (appointed on August 29, 2022)
Ms. LEUNG Ching Ching (resigned on August 29, 2022)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. ZHANG Yu
Ms. KAM Mei Ha Wendy (appointed on August 29, 2022)
Ms. LEUNG Ching Ching (resigned on August 29, 2022)
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BZ12A31B1LEE
Year ended December 31,

2022%F 20214 20204 20194 20184
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
ARBTT ARBTT ARETIT ARBTT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ReExEE Operating results
RERFPAHBRA Revenue from contracts with
customers 1,412,791 2,168,580 1,638,297 1,224,477 934,326
EH Gross profit 872,579 1,579,976 1,221,630 889,098 702,119
P8R Al (E538), FIE (Loss)/profit before income tax ~ (109,466) 210,276 230,914 71,523 111,289
FN (E18),/ FE (Loss)/profit for the year (85,858) 120,188 163,332 35,624 53,500
BEFIED Profitability
ER= Gross profit margin 61.8% 72.9% 74.6% 72.6% 75.2%
HEF = Net profit margin -6.1% 5.5% 10.0% 2.9% 5.7%
R12A31H
As at December 31,
20224 20214 20204 20194 20184
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
AR%STT AREBTT AR®TRT ARBTT ARETET
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
B AR Financial Position
BERE Total assets 2,930,368 3,199,303 1,594,356 931,213 734,445
v Eatk) Total equity 1,585,310 1,698,345 406,058 239,120 203,496
afELsE Total liabilities 1,345,058 1,500,958 1,188,298 692,093 530,949
ReERBELFEY Cash and cash equivalents 565,093 1,566,192 292,856 89,789 68,476
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Dear Shareholders,

2022 was an extremely important and challenging year in the history
of Yonghe Medical Group. The continued volatility of the COVID-19
pandemic and the turbulent international environment have imposed
unprecedented pressure on our development. In the past year, always
holding a strong belief, Yonghe Medical endeavored to maintain
development based on our strength and experience accumulated over
years.

During the Reporting Period, the suspension or restriction of offline
service scenarios brought a significant decline in the Group's
customer flow. At our nationwide shops, the total patient-visiting
volume dropped by approximately 40%, and our 59 shops suspended/
restricted operations due to relevant anti-pandemic measures, with
an average suspension of 38 days. This had a direct impact on our
results. For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Group realized an
operating revenue of RMB1,412.8 million, gross profit of RMB872.6
million, and net loss attributable to the parent company of RMB85.9
million.

Despite have experienced inevitable decline in revenue and losses for
the first time due to multiple factors, the Group has achieved some
success:

We always believe that crisis and opportunity coexist. In recent years,
market awareness of the hair industry has continued to increase,
the age of patients served is trending younger and the proportion
of female consumers is increasing year on year. Responding to the
market cycle, we expect to regain the momentum for a rapid growth
when the market recovers by seizing opportunities, bucking the trend
and accelerating our multi-brand business strategy. For the year ended
December 31, 2022, we operated 60 Yonghe Hair Transplant clinics,
3 Yonghe Fa Zhi Chu female hair transplant clinics and 9 independent
Svenson shops in 60 cities across China, ranking first in the industry
in terms of total revenue, market share and the number of registered
doctors and patients who have visited.

In addition, by seizing the opportunity and developing our internal
strength, we have actively adjusted our development strategies to
enhance our diagnostic and treatment capabilities. On the diagnostic
end, we have fully implemented a series of initiatives such as doctor
consultation, collaborative treatment with public hospitals and
doctor grading treatment, in order to continuously improve the
professionalism of our medical services and strengthen the capacity of
our medical and nursing teams, which aims to provide patients with
more professional and safer hair medical services. On the treatment
end, we have enhanced the quality and accuracy of our products and
treatment items, developed personalized patient treatment plans and
launched programs to improve doctors’ ability. During the Reporting
Period, despite the pressure from the market environment, the price
per customer transaction of our hair transplant business remained
stable at RMB26,251, which was basically the same compared
with same period last year; the repurchase rate of our medical care
business remained high at 28.2%, and the average price per customer
transaction increased to RMB5,731.
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EXPANDING THE BUSINESS WITH A FINGER
ON THE PULSE OF THE MARKET

“Actions count, and actions always speak louder than words.” In the
past year, despite the challenging external environment, we continued
to aggressively expand our business against the pressure. In the
coming years, the Group will maintain the planned pace to expand
new shop. We will increase the breadth and depth of the Group's
nationwide medical service network to increase our market share and
corporate competitiveness through intensifying our presence at first-
tier and new first-tier cities and expanding into sinking markets. In
addition, we will reach female consumers more precisely by setting
up Fa Zhi Chu hair transplant clinics in specific regions. It is expected
that by the end of 2023, the number of hair transplant medical clinics
under the Group will be close to 85.

Meanwhile, the Group will continue to promote the expansion of our
medical hair care business and the upgrading of our products and
services. Relying on the first-mover advantage and scale advantage,
we will build a brand portfolio across the full industry chain, with
“Yonghe Hair Transplant” at its core, and supplemented with medical
hair care brand “Svenson”, female aesthetic brand “Fa Zhi Chu”,
and medical wigs brands “Hafada”. In addition, we actively explore
the new model of comprehensive hair hospital to transform from hair
transplantation medical clinics to comprehensive hair hospitals in key
cities. Leading the industry in achieving comprehensive and in-depth
coverage of the hair medical services market, we are fully grasping
the development opportunities in this growth track of hair medical
services.

EEMS

Hair-related healthcare market

ZEH D

Clinics

HE

Hair transplant service

k3

Medical hair care services

|
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SEEKING EXCELLENCE AND INSIST ON
TRUSTWORTHY MEDICAL SERVICES

Yonghe Medical has always pursued excellence and firmly believes
that talent is the core competitiveness of enterprises. Guided by the
concept that “outstanding hair transplant depends on professional
physicians”, during the Reporting Period, the Group continuously
strengthened the training of and investment in the medical team
and improved the team’s overall competence and medical service
capability, so as to provide better services for patients. In February
2022, we launched the hierarchical diagnosis and treatment system
that takes physicians’ value as the core, and constructed a complete
closed-loop of service and management. In June, the reception and
diagnosis by physicians was realized at all of our medical institutions
in Mainland China, making us the first in the industry to complete
the integration reform of reception and diagnosis. In September,
the “Physician Improvement Program” based on the “Good Doctor”
system was launched to further improve the professionalism and
service efficiency of doctors and create a highly-recognizable
and professional hierarchical medical team. As of December 31,
2022, Yonghe Medical has owned a team of 1,341 professional
medical workers, including 294 doctors. In addition, we further
strengthen the cooperation with universities and scientific research
institutions, promote industrial-academic-research combination, and
provide constant technology and talent support for the sustainable
development of the group.

Meanwhile, while adhering to the people-oriented and trustworthy
medical concept, we are always directed by patients’ needs and
put their health and satisfaction as the top priority. We continue to
improve the service process, deeply understand the needs of patients,
and provide them with personalized and precise medical solutions,
thus making efforts to improve their satisfaction. In unremitting
pursuit of excellence, we continuously improve our trustworthy
medical concept and service quality to become a benchmark of
premium medical service in the hair industry.
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LEADING THE DIGITAL AND INTELLIGENT
TRANSFORMATION OF THE INDUSTRY WITH
TECHNOLOGICAL INNOVATION

Challenged by the pandemic and economic fluctuation, we pay
continual attention to the development trend of the industry, beef up
the investment in technological innovation, and promote the industry
to advance to a higher peak while boosting the digital and intelligent
development of Yonghe Medical. Our main measures include:

First, deepen the cooperation among the industry, universities, and
research institutions, and set up a biomedical research platform. We
keep investing funds and resources and reach in-depth cooperation
with top-notch academic and research institutions in China. Through
cutting-edge research on stem cell technology and hair follicle cloning,
we seek new technologies and methodologies in hair therapies, thus
laying a foundation for the innovative development of the industry.
We believe, by studying the depth of biomedicine, we will provide
more patients with suitable and effective therapies while injecting
new vigor into the sustainable development of the industry.

Second, strengthen digital construction and seek intelligent
development of the medical industry. We continue to promote the
digital construction of medical services and connect patients’ data
with diagnosis and treatment information by using big data, cloud
computing, and other cutting-edge technologies, so as to improve
the efficiency and quality of diagnosis and treatment; realize seamless
communication between patients and physicians by constructing a
digital online medical platform to improve the visiting experiences
of patients. Meanwhile, we study and apply artificial intelligence
technologies to promote the intelligent upgrade of hair-related
medical services. For example, the computer vision technology is
used to help physicians take hair pictures for area measurement,
reduce errors in manual calculation, and improve treatment efficacy.
In addition, we continuously optimize hair transplantation equipment
by making them wiser, so as to improve the surgical experience for
patients.
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CLOSING

Looking ahead, Yonghe Medical will maintain its focus on market
needs and development trends, strive to expand our business scope
and enhance market competitiveness; adhere to the human-centric
service concept and provide patients with premium, safe, and efficient
medical services; make constant exploration and innovation and
promote the digital transformation of the Company, so as to increase
service quality and work efficiency. In this journey forward, we will
keep our faith, make aggressive advancements, and actively shoulder
social responsibility to create greater value for shareholders. Despite
the heavy burden on the shoulder, we still brave the challenge
and buckle down to realize sustainable development and industrial
leadership. On behalf of the management of the Company, | would
like to extend our cordial gratitude to all shareholders, employees,
and partners who have been supporting the development of Yonghe
Medical. We look forward to joining hands with you to create a better
future!

ZHANG YU
Chairman

March 30, 2023

1M
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CORPORATE STRATEGY AND LONG-TERM
BUSINESS MODEL

For the sustainable development of the Group in the future, we have
adopted the following corporate strategies and long-term business
model to adapt to the evolving market environment and enhance
the long-term total returns for Shareholders. Having always been
concerned about customers’ needs, the Group provides regular
training to employees so as to further improve its service experience
and increase customers’ satisfaction. Intensified efforts are made
by the Group to nurture and introduce talents and plan incentive
mechanisms in order to attract and recruit competent professionals
who will make contribution to its development. In addition, the Group
is committed to the technological advancement and innovation of
the healthcare industry through active industry-university-research
cooperation to jointly explore better solutions for hair-related services.
The following management discussion and analysis contains a
discussion and analysis of the Group's performance in 2022, the basis
on which the Group generates and preserves long-term value, and the
strategy for achieving the goals of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

EABTPRELNEFANREEZEE RSN R As the leading medical group in China specializing in providing hair-
BEEE BMBEMR=EE  2EsE % related healthcare services, we offer one-stop hair-related healthcare
HEEANVEMREREY — A EZEER services covering hair transplant, medical hair care, routine hair
FE o BRM—BEE TN EEEERETE - I restoration and other ancillary services. Having focused on the hair-
BETUERSZE | 220 mEXEEDR related healthcare service market, we have built a brand matrix for the
MR ERIEE | DERZEDLME[TEE] full industry chain which is centered on our “Yonghe Medical” (%K
LHEBEERIE 2o | REEBER B2/%%) and comprised of “Yonghe Hair Transplant” (ZEARIEZS) for our
s EE | ZARN S EEE RIEERE o B professional hair transplant service, “Svenson” (%2 2£i#) for our medical
PR EEREREHMRERR - 72019 A hair care service, “Fa Zhi Chu” (22#]) for our female aesthetic hair
[JERE  MERESREERERETYERE transplant service, and “Harvard” (F522%€) for our medical wig products.
Bgeappesth N W 2022 FE A B8 Simultaneously with the provision of hair transplant service, we have
S EFEEEER Y IR T B ERE provided our medical-grade hair health management services in a more
EEREEERG - rofessional way through Svenson Medical Hair Care Centers (5% £
ZE#E () in our hair transplant clinics under the “shop-in-shop”
model since 2019, and through Svenson Medical Hair Care Centers that
have been opened as stand-alone stores since 2022.
HZE2022F12 8318  HPIE2H60 @ As at December 31, 2022, we operated 63 clinics under the brands of
B IREREE E VL HEERE Yonghe Hair Transplant/Fa Zhi Chu Female Hair Transplant in 60 cities
o Eibm - B BN RIIBEE AR nationwide, and nine hair care centers under the brand of Svenson in
FPERBEEMKE  ATERRARBEN TR Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and Shenzhen, making us the largest
EREHIEEREER - hair transplant clinic chain in China in terms of scale and geographical
coverage.
TEEIEZE2022F12 A31 BR MR TE The following table sets forth the distribution of our hair transplant
MO R ERERER Y EBEE T clinics by city tier and the distribution of our stand-alone Svenson stores
EgE as at December 31, 2022:
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E ]
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BZ12A31BLEE
Year ended December 31,

2022%F 20214
EXRB2PDEEME Yonghe/Fa Zhi Chu hair transplant clinics 2022 2021
— BT Tier-one cities 5 4
g New tier-one cities 19 18
— 3 Tier-two cities 27 24
=l Tier-three cities 1 7
BH Hong Kong 1 1
N Subtotal 63 54

2022%F 20214
SEBRBIME Stand-alone Svenson stores 2022 2021
2l Shenzhen 2 /
B Guangzhou 4 /
! Shanghai 2 2
iy Beijing 1 1
it Subtotal 9 3
st Total 72 57
MEE - ETRFEERT O REEGES  KRER Note: Since the list of city rankings varies in different years, the figures set

FHABHBRMBERLE -

forth in this table are based on the list released for the corresponding

periods.
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For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Group had a revenue
of RMB1,412.8 million and a gross profit of RMB872.6 million,
generating a gross profit margin of 61.8%. The following table sets
forth a breakdown of our revenue composition, gross profit and gross
profit margin by service type for the years indicated:

BZNANALEE
Year ended December 31,
20225 20215
2022 2021
'ON | EY kS KA 7 e ks
Gross Gross
Gross profit Gross profit
Revenue profit margin Revenue profit margin
ARBTT ARBTFT AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 %
EZRERS  Hair transplant service 1,030,454 729 642,597 624 1565434 722 1,138,031 727
EEZEERE  Medical hair care service 362,508 25.7 223,976 61.8 582,290 26.8 430,254 739
ity Others 19,829 14 6,006 30.3 20,856 1.0 11,691 56.1
1,412,791 100 872,579 61.8 2,168,580 100 1,579,976 72.9

15



16

EREBEEEAERLT  YONGHE MEDICAL GROUP CO., LTD.

EEE WD

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEXY

HZE2022F 128318 1EFE » RFANEE
EBBABARE1,030.558 7T HAHK
A72.9% - BRI BEERHEE
¥EeEsMEERY - 2022928 - BE
[Z—&HE D ERER NI - K
EIFEEENTEES INES  BMAHEDR
TUBEBEAZUNERER  ISER
EBEEYH ([ EABEZ  MREETE - #2
2022F 12 A3V BEE  BEZRMEEZFi
MEE A AE39,254 A ©

TRBSIFRFERMEEE RGOS
EEBE

Hair Transplant Service

For the year ended December 31, 2022, our revenue from hair
transplant service amounted to RMB1,030.5 million, accounting
for 72.9% of our total revenue. We have always been committed
to providing professional and high-quality hair transplant service
to patients. In February 2022, we launched our physicians’ value-
based pricing mechanism as an embodiment of our original intention
of “more integrity and less sugarcoating” and our philosophy of
“outstanding hair transplant depends on professional physicians”, to
further boost patients’ confidence in our “Yonghe Hair Transplant”
brand. For the year ended December 31, 2022, the number of
patients who underwent our hair transplant surgery was 39,254.

The table below illustrates the key operating data of our hair
transplant service for the years indicated:

RBEZ
Unaudited
BZ12A318LEE
Year ended December 31,

2022F 20214
2022 2021
BEXEEEERBHESE ALY Number of patients who received our hair transplant 39,254 58,464
BEBENFHYEE (ARBIL) Average spending per hair transplant patient (RMB) 26,251 26,643
=R Three levels of services
XL BPRGEHEEAH Number of patients who received our basic-level
services 6,154 53,776
EXEBELARBHEE AR Number of patients who received our premium-level
services 478 4,435
B EZ IRBHEEAH Number of patients who received our “Yongxiang”
(FE=) services 42 253
AR AR (FEERBR) Four levels of services (under our new pricing
mechanism)
BEXEBEERBEHESE AR Number of patients who received services from our
business chiefs 23,169 /
BEXEBRRRBEHESE AR Number of patients who received services from our
business deans 8,394 /
EXEZTERBEHEBE AR Number of patients who received services from our
Yongxiang chiefs 835 /

EREZRERENBEAK

Number of patients who received services from our

Yongxiang deans 182 /
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Medical Hair Care Service

For the year ended December 31, 2022, our revenue from medical
hair care service amounted to RMB362.5 million, accounting for
25.7% of our total revenue. As a pioneer in China’s medical hair care
industry, we have provided professional and customised diagnosis and
treatment services to our patients through Svenson Medical Hair Care
Centers in our hair transplant clinics under the “shop-in-shop” model.
To further boost a broader development of our medical hair care
service, we have provided our medical-grade hair health management
services to our patients in a more convenient and professional
way through our “Svenson Medical Hair Care Centers” that have
been opened as stand-alone stores since 2022. For the year ended
December 31, 2022, the number of patients who received our medical
hair care service was 63,257, and the repurchase rate of our medical
hair care service packages was 28.2%.

The table below illustrates the key operating data of our medical hair
care service for the years indicated:

RIBEZ
Unaudited
BZ12A318LEE
Year ended December 31,

2022%F 20214
2022 2021
BEXREEERBHESE ALY Number of patients who received our medical hair
care service 63,257 105,275
EEEEBEMNALEE Average spending per medical hair care patients
(ARETT) (RMB) 5,731 5,531
B R *Repurchase rate 28.2% 29.0%
* REEBREREERG 20 EE ABBRUR * Calculated by the number of patients who purchased our medical hair

HNBERERERENEABGE

care service more than once, divided by the total number of patients
who purchased our medical hair care service during the period.
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BUSINESS UPDATES
Strengthening operational capabilities

Our leading operational capability enables us to effectively control
our costs and enhance our operational efficiency and profitability.
Our business model is highly scalable, which not only benefits us to
achieve rapid geographical expansion but also promotes efficient
enrichment of our service offerings and service modes. During the
Reporting Period, we focused our efforts on expanding the presence
of Yonghe Hair Transplant clinics into tier-two and tier-three cities,
and started to open stand-alone Fa Zhi Chu Female Hair Transplant
clinics, and extended the store network for stand-alone Svenson
Medical Hair Care Centers in the Guangzhou-Shenzhen region. During
the Reporting Period, we opened i) six Yonghe Hair Transplant clinics;
ii) three Fa Zhi Chu Female Hair Transplant clinics in Hangzhou,
Beijing and Chengdu, respectively; iii) six Svenson centers in Shenzhen
and Guangzhou, respectively. As at December 31, 2022, our 63
hair transplant clinics covered 60 cities in 28 provinces, autonomous
regions, municipalities and special administrative regions across China.

BZ12A31HLEE
Year ended December 31,

2022 20214

2022 2021

BB B Mature-stage clinics 37 30
Rk ED Developing-stage clinics 17 18
3R B Newly-established clinics 9 6
#Et Total 63 54
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Strengthening medical service capabilities

Sincere physicians are rewarded by patients with trust. In February
2022, we introduced a physicians’ value-based hierarchical diagnosis
and treatment system for hair transplant physicians. Unlike the
physicians’ title system adopted in public hospitals, our system is an
integrated, multi-dimensional, stereoscopic and dynamic evaluation
system summing up the characteristics and properties of the hair
transplant industry, with the core of evaluating and grading our
professional hair transplant physicians in a scientific manner from
different perspectives such as academic skills, surgical and clinical
experience and customised design standards. The system is designed
to enable us to establish a clearly-structured and easily identifiable
echelon of professionals, and further improve the education and
training, competition and job promotion systems and career paths for
our physicians, forming a complete service rendering and closed-loop
management.

We have always adhered to our fundamental principle and original
intention of healthcare and implemented the value of integrity
and transparency in healthcare. During the Reporting Period,
closely following the national policy directives and future trends,
we continued to accelerate the promotion and implementation of
the physician consultation system in all clinics, and develop the
“physician-medical assistant collaborative system” under which
physicians and medical assistants collaborate with each other for
delivering quality services to patients, with aims to further lead the
hair transplant industry towards a more regulated, standardised and
refined future, and enhance patients’ experience, recognition and
confidence with hair transplant clinic chains. In June 2022, all of our
clinics operating in Mainland China pioneered in the consultation
integration reform by adopting the physician consultation service.
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Our professional team
b\ 1341,

B

Physicians

294,

In September 2022, the Group launched an upgraded version of the
“Good Physician System”, namely the “Strong Physician Program”.
With a focus on aspects such as strengthening the ability of our
physician team in technology realization, enhancing the capability of
hair-related diseases diagnosis, emphasizing the value of physicians
themselves, and organising academic conferences that cover a broad-
spectrum and multi-level of physicians, the purposes of the program
are to promote integrated training and function sharing between
outpatient physicians and surgeons, enhance the competence and
service efficiency of physicians and establish an easily identifiable
echelon of medical professionals. As at December 31, 2022, Yonghe
Medical had a team of 1,341 medical professionals, 294 of them
were physicians. On this basis, we established the “Hair Transplant
Physician Grading and Evaluation System”, in which four appraisal

indicators and 24 assessment dimensions have been clearly defined to
further improve our treatment efficacy and satisfy the diverse needs
of our patients.

O
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Other medical professionals (including
pharmacists and clinical scientists)
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Pursuing refined marketing strategy for brand value
enhancement

The Group has always put great emphasis on brand value
enhancement and marketing refinement and believes that our
brand is key to building up market competitiveness in the consumer
healthcare industry. During the Reporting Period, the Group recruited
a number of high-caliber senior executives who have experience in
successful chain brand operation. We thus managed to solidify our
brand reputation by formulating a multi-pronged marketing strategy
and enhancing customers’ awareness and stickiness to our brand. We
also formulated our brand connotation marketing strategy focusing
on our female business and medical hair care business that improves
the brand influence of our “Fa Zhi Chu” female brand and our
“Svenson” medical hair care brand in market segments in accordance
with the industry developments, taking into account the growth
of female customer base, the demand of a group of younger-age
customers suffering from alopecia and the rising concerns over hair
health among customers. The Group believes that brand reputation is
founded on high standards of service quality and the most effective
channel of marketing is the word-of-mouth referrals from customers.
During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a continued increase
in the patient referral rate, which represented the achievements of
our refined marketing and brand value enhancement efforts.

Promoting innovation in products and services

During the Reporting Period, the Group also made great efforts in
scientific research and innovation. So far, hair transplant remains the
most effective way for hair loss treatment. But for those patients who
suffer from a large area of hair loss, lacking hair follicles limits the
conditions for hair transplant. Since 2020, the Group has cooperated
with Sun Yat-sen University to conduct research on inducing the
transformation of fibroblasts into dermal papilla cells. Using the
conversion of cell fate induced by small molecules to screen for
small molecules that can induce the transformation of hair-inducing
dermal papilla cells, the transformed cells can promote and integrate
the reconstruction of hair follicles in vivo, resulting in an abundance
of cells that can induce hair growth for treatment of hair loss. This
method is based on the relatively mature research on the conversion
of cell fate induced by small molecules, which can avoid the risk
of gene mutation caused by transgene induction. In 2022, the
research result of the cooperation between the Group and Sun Yat-
sen University was officially published in the International Journal of
Molecular Sciences, an authoritative Scientific Citation Index (SCI)
Journal in international molecular medicine. The paper provides a
simple and effective solution for subsequent in vitro culture of dermal
papilla cells and treatment of hair loss by using small molecule drugs
that transform fibroblasts into hair-inducing dermal papilla cells. This
is a revolutionary breakthrough academic achievement in the hair
industry that brings hopes of hair follicle regrowth to patients with
thin hair.
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Promoting the development of scientific and information
technology

Both innovation and application of digital technology are our
important means to increase operating efficiency and enhance
patients’ experience. We have always adopted industry-leading
technology to enlarge our customer base, enhance patients’
experience, increase our operating efficiency and reduce costs.

During the Reporting Period, we developed and launched an
integrated consultation management system for the purpose of further
improving physicians’ efficiency in consultation and strengthening our
delivery of digital diagnosis and treatment services. We upgraded the
information technology of our business operation system which allows
appointment for consultation, smart photogrammetry for hair loss
area measurement, upgrade of integrated diagnosis and treatment
process and upgrade of our capabilities in areas such as operational
data dashboard. With these technological applications, patients’
experience is considerably enhanced as our diagnosis and treatment
process becomes more efficient, patients’ waiting time is effectively
shortened and the cumbersome procedures in the course of operation
are reduced.

Social responsibility and award of honors

We have always adhered to our active commitment to corporate
social responsibility, and striven to contribute more to the community
while pursuing our business development. We realize that a company
cannot succeed without the support of the society. Therefore, we
actively reward to the society, care for environmental protection,
participate in volunteering and charitable activities and taking other
initiatives, thereby fostering a stronger sense of corporate social
responsibility and a better social image.
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In addition, we are relatively reputable and well-known in our
industry. During the Reporting Period, we were honored to receive
a number of significant awards, including the Best Annual Report
Award by Hong Kong Investor Relations Association, the Rising Star of
Listed Company Awards of Excellence 2022 by Hong Kong Economic
Journal, the Best Information Disclosure Award of the 6th China
IR Annual Awards, the Best CEO Award of the 7th Zhitong Caijing
Listed Companies Awards, the Listed Company with Potential 2022
by Snowball Finance, the Best Growth Value of Listed Companies
Award of Guruclub Greater China Best Listed Company Awards 2022
and the Annual Listed Companies with Excellent Value of the Golden
Sail Award. These awards represent rewards for our restless efforts
and recognition of our unwavering dedication to innovation and
continuous development over the years. We will continue to endeavor
to deliver greater value and returns for our shareholders, customers,
staff members and people from all walks of the society.
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PROSPECTS

The hair-related healthcare market is in a stage of rapid development
with huge unmet market demand and enormous growth potential.
According to Frost & Sullivan, the size of the hair-related healthcare
service market in China reached RMB18.4 billion in 2020, and is
projected at RMB138.1 billion in 2030 with a CAGR of 22.3%. In
2022, the total number of patients receiving our treatments reached
104,380. We expect that there will be an increasing number of
patients in demand of alopecia treatments and medical hair care
service. Leveraging our efforts in building a one-stop platform for
hair-related healthcare services and taking advantage of the favorable
industry prospect, the Group’s market-leading position and its
established brand recognition, we believe that we are well-positioned
to capture great opportunities in this fast-growing market.

Continue the expansion and upgrade of our clinic
network

o Hair transplant clinics

We will continue to open new clinics as planned. To this end,
we will pursue our strategy of penetrating into lower-tier cities
for broader geographical coverage of our clinic network to
further increase our coverage in cities of all tiers, and densifying
our presence in tier-one and new tier-one cities for a deeper
layout by adopting a business model of “multiple clinics in one
city” to further increase our density of coverage in all cities. We
will also improve our presence by opening Fa Zhi Chu female
hair transplant clinics in selected regions to provide customised
aesthetic hair transplant service to our female aesthetic hair
transplant consumers. We expect to have nearly 85 hair
transplant clinics in China by the end of 2023.

o Svenson medical hair care centers

We will continue to put great efforts in strategically developing
our medical hair care business, and seek continuous enrichment
of its application scenarios, products and services. We will further
diversify the design and application of Svenson products by
launching a wider range of more effective hair health management
products with the certificate for medical devices (#F5%) and
certificate for special cosmetics (52 55%) on the basis of our existing
Svenson products with the certificate for cosmetics (ZZF57).
Meanwhile, we strive to gradually expand the scale of our customer
coverage on top of our established Svenson customer base. With
the launch of upgraded customized tracking services and the
establishment of medical diagnosis and treatment system, we will
provide our customers with more comprehensive and professional
hair health management services. We will also work further on the
business expansion of our stand-alone Svenson stores by increasing
the presence of Svenson Medical Hair Care Centers in a wider
geographic area, so as to achieve an enhanced brand awareness
and market share.
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o Comprehensive hair hospitals

Transforming our hair transplant clinics to comprehensive
hair hospitals is another move we make to achieve business
expansion from hair transplant market to hair-related healthcare
service market. Qualified as class | general hospitals, our
newly-opened comprehensive hair hospital in Shanghai has
multiple hair-related specialty departments in addition to the
hair transplant department, such as alopecia department, re-
examination department, international department, feminine
beauty department, Chinese medicine department and
psychology department, enabling us to provide patients with
professional diagnosis and comprehensive treatment solutions.
Our comprehensive hair hospital in Shanghai has commenced
operation and our comprehensive hair hospital in Beijing is
under construction and expected to commence operation upon
completion by the middle of 2023.

Adhere to technology-oriented operation by promoting
digital and smart services

Technology-oriented operation represents a unique advantage that
differentiates us from other hair-related healthcare service providers,
enables us to further improve patients’ experience, attract more
patients and reinforce patients’ loyalty, which will, in turn, promote
our brand development, solidify our market dominance, and boost
our sustainable future growth. We will continue to upgrade our
digital and smart business operation and marketing ecosystems in the
following three particular areas:

o We will develop a Yonghe digital marketing platform, on
which we will carry out full-link data mining and analysis about
customer services to realise precise customer acquisition and
efficient conversion at lower marketing cost;

o We will develop a Yonghe digital service platform, on which
internet hospitals will be set up to strengthen our capabilities
in serving our customers online, achieve a higher standard of
digital and smart diagnosis, treatment and service process in
clinics, and further increase patients’ satisfaction and operating
manpower efficiency in clinics; and we will develop products
for use in smart consultation rooms and smart operation rooms
and conduct pilot runs in highlighted clinics to further optimise
our system for surgery quality control and enhance our medical
professionalism; and

25



26

EREBEEEAERLT  YONGHE MEDICAL GROUP CO., LTD.

EEE WD

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

. TEERBFHBREETA B
B B BB ANBER
BHRRREROBTCEA SR -
B3RS R A - A B E B A
N BREBBEAETE  BAK
MR - AREFABEER
DETINE

FYSE - BB oY T # A AR B RURAR 12 95 55 B RF D I X
MITEER

B %5 121 B
WA

20225 « REBBABARE1,412.88
B0 (20214 : ARK2,168.6HETT) ' &
EEERA34.9% c AEBKRATE KA ()
BEBERY - (NVBEESERY  Ri)HE
ftb o

TREFARBERARFEEREBREDH
WABRA

o We will develop a Yonghe digital collaborative operation
platform, on which the business collaboration process systems in
respect of supply chain, finance, medical services and manpower
will be integrated and centralized through digitalization, and we
will set up new business systems and strengthen our database
capacity for the establishment of real-time data warehouse
platform, so as to help improve data insight efficiency and
substantially increase the operating manpower efficiency in
functional organizations.

Note: Industry data contained in this section is sourced from the industry
information provided by Frost & Sullivan

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

In 2022, the Group had a revenue of RMB1,412.8 million (2021:
RMB2,168.6 million), representing a decrease of 34.9% over last year.
The Group’s revenue is mainly derived from (i) hair transplant service;
(if) medical hair care service; and (iii) others.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our revenue by business
line for the years indicated:

BZ12A31HLEE
Year ended December 31,

20224 20214
2022 2021
ARBFT AREFIT

RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
BB ERE Hair transplant service 1,030,454 72.9 1,565,434 72.2
EREERS Medical hair care service 362,508 25.7 582,290 26.8
Hh Others 19,829 1.4 20,856 1.0

1,412,791 100 2,168,580 100
HEEBERERA Revenue from hair transplant service

ANEMEZE2022F 12831 BILEERBAR
BEEFEREHBRABARYE1,030588
(20214 « AR¥1,565.46870) ' BF
WA34.2% - MEEBWRATEREEATE
BRIZEIRS - BHEZEEABTRE - RS H
A BMEERERADL40.0%  BEEE
AEUA39,254 N °

The Group's revenue from hair transplant service was RMB1,030.5
million (2021: RMB1,565.4 million) for the year ended December 31,
2022, representing a decrease of 34.2% over the year. Such decrease
in revenue from hair transplant service was primarily attributable to
the decrease in the number of hair transplant patients due to the
limitation on the customer flow in stores. During the Report Period,
our customer flow in stores dropped by approximately 40.0% and the
number of hair transplant patients was 39,254.
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Revenue from medical hair care service

The Group’s revenue from medical hair care service was RMB362.5
million (2021: RMB582.3 million) for the year ended December 31,
2022, representing a decrease of 37.7% over the year. Same as
our hair transplant service, such decrease in revenue from medical
hair care service was primarily attributable to the limitation on the
customer flow in stores, which led to a decrease in both the number
of store-visiting patients and their frequency of consumption. In
2022, the number of medical hair care patients served by the Group
is 63,257 and the average spending per patient increased from
RMB5,531 in 2021 to RMB5,731 in 2022.

Revenue from others

The Group's revenue from others was mainly derived from the
rendering of services and sales of goods by our stand-alone Svenson
stores for routine services, which amounted to RMB19.8 million (2021:
RMB20.9 million) in 2022.

Costs

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s cost of sales and services
primarily consisted of staff costs, amortization and depreciation charges,
cost of inventories and consumables, operation related expenses and
other expenses. The following table sets forth a breakdown of our cost
of sales and services by nature for the years indicated:

BZ12A31HLEE
Year ended December 31,

2022%F 20214
2022 2021
ARETFT ARBFT

RMB’000 % RMB’000 %

BIpA Staff costs 208,248 38.6 246,910 42.0
HIERITEER Amortization and depreciation charges 194,564 36.0 177,874 30.2
FERFEMKA Cost of inventories and consumables 94,216 17.4 101,220 17.2
BRI Operation related expenses 29,919 5.5 33,048 5.6
HtwpZ Other expenses 13,265 2.5 29,552 5.0
540,212 100 588,604 100

202245 - AEBEHMKABARE54028
B0 (2021F « ARMS88.6EEL) ' IRF
WL82% o K - BT AESL N T5H
EIREMBEEABNHERES - ARTF
MMETE  RMNBEEERNERES TG
TR EBEEATRATEE - #iERITE
ERTZEFAREERETEENE ' &
REFARBREREOE NSRS RITER
FA 7RG AT an -

During 2022, the Group incurred costs of RMB540.2 million (2021:
RMB588.6 million), representing a decrease of 8.2% over the year. In
particular, staff costs represent the salaries, wages and bonuses paid
to physicians, nurses and other professionals. Owing to the decrease
in the number of surgeries, our medical team members received less
performance-based bonus, which resulted in a reduction in variable
staff costs. Amortization and depreciation charges mainly represent
the depreciation of our right-of-use assets and fixed assets, the
increase of which was in line with the increased number of our new
clinics.
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

In 2022, the Group recorded a gross profit of RMB872.6 million
(2021: RMB1,580.0 million), representing a decrease of 44.8%
over the year. Our gross profit margin was 61.8% (2021: 72.9%).
Such decline in gross profit margin was primarily attributable to
(i) the significant decrease in revenue due to the impact of the
pandemic situation; (ii) the incurrence of staff cost paid to our
outpatient physicians since the implementation of the physician
consultation system; and (iii) the relatively high level of fixed costs
such as depreciation of right-of-use assets and amortization of
leasehold improvement as we were still positive about the economic
development in China and the growth of the hair transplant industry
so that we continued to expand the network of our stores.

Other income

The Group's other income mainly consists of government grants
and additional value-added tax credit. In 2022, the Group had other
income of RMB9.7 million (2021: RMB3.6 million).

General and administrative expenses

During 2022, the Group incurred general and administrative expenses
of RMB257.5 million (2021: RMB247.5 million). Our general and
administrative expenses primarily consist of (i) staff costs, which
represent share-based expenses, wages, benefits and bonuses of
our administrative staff; (ii) operation related expenses for our
administrative team, which primarily include conference fees,
utilities, maintenance fees and rental payments; (iii) amortization and
depreciation charges; and (iv) professional and consulting service fees
incurred in relation to audit services, rental agencies and internet
services. The following table sets forth a breakdown of our general
and administrative expenses by nature for the years indicated:

BZ12A31BLEE
Year ended December 31,

2022F 20214F
2022 2021
AR¥FT ARBFT

RMB’000 % RMB’000 %

BIA Staff costs 168,500 65.4 123,566 49.9
LEAERR Operation related expenses 19,384 7.5 16,299 6.6
HIERITEER Amortization and depreciation charges 15,396 6.0 8,378 3.4
HEMNZEARGE Professional and consulting service fees 13,278 5.2 12,436 5.0
EIR R ABRERE Travelling and entertainment expenses 8,289 3.2 6,360 2.6
EmRAX Listing expenses - - 46,977 19.0
Hith Others 32,682 12.7 33,526 13.5
257,529 100.0 247,542 100.0
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Selling and marketing expenses

In 2022, the Group incurred selling and marketing expenses of
RMB766.8 million (2021: RMB1,072.6 million). Our selling and
marketing expenses primarily consist of marketing and promotion
expenses, and staff costs.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our selling and
marketing expenses by nature for the years indicated:

BZ12A31BLEE
Year ended December 31,

2022%F 20214F
2022 2021
AR%FT ARBF T

RMB’000 % RMB’000 %

B R ER Marketing and promotion expenses 492,252 64.1 684,274 63.8
BIRA Staff costs 225,878 29.5 318,928 29.7
EIRFAX Travelling expenses 18,299 2.4 30,572 2.9
HIERITEER Amortization and depreciation charges 14,499 1.9 14,551 1.4
LR B X Operation related expenses 13,895 1.8 20,464 1.9
HA Others 1,960 0.3 3,858 0.3
766,783 100.0 1,072,647 100.0

BPERENTH AR BEZEN TR RN
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Our selling expenses contracted as compared to 2021 because we
made corresponding adjustments to our marketing strategy against
the affected regions and periods due to COVID-19 pandemic in
an effort to control our marketing expenses and achieve a higher
marketing conversion rate.

Income tax expenses

In 2022, the Group's income tax credit was RMB23.6 million
compared to the income tax expense of RMB90.1 million in 2021. This
was primarily attributable to the deferred income tax recognised for
the temporary loss for the year.

Net profit and net profit margin

In light of the foregoing, the Group’s net profit decreased by 171.4%
from RMB120.2 million in 2021 to net loss of RMB85.9 million in
2022. The Group's net profit margin dropped from 5.5% in 2021 to
-6.1% in 2022.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at December 31, 2022, cash and cash equivalents of the Group
amounted to RMB565.1 million (2021: RMB1,566.2 million). As at
December 31, 2022, the Group had no bank borrowings (2021:
RMB74.2 million).

Taking into account the capital generated internally, the banking
credit available to the Group and the net current assets of
approximately RMB691.0 million as at December 31, 2022, the
Directors believe that the Group has sufficient capital to meet its
working capital requirements and foreseeable capital expenditure.

Cash flows

The following table sets forth selected data of the Group's
consolidated statements of cash flows for the years indicated:

BZ12A31BLEE
Year ended December 31,

2022%F 20214
2022 2021
AR®TFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
wES) (FTA),/ P33R 4/F%  Net cash (used in)/generated from operating
activities (108,562) 437,281
WERS AR SFE Net cash used in investing activities (650,565) (193,944)
BEEE (FTA) A5 EF5  Net cash (used in)/generated from financing
activities (333,054) 1,028,222
FUHESRBESESED Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 1,566,192 292,856
FRBENEESEEDY Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 565,093 1,566,192

RERAEEBYREREN Cash and cash equivalents and term deposits
BZE2022F12A318 » AEENRE KRR
CEEVMRERFTRR/RARKEI7TSOBET
(20214 : AR¥1,566.2B&7T) * BIFA

As at December 31, 2022, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
and term deposits of RMB978.0 million (2021: RMB1,566.2 million),
including RMB412.9 million as term deposit. We have robust cash

RE4AI2IBETHTHER - BMESFIE
BORESR YA mEAEEEESE
KR ARREBERBTERS -

flows which are adequate to meet the capital requirements for daily
operation and for our plan of future clinic expansion.
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Capital expenditures

The Group’s capital expenditures mainly represent payments for
purchase of items of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets. The following table sets forth a breakdown of our capital
expenditures for the years indicated:

BZ12A31BLEE
Year ended December 31,

2022%F 20214

2022 2021

AR®TFT ARBF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

M - BB RREHNK Payments for property, plant and equipment 240,573 181,629
B EEMNR Payments for intangible assets 2,940 9,012
#Et Total 243,513 190,641

R2022F  AEERNEARALAARE
24358870 (2021F : AR¥ 190688
L) AEEMEKERTHABEAT R
#n e

A

R2022F - AEENTFEAARESS.1HE
JL(20214F + AR¥S31HET) °

BEZRHEMENRE

HZE2022F12A318  REENE SR
HibhENZHEAARKE 144 1H5E T (2021
F:ARB2257EERL) c AP EERA
BRME2E I REEFEZNRIEEN
TRENE A RENRD  NEAB S RE
FERTIRAN ETHEERAYERTE
AERRY  ARZIFMARBFESE
TR B HER A AR -

In 2022, the Group incurred capital expenditures of RMB243.5 million
(2021: RMB190.6 million). Such increase in capital expenditures was
driven by the business expansion of the Group.

Inventories

In 2022, the Group had inventories of RMB88.1 million (2021:
RMB53.1 million).

Trade and other payables

As at December 31, 2022, the Group had trade and other payables
of RMB144.1 million (2021: RMB225.7 million). Such decrease was
primarily attributable to the decrease in amounts due to related
parties as we have fully settled the payments for the acquisition of
Nu/Hart Hair, the decrease in accrued expenses due to the absence in
the current period of the unpaid listing fees and expenses provided
for as at the end of the previous year, as well as the decrease in
accrued employee remuneration due to the COVID-19 pandemic.
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Indebtedness

The Group’s indebtedness mainly includes bank borrowings, amounts
due to related parties and lease liabilities. The following table sets
forth a breakdown of our indebtedness for the years indicated:

MR12A318
As at December 31,
2022 % 20214
2022 2021
AR¥T T ARMTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
TRE Current
IRITER Bank borrowings - 74,173
FEREE s E (GEE 5) Amounts due to related parties (non-trade) - 25,354
HEAE Lease liabilities 190,554 185,055
EFRE Non-current
HEBE Lease liabilities 845,048 762,303
@t Total 1,035,602 1,046,885
RITER Bank borrowings

HZE2022912A318 » KAEBRBKEE
RITIER (2021F : AR¥742BET)
BMMETEFRIZENE3I 85% E4.9%
(20214 1 4.0% E4.9%) 58 °

BB S RE (EES)

HZE2022F12 8318 » REE R FER B
FHEGEES) BT (20215 : ARM25.4
BEIL) 2021 FREMNEHE HFE(EE
%) BEARIERMEZREZEHIIE
EHAFEE A ASEER RS BRNEEEN -

HESE

AEBRMEHERREESRE  HEH
HEREEBEHEERN - HE2022F12 A8
318 AEE (EAEEAN) HEEEER
HBRTFHNASSHEABREEAARY
1,035.6 &L (20214 : ARMA74EE
JL) °

As at December 31, 2022, the Group had no outstanding bank
borrowings (2021: RMB74.2 million). Our bank loans bear interest at
rates ranging from 3.85% to 4.9% per annum (2021:4.0% to 4.9%).

Amounts due to related parties (Non-trade)

As at December 31, 2022, the amount due to related parties (non-
trade) from the Group is nil (2021: RMB25.4 million). The balance
of amounts due to related parties (non-trade) at the end of 2021
was the outstanding balance in respect of the acquisition of Nu/Hart
Hair (FBA/ESZ), which was settled in full by the Group during the
Reporting Period.

Lease liabilities

We recognise a lease liability with respect to all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets. As at December 31,
2022, the Group (as lessee) had total lease liabilities of RMB1,035.6
million (2021: RMB947.4 million), which were unsettled for the
remaining terms of the relevant lease agreements.
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Contingent liabilities

As at December 31, 2022, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (December 31, 2021: nil).

Future plan for material investments and capital assets

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus, for the year ended December 31,
2022, the Group did not have any future plan for material investments
and capital assets.

Material acquisitions and disposals

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Group did not make any
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures.

As at December 31, 2022, the Group did not hold any significant
investments.

Charge of assets
There was no charge on the Group's assets as at December 31, 2022.
Gearing ratio

Gearing ratio is calculated using bank loans and other borrowings
divided by total equity as the end of such year and multiplied by
100.0%. As December 31, 2022, because the Group had no bank
borrowings, the Group’s gearing ratio was nil (December 31, 2021:
4.4%).

Exchange rates and any related hedges

The Group has no significant foreign currency risk as all of its
operations, assets and liabilities are dominated in RMB which is also
its functional currency. We did not hedge against any fluctuation in
foreign currency during the historical record period. As at December
31, 2022, the Group had the cash and cash equivalents of RMB272.6
million denominated in foreign currencies, mainly USD (2021:
RMB1,180.7 million, mainly HKD). We monitor foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign exchange
exposure should the need arise.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at December 31, 2022, the Group had a total of 3,741 employees,
among which 1,341 employees are our professional medical team
members. Staff costs were RMB616.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2022, as compared to RMB700.3 million for the year
ended December 31, 2021.

The Group continues to provide competitive compensation packages,
attractive promotion opportunities, diverse training courses and
a professional working environment to its employees. The Group
remunerates the employees based on industry practices and
individual’s performance and experience. Remuneration packages
primarily comprise of basic salary, performance-based compensation
and/or discretionary bonus. As required by PRC laws and regulations,
the Group participates in various employee social security plans for
its employees that are administered by local governments, including
housing provident fund, pension, medical, maternity, work-related
injury and unemployment insurances.

The Group adopted a restricted share units scheme on July 26, 2022
for the purposes to incentivizing certain employees of the Group and
attracting talents for the development of the Group. The Scheme does
not constitute a share option scheme or an arrangement analogous
to a share option scheme under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules in
force at the time and no Shareholders’ approval was required for
the adoption or implementation of the Scheme. The Group has not
granted any restricted share units since the adoption of the Scheme
and up to December 31, 2022.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to declare any final dividend for the year
ended December 31, 2022.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company had no
significant event after the Reporting Period.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHANG Yu (3R E), aged 37, is our founder, executive Director,
chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer. He was
appointed as a Director on September 17, 2020 and re-designated
as an executive Director on June 1, 2021. He founded the Group in
July 2010 and has been the chief executive officer of the Group since
July 2010. Mr. Zhang is in charge of the overall strategic planning,
business direction and operational management of the Group.
Mr. Zhang is the elder brother of Mr. Zhang Hui (being one of the
executive Directors).

Mr. Zhang has been dedicated to medical hair care service industry
for over 17 years, and thus has a deep understanding of the needs
of our customers from his years of frontline experience. Mr. Zhang
ventured into the hair transplant sector in March 2005 when he
joined Beijing Churong Fuyun Medical Beauty Clinic (It R % 15 & &8
AR 2FT) and resigned in November 2007. After that, he founded
our Group and started his own hair transplant business with the
brand name of Yonghe (%K) in 2010. Mr. Zhang is a pioneer in
advocating and being relentlessly committed to the development of
hair transplant service by introducing and subsequently upgrading
the most advanced hair transplant solutions to Chinese patients. Mr.
Zhang has led the formulation of our strategic development decisions,
established and developed our medical professional team. As such,
our Group has gained a significant first mover advantage and grown
successfully in China. Leveraging his forward-looking industry vision,
we have further expanded our business lines to cover the diagnosis
and treatment of various hair-related diseases, hair transplant, medical
and routine hair care, wig research and production and various other
hair-related product and service offerings. Under his leadership, we
have developed a management style reflective of the values and
characteristics of the “Yonghe” brand and obtained many prestigious
accreditations and recognitions.

Mr. Zhang graduated from Sixian Dazhuang Junior Middle School
OISR ATV HE) in June 2001. Mr. Zhang has been the deputy
head of the hair medicine and scalp health management group of
skin professional committee of the Chinese Non-government Medical
Institutions Association (FEIZFAV BEMEHEREEXEZEGEE
BB CARY fi S HE24H) since September 2018.
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Mr. ZHANG Hui (5&R¥), aged 36, was appointed as a Director on
September 17, 2020 and re-designated as an executive Director on
June 1, 2021. He has been promoted from the procurement director
to the senior vice president of the Integrated Management Center
of the Group since July 18, 2022. Mr. Zhang Hui is in charge of the
overall procurement management and business development of the
Group. Mr. Zhang Hui is the younger brother of Mr. Zhang Yu (being
the Chairman and an executive Director).

Mr. Zhang Hui has accumulated over 10 years of experience in medical
hair care service industry within our Group. Since joining our Group,
Mr. Zhang Hui has developed and optimized our Group's strategies
and processes relating to supply chain management and business
development. His strong support towards high-quality and just-in-time
management concept of the procurement process contributed to
and has been instrumental to the steady expansion of our Group.
Mr. Zhang Hui has actively promoted our business development, and
further fortified our industry-leading position in China.

Mr. Zhang Hui graduated from Beijing Language and Culture
University (It BT KSWEH B Z2P), the PRC, through
long-distance education, with an associate degree in economic
management in January 2019.

Ms. HAN Zhimei (8%#8), aged 46, was appointed as an executive
Director on June 28, 2022, has been promoted from the finance
director to the vice president of the Financial Capital Center of our
Company since July 18, 2022 and has served as a joint company
secretary of the Company since June 1, 2021. She is responsible for
financing, accounting, budget control, internal control and financial
management of the Group.

Ms. Han has over 24 years of experience in accounting and corporate
finance. Prior to joining our Group, from March 2016 to March 2017,
she served as the finance director of KR Space (Beijing) Information
Technology Co., Ltd. (%€M (AL R)EEHMAERAF). From
February 2014 to September 2015, Ms. Han served as the general
manager of finance center of CiMing Health Management Group Co.,
Ltd. (B EREELERMEMRAE]). From May 2012 to February
2014, she served as the finance director of Beijing Yangguangwo
Cultural Development Co., Ltd. (At REFHELERABR A A]). Ms.
Han was the accounting director of finance center of CiMing Health
Management Group Co., Ltd. (B#EFREREBERMHERAF]) from
August 2011 to May 2012. She was the vice director of finance
department of Beijing Tianyou Education Consulting Co., Ltd. (Jt =
KEHEEHAABRAT]) from October 2008 to July 2011. Earlier, Ms.
Han served as a finance manager of China Real Estate Development
North America Investment Group Co., Ltd. (FEILFELEEBFRA
A]) (formerly known as China Real Estate Hongdu Investment Group
Co., Ltd. (FEIREIREEEHBRRAF])) from July 1997 to April 2008.
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Ms. Han obtained her bachelor’s degree in accounting from Beijing
Institute of Light Industry (1t T 2E63) (now known as Beijing
Technology and Business University (it R TEAE)), the PRC, in
July 1998. She obtained intermediate accounting professional and
technical qualification certificate issued by the Ministry of Finance in
September 2003.

Non-executive Director

Mr. GENG Jiaqi (BkEE ), aged 51, was appointed as a Director on
September 17, 2020 and re-designated as a non-executive Director
on June 1, 2021. Mr. Geng is responsible for providing advice on
strategic development of the Group.

Mr. Geng has over 15 years of experience in investment and
management industry. Mr. Geng was appointed as a director of
Beauty Farm Medical and Health Industry Inc. (EEMEREREE
¥#BBA7F]), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
2373), since February 2022 and re-designated as a non-executive
director in March 2022. Mr. Geng has been an investment director
of Beijing Panmao Investment Management Co., Ltd. (It REEE
BEEEAMR AT since October 2020. Mr. Geng was an investment
director of Tianjin Panmao Enterprise Management Partnership
(Limited Liability Partnership) (RZEZEXTCEEEABLE(BEREE))
from January 2019 to September 2020. From May 2015 to December
2018, he was an investment director of Shanghai Panxin Equity
Investment Management Limited (/8 E(ZREIZEEEFMRAA]). He
was a director of Wangfujing Group Co., Ltd., a company listed on
Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600859), from December 2016
to December 2019. Mr. Geng was a senior investment manager of
Beijing Hony Future Investment Advisor Ltd. (1t R3AE H IR EEMA
R 2 7]) from September 2008 to March 2010.

Mr. Geng obtained his bachelor's degree in accounting & finance
and business administration & management from Oxford Brookes
University, the United Kingdom, in July 1996 and his master’s degree
in business administration from State University of New Jersey, the
U.S., in January 2001.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. LIANG Jihong (R#4), aged 50, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on June 28, 2022. Ms. Liang has
extensive experience in the finance and investment industry, served
in various positions, including chief financial officer and director,
within the group of 36Kr Holdings Inc., a NASDAQ listed company
(NASDAQ stock code: KRKR), from November 2014 to March 2021.
Prior to that, Ms. Liang served as a financial director at Yeepay Inc.,
an e-payment service provider based in China, from July 2013 to
November 2014, and as a financial director at Tujia.com, a Chinese
lodging-service sharing and booking platform, from February 2012
to September 2012, respectively. Prior to that, Ms. Liang served as a
senior financial manager at the Beijing branch of Ctrip.com, an online
ticket and hotel booking platform based in China, from July 2011 to
September 2012, and as a financial manager at the Beijing branch of
Mangocity.com, an online ticket and hotel booking platform based in
China, from February 2006 to July 2011, respectively.

Ms. Liang completed the FMBA program run by Cheung Kong
Graduate School of Business in October 2021. Ms. Liang received her
master’s degree in software engineering from Beihang University (1t
FMAMZEAXRE) in June 2016 and bachelor's degree in statistics from
Capital University of Economics and Business (E#M4CEE 5 A2) in
June 1995. Ms. Liang was admitted as a certified public accountant by
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants in January 2005.

Mr. CHAN Peng Kuan (FRf%#9), aged 59, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on June 1, 2021 and is
responsible for providing independent advice and judgment to our
Board.

Mr. Chan has more than 20 years of experience in finance and
banking. Mr. Chan has also been serving as an independent non-
executive director of (i) CANbridge Pharmaceuticals Inc., a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1228), since June 11, 2021;
and (ii) Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd., a company listed on
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1902), since February 2019. He was
the chief financial officer of Elegance Optical International Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 907),
from October 2017 to May 2019. He served as the chief operating
officer of CITIC Merchant Co., Limited (T EE:@RIEEEREGRAR])
from January 2012 to September 2017. Prior to that, Mr. Chan was
the head of Asia CIG and Cleantech of Piper Jaffray Asia Limited from
February 2011 to November 2011. From March 2005 to January 2011,
Mr. Chan also worked at BNP Paribas Capital (Asia Pacific) Limited
with his last position as a managing director of Corporate Finance —
Greater China Coverage department.
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From August 2000 to December 2004, Mr. Chan served as an
executive director of Sanyuan Group Limited (Z LB BR R F]), a
company delisted from the Stock Exchange in December 2009 (stock
code: 0140).

Mr. Chan obtained his bachelor’'s degree in commerce from the
University of Canterbury in New Zealand in May 1989. He received
his master’s degree in applied finance from Macquarie University in
Australia in November 1998. Mr. Chan has been a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (previously known
as Hong Kong Society of Accountants) since July 1993. He obtained
his professional qualification as a Chartered Accountant in November
1992 from the Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand
(previously known as the Institute of Chartered Accountants of New
Zealand).

Mr. LI Xiaopei (Z=/7 %), aged 36, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on June 1, 2021 and is responsible for
providing independent advice and judgment to our Board.

Mr. Li has over 10 years of experience in organic and polymer
chemistry industry. He is currently a technical adviser at Tianjin
Changyuan Medical Technology Company Limited (K324 7058 BRI
BIRAF]) since June 2020. From April 2020 to March 2021, he was a
research assistant of Institute for Chemical Research, Kyoto University.
He worked in Beijing Boyalife Weiming Union Stem Cell Technology
Company Limited (JtREHERZEHEHMAMBEEERLAF]) from
January 2014 to May 2014. From February 2011 to November 2011,
he worked in WuXi AppTec (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. (K;ZZERF B 1S 5T 2450 3%
BRAF).

Mr. Li received a bachelor’'s degree in materials chemistry from
Huaibei Normal University (f1bEM#3 K E), the PRC, in June 2009 and
a master’s degree in polymer chemistry from Kyoto University, Japan,
in March 2018. He was awarded a scholarship from China Scholarship
Council to attend Kyoto University and subsequently received a PhD
degree in polymer chemistry from Kyoto University, Japan, in March
2021.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. ZHANG Yu, an executive Director and the chief executive officer
of the Group. See “— Executive Directors” for details of his biography.

Mr. ZHANG Hui, an executive Director and the senior vice president
of the Integrated Management Center of the Group. See “— Executive
Directors” for details of his biography.

Ms. HAN Zhimei, an executive Director and the vice president of the
Financial Capital Center of the Group. See "— Executive Directors” for
details of her biography.

Mr. XU Yang (#3¥), aged 44, has been promoted from the
operation director and assistant to the chief executive officer to the
chief operating officer since July 18, 2022. Mr. Xu is responsible for
daily operations and administrative matters of our Group.

Mr. Xu has around 10 years of experience in the management
industry. Mr. Xu was a product manager of Baidu Online Network
Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (BEELBEFM (b5) BRAR)
from June 2016 to March 2018. He was the president of a hospital
owned by Beijing Evercare Medical Technology Group Co., Ltd. (it
R EREEREEBRRMAT) from November 2011 to December
2014,

Mr. Xu obtained his bachelor’s degree in economic information
management from Shandong Technology and Business University (L
RIRERL) (formerly known as China Coal Economic College (4
B R 4875 E88T)), the PRC, in July 2002 and his master’'s degree in
business administration from Nankai University (FfAX2), the PRC, in
July 2009.
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Ms. LI Zhuang (Z=#t), aged 45, has been the chief human resources
officer of the Group since February 2022. She is responsible for the
overall human resources management and corporate university affairs
of the Group.

Ms. Li has 24 years of experience in human resources management.
She is also experienced in integrated management of e-commerce,
vocational education, market branding and other businesses. Prior
to joining our Group, Ms. Li was a senior vice president of Shanghai
Himalaya Network Technology Co.,Ltd. (EBEHRERRARA
Al) from 2020 to 2022. She was a senior vice president of Bejing
Kaisheng Culture and Media Co., Ltd. (Jt REVBLEHAREER
7)) from 2018 to 2020. She served as the human resources director at
Xueersi business unit of TAL Education from 2014 to 2018. Previously,
Ms. Li worked with a number of fast-moving consumer goods
companies in human resources positions.

Ms. Li obtained her master's degree by unified admission from the
University of Science and Technology, Beijing (1t &% K E), the PRC,
in 2003 and her bachelor’s degree by unified admission from Yanshan
University (F&LLAZ2), the PRC, in 1999,

Mr. REN Jian (f£81), aged 40, has been the chief growth officer
of the Group since May 2022. He is responsible for the growth of
marketing activities for the Group as a whole and its business brands,
including brand strategy and market communication, user growth
and traffic operation, public relations and content marketing, and the
management of telemarketing and online sales operations.

Mr. Ren has 18 years of experience in marketing and user growth. He
has repeatedly received the “New Chief Marketing Officer” awards.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ren was a senior vice president of
51Talk under Beijing Dasheng Online Technology Co. Ltd. (At R K4 %
SRR ARAF]) from 2017 to 2022. He served as the vice president
of Mia under Beijing Huawang Online Commerce Co., Ltd. (3t F{ERE
R EBIRAE]) from 2015 to 2017. He served as the marketing
director of Yohobuy.com under Nanjing Newpower Media Co., Ltd.
(R RN EFEERAR]) from 2011 to 2014. Previously, Mr.
Ren worked with a number of e-commerce companies in the internet
industry where he held marketing and user operation positions.

Mr. Ren obtained his bachelor’s degree and qualification in law from
Xiangtan University CGHERKE), the PRC, in 2005 and his master’s
degree and qualification in EMBA from Peking University (1t 5 K£2),
the PRC, in 2022.
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Mr. WANG Yufeng (£ EI&), aged 46, has been the vice president at
the information technology center of the Group since May 2022. He
is responsible for information and intelligent technology operations of
the Group.

Mr. Wang has over 16 years of experience in medical information
and intelligent technology. He was the chief technology officer of
Shenzhen Ch-Gemstones Healthcare Holdings Ltd. (Z3I|FR §E 58 A- 4%
BIRAF]) from August 2016 to May 2018. He served as the deputy
director of the Al Doctors and Mobile Healthcare Research Institute of
BOE Technology Group from May 2018 to July 2020.

Mr. Wang obtained his bachelor’'s degree, master’s degree and
doctorate’s degree in computer in July 1999, March 2002 and
December 2006, all from the National University of Defense
Technology (BIF7 B2l K £2), the PRC.

Mr. SU Yang (%1#5), aged 36, has been the vice president of the
Group since July 2022. He is responsible for the development and
operation of the Group’s internet hospitals and user experience
management of the Group.

Mr. Su Yang has eight years of management experience in the
internet industry, with management experience in the internet
healthcare industry in the last three years. He served as the director
of operations of Beijing Xingxuan Technology Co., Ltd. (It R EEFR
BAMR A7) under Alibaba Local Life Service from Aprll 2019 to June
2020. He was the vice president of operations of Chengdu Yiyun
Technology Co., Ltd. (AXEEZEHE AR A F]) from June 2020 to July
2022.

Mr. Su Yang graduated from Dalian Polytechnic University (K3 T %
K&, the PRC, in 2008 with a bachelor’s degree in engineering.
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The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Reporting
Period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is a leading medical group in China specialized in providing
hair-related healthcare services, We offer one-stop hair-related
healthcare services covering hair transplant, medical hair care, and
routine hair restoration and other ancillary services. Analysis of the
principal activities of the Group during the year ended December 31,
2022 is set out in the note 6 to the consolidated financial statements
in this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as required by Schedule
5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), including an analysis of the Group’s financial performance, an
indication of likely future developments in the Group's business, is set
out in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report. Details of the Group's
environmental policies and compliance with laws and regulations
can be found in the "Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
of this annual report. These discussions form part of this report.
Events affecting the Company that have occurred since the end of
the Reporting Period is set out in the section headed "Event after the
Reporting Period” in this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

o Our historical business growth, revenue and profitability may not
be indicative of future performance, and our success depends, in
part, on our ability to execute our business strategy.

o Our brand, market reputation and consumer perception
contribute significantly to our continued success and growth.
Any failure to maintain, or any damage to, our brand, market
reputation and/or consumer perception could materially and
adversely affect our results of operations and prospects.

o Our operations and business plans have been and may continue
to be adversely affected by the COVID-19 pandemic.

For more details of other risks and uncertainties faced by the Group,
please refer to the Prospectus.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has
complied in all material aspects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operation of the
Group. During the Reporting Period, there was no material non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

We have introduced and implemented a series of internal control
policies, measures and procedures to promote the compliance with
applicable laws and regulations. We have regularly reviewed and
refined such policies, measures and procedures to enhance the
effectiveness of our corporate governance practices and internal
control. The Audit Committee has also been closely monitoring the
ongoing rectifications of the outstanding non-compliances to prevent
the recurrence of similar non-compliances.

To date, the latest progress of the rectifications is as follows:

(i) Medical Institution Practicing License: All clinics in operation
have already obtained the practicing licenses to date.

(ii)  Fire Safety Procedures: Our clinics in Taiyuan and Shanghai have
already been relocated to the new premises as planned with the
fire safety procedures were duly completed. Our clinic in Suzhou
has completed the fire safety procedures. Efforts were stepped
up to take forward the incomplete fire safety procedures for our
clinic in Quanzhou, but it is difficult to estimate the completion
time at the current stage. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a
third-party institution engaged by us has completed fire safety
inspections of the clinics to ensure their safety.

(iii)  Water Discharge License: Our new clinic in Shanghai has been
put into use and the water discharge license was obtained.
Our newly relocated clinic in Taiyuan has obtained the water
discharge license. Efforts were stepped up to take forward the
application of water discharge license for our clinic in Lanzhou,
but it is difficult to estimate the completion time at the current
stage.
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(iv)  Non-Compliances Relating to the Advertisement Law of the PRC
and/or the Administrative Measures for Medical Advertisements:
All of our clinics have obtained the advertisement examination
certificates from the local health commissions in relation to the
publication of the relevant advertisements.

(v)  Defects in Title of Certain Leased Properties: We have adopted a
set of stringent standards in reviewing leased properties. Other
than the pre-existing leases, new leases are free of title defects.

(vi) Filing and Registration of Leases: As of the end of the Reporting
Period, we had a total of 169 leased properties, among
which, the lease agreements of 75 leased properties were duly
registered with the relevant authorities; and we were using
our reasonable efforts to complete the filing and registration
procedures for the remaining leased properties.

(vii) Aesthetic Medical Attending Physicians: During the Reporting
Period, all the surgeries performed at our clinics for our patients
were conducted or supervised by physicians possessing the
Aesthetic Medical Attending Physician qualification.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group has always encouraged environmental protection,
strictly complied with environmental regulations, and promoted
environmental protection awareness among employees. The Group
implements strict monitoring through the establishment of an ever-
improving environmental management system. During the year ended
December 31, 2022, the Group was in compliance in all material
respects with the relevant environmental laws and regulations.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group believes that its Shareholders, employees, customers/
patients and business partners are crucial for its sustainable
development. The Group has always been committed to maintaining
close relationships with Shareholders and employees, providing
customers and patients with high-quality hair-related healthcare
services, and continuously strengthening cooperation with business
partners.
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Shareholders

The Group recognizes the importance of protecting the interests of
the Shareholders and of having effective communication with them.
The Group believes communication with the Shareholders is a two-
way process and have thrived to ensure the quality and effectiveness
of information disclosure, maintain regular dialogue with the
Shareholders and listen carefully to the views and feedback from
the Shareholders. This has been and will be done through general
meetings, corporate communications, interim and annual reports and
results announcements, etc.

Employees

The Group provides employees with a good working environment to
protect their health and safety, and competitive remuneration and
benefits and fair competition and development opportunities based
on their merits and performance. The Group also makes constant
efforts to provide employees with adequate training and development
resources to keep them up to date with the latest developments in
the market and industry, and improve their work performance and
promote their self-actualization at the same time.

Patients and Customers

The Group considers patient satisfaction as its priority. As a leading
hair-related healthcare service provider, the Group is committed to
serving its patients to the best of its ability and continually enhancing
the level of service excellence. The Group has set up an official
complaint platform to provide smooth communication channels for
patients.

Suppliers

The Group believes that its suppliers are equally important in providing
high-quality healthcare services. The Group has built a one-stop digital
procurement management platform to achieve economies of scale and
better control the quality of medical drugs, medical devices, medical
consumables and washing and care formulas it procures. The Group
selects its suppliers based on stringent criteria and applicable laws and
regulations to ensure the quality of its supplies. The Group maintains
good business relationships with suppliers, manages suppliers in a fair,
just and open manner, and achieves a win-win situation with them
through honest operation.

For the year ended December 31, 2022, there was no significant and
material dispute between the Group and its stakeholders.
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RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2022 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 162 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to declare any final dividend for the year
ended December 31, 2022 (for the year ended December 31, 2021:
RMBO0.076 per Share).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the last
five financial years are set out on page 6 of this annual report. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL
OFFERING AND CHANGE IN USE OF
PROCEEDS

Reference is made to (i) the Prospectus in relation to the Listing,
which sets out the intended use of the net proceeds from the issue
of new shares of the Company (the “Net Proceeds”) at the time of
preparing the Prospectus, (ii) the annual report of the Company for
the year ended December 31, 2021 in which the utilization of the Net
Proceeds up to December 31, 2021 was disclosed, and (iii) the interim
report of the Company for the six months ended June 30, 2022, in
which the utilization of the Net Proceeds up to June 30, 2022 was
disclosed.

The Board hereby announces that it has resolved to change the use
of the unutilized Net Proceeds. The Net Proceeds received by the
Company, after deducting related underwriting fees and expenses
payable by the Company in connection with the global offering, were
approximately HKD1,526.2 million and the unutilized Net Proceeds
of HKD930.6 million were kept in the bank accounts of the Group
as at December 31, 2022. As at March 30, 2023, the unutilized Net
Proceeds amounted to approximately HKD825.6 million. An analysis of
the utilization of the Net Proceeds as at December 31, 2022 and as at
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March 30, 2023 and the proposed change in the use of the unutilized
Net Proceeds, as well as the expected timeline for full utilization, is
set out as below:
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Save for the aforesaid changes, there is no other change in the use of
the Net Proceeds.

The expected timeline for the usage of the remaining Net Proceeds
is made based on the best estimate of the Group’s future market
conditions, which is subject to the current and future development of
the market conditions.
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Reasons for and benefits of the change in use of proceeds

As stated in the Prospectus, the Group planned to use its Net Proceeds
to fund the building of six comprehensive hair hospitals in China. As
at the date of this report, the Group has completed establishing the
new hospital in Shanghai and completed transforming the existing
clinics in Guangzhou and Shenzhen, and expects to complete the new
hospital in Beijing in April 2023. The actual costs of establishing these
hospitals have been less than the anticipated costs as renovation and
equipment costs have reduced. In addition, due to the resurgence of
COVID-19 during 2022, the other two comprehensive hair hospitals in
Chengdu and Chongging have significantly reduced in their respective
business scale and size. Thus, the costs associated with implementing
these two comprehensive hair hospitals in China have reduced
significantly. The Board considers that such change in business scale
and size does not affect the Company’s current business development
plan. Therefore, the Board considered reallocating the Net Proceeds
of HKD120.0 million from this category to ensure unutilized Net
Proceeds can be used effectively to enhance profitability and enhance
the Group’s market share in other areas of the Group’s business plan.

As the Group plans to increase its market share and fasten its
expansion in relation to its “Svenson” (£ Z#%) brand, the Board
estimated that approximately HKD96.0 million would be reallocated
for the additional costs associated with increasing brand awareness
by placing additional advertisements and sponsoring of entertainment
events. The Group also estimated that HKD24.2 million would be
reallocated to our working capital and general corporate purposes.

The Board confirms that there are no material changes in the nature
of the business of the Group as set out in the Prospectus. The Board
considers the above change in the use of the Net Proceeds is fair
and reasonable as this would allow the Group to deploy its financial
resources more effectively to enhance the profitability of the Group
and is therefore in the interests of the Group and the Shareholders
as a whole. The Board will continuously assess the plan for the use of
the unutilized Net Proceeds and may revise or amend such plan where
necessary to cope with the changing market conditions and strive for
better business performance of the Group.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND MAJOR SUPPLIERS
Major Customers

During the year ended December 31, 2022, substantially all of our
customer base consisted of individual customers, and none of these
individual customers accounted for more than 5% of our total
revenue.

Major Suppliers

Our suppliers primarily include providers of advertising services, IT
services, and pharmaceuticals, surgical consumables and hair care
products. We have maintained a list of eligible suppliers approved by
our senior management team. During the year ended December 31,
2022, the aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers represented less than 30% of the Group’s total
value of purchases.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, their
close associates, or any shareholder who owns more than 5% of
our issued share capital had any interest in any of our five largest
customers or suppliers during the year ended December 31, 2022.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and the Group during the year ended December 31, 2022
are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended December 31, 2022 are set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended December 31, 2022 are set out in page 165 of
this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at December 31, 2022, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, amounted to RMB1,539.2 million.

TAXATION

Tax position of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2022
is set forth in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

As at December 31, 2022, the Group had no outstanding bank loans
and other borrowings.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHANG Yu

Mr. ZHANG Hui

Ms. HAN Zhimei (appointed on June 28, 2022)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. GENG Jiaqi
Mr. ZHAI Feng (resigned on June 28, 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. LIANG Jihong (appointed on June 28, 2022)
Mr. CHAN Peng Kuan

Mr. LI Xiaopei

Ms. WANG Jiping (resigned on June 28, 2022)
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LTD.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 35 to 42 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the
independent non-executive Directors and the Company considers such
Directors to be independent during the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND
LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company, under which they agreed to act as executive
Directors for an initial term of three years commencing from their
respective date of appointment, which may be terminated by not less
than one month’s/three months’ notice (as the case may be) in writing
served by either the executive Director or the Company.

Each of the non-executive Directors and the independent non-
executive Directors has signed an appointment letter with the
Company for a term of three years with effect from their respective
date of appointment. Under their respective appointment letters,
each of the independent non-executive Directors is entitled to a fixed
Director’s fee while the non-executive directors are not entitled to any
remuneration as Directors.

The appointments are subject to the provisions of retirement and
rotation of Directors under the Articles of Association and the
applicable Listing Rules.

None of the Directors, including those to be re-elected at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, has entered into any service
contract with any member of the Group (excluding contracts expiring
or determinable by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section “Continuing Connected Transactions”
below, none of the Directors had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the Reporting
Period.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance, including any contract of significance for
the provision of services, has been entered into between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and the Controlling Shareholders or any of
their subsidiaries during the Reporting Period.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing the Group's
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance of the directors and senior
management and comparable market practices. There was no
arrangement under which a Director or senior management waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the Reporting Period.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid
individuals during the Reporting Period are set out in page 223 and
page 265 of this annual report.
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RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCHEME

Details of the retirement and employee benefits scheme of the
Company are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CHANGES TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in
information of Directors are set out below during the Reporting Period
and up to the date of this annual report:

(1) Change in the significant positions held within the

group
EEpE p=kal=p: FEBAL BB
Name of
Director Date of Change Original Position Current Position
/N 2022466280 BN IEHITES B IFMITES
EREEGKE EREZEGNXE
FMEEGKE FMESSKE
REBEEZEEGKE
LI Xiaopei June 28, 2022 Independent Non-executive Director Independent Non-executive Director
Member of Audit Committee Member of Audit Committee
Member of Remuneration Committee Member of Remuneration Committee
Member of Nomination Committee
Lagis! 2022 6H28H0  HEARME WiTES
$E A R E
HAN Zhimei June 28, 2022 Joint Company Secretary Executive Director
Joint Company Secretary
LT 20224 6A28H & BIFNTESE
LIANG Jihong June 28, 2022 Nil Independent Non-executive Director

(2) HABESRESTHRAEN

FHITEFURHEEB 202252
AREZABRIM EMAREER
BEEERREEZRRAA (BRHR
S8 0 2373)KMIESE - Hi1ER202243
BEFATAIENITES -

br B TEEIN BERNFERE
BH WEEMRE EmRANE
13.512)1&(a) = (e) B M (g) R B T #
BEHANESEARSTHRAEZ
BEREE -

(2) Other changes to information in respect of Directors
and chief executive

Mr. Geng Jiagi, a non-executive Director, was appointed as a
director of Beauty Farm Medical and Health Industry Inc. (3
EHEEERREXABMRAR), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 2373), since February 2022 and re-
designated as a non-executive director in March 2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual report,
no other changes to information in respect of any Directors
and chief executive were required to be disclosed according to
paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) under the Listing
Rules.
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ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at December 31, 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “SFO")) which were (i) required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
are taken or deemed to have under such positions of the SFO); or (ii)
required to be entered in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

iR 17 R 2 Interests in the Shares
REBITHRAE
BENS#1T BB 5 R
EEpE B EntE K5 E Elalad
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
issued in issued
Name of Directors Capacity/nature of interest Shares held share capital®?
9K R S O BB EFEHAIMHA 161,531,916 (L) 30.65%
Mr. Zhang Yu®@ Founder of discretionary trust
REPEEEER 20,000,000 (L) 3.79%
Interest in controlled corporation
SRR AEO BB EFEHAIMA 24,000,000 (L) 4.55%
Mr. Zhang Hui® Founder of discretionary trust
B3z e 4O REEAE R 658,668 (L) 0.12%

Mr. Geng Jiging®

Interest in controlled corporation
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L:iffd Sk

BRE D ERARRR2022912 A31
H 2 31789527,080,416 X A% () 42 EzH & -

ZY Investment Capital Ltd@ —KEXE
BEZESEIMRIMNEBEEZERAR -
ZY Investment Capital Ltdf)Z&#PAA R
ZY Ventures LtdZ&# A  ZY Ventures
LtdEy 2 ZBAE A B Trident Trust Company
(Singapore) Pte LimitedE&The ZY Trust
MZEAZEEE ° The ZY Trust2— (@M
REXREEAZTXARIHPEET R
BESREEED - REE%E (FEAThe ZY
TrustB Al A ) AR AR EZY Investment
Capital Ltd#E#)161,531,916 B (D F
B o

EEFHBEIERERARR —RELABR
RESEMRMIRERBR AR A EET
EREABLE (ELAE)2EHE - £
BTEREARCE(DEAR)NERA
BABRESE  BBABABLETHE
RERARE - M EEFHEHRERAR S
RELERZERE - At - REFHFRHE
W) - 3R & e AR AR B8 T BT R
AR ATIEAH20,000,000 M F#EAE
MRS o

ZH Investment Capital Ltd2 —RE%E
BREZHSEIMRINEBEEZERAF -
ZH Investment Capital Ltd#) & 2FAA SR
ZH Ventures LtdZ&# A ° ZH Ventures
Ltd®) & #FAE A B Trident Trust Company
(Singapore) Pte LimitedfE&The ZH Trusty
ZEAREER © The ZH Trust2HFEBL
FIERZEFRARINBBE - REFHFR
GGG - RIELRAE (ERThe ZH Trusti)
Bl A) #48 BRHZH Investment Capital
Ltd¥5 4 924,000,000 i i 15 R A g %5 o

Jiagi Hair Service Limited 2 —RNRHBE R X
HEEMA MR EZER AT © Jiagi Hair
Service Limited®) 2 IR A B GER L ES
BEHAR - At - BEH LAWK AR iaqi
Hair Service Limited#§% #9658,668 %% 7
PR ER o

Notes:
)
()

3)

L: Long position; S: Short position

The percentage of shareholding was calculated based on the Company’s
total number of 527,080,416 Shares in issue as at December 31, 2022.

ZY Investment Capital Ltd is an investment holding company
incorporated in BVI. The entire share capital of ZY Investment Capital
Ltd is wholly owned by ZY Ventures Ltd. The entire share capital of ZY
Ventures Ltd is wholly owned by Trident Trust Company (Singapore) Pte
Limited as the trustee of The ZY Trust. The ZY Trust is a discretionary
trust set up by Mr. Zhang Yu as the settlor. Mr. Zhang Yu (as the
founder of the ZY Trust) is taken to be interested in 161,531,916 Shares
held by ZY Investment Capital Ltd under the SFO.

Yunuo Technology Holdings Limited is an investment holding company
incorporated in the BVI and is wholly owned by Shanghai Yuxin
Technology Partnership Company (Limited Partnership). The limited
partner of Shanghai Yuxin Technology Partnership Company (Limited
Partnership) is Mr. Zhang Yu, and the general partner is Shanghai
Yuhe Technology Company Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by
Mr. Zhang Yu. Therefore, Mr. Zhang Yu is deemed to be interested in
20,000,000 Shares held by Yunuo Technology Holdings Limited under
the SFO.

ZH Investment Capital Ltd is an investment holding company
incorporated in BVI. The entire share capital of ZH Investment Capital
Ltd is wholly owned by ZH Ventures Ltd. The entire share capital of ZH
Ventures Ltd is wholly owned by Trident Trust Company (Singapore) Pte
Limited as the trustee of The ZH Trust. The ZH Trust is a discretionary
trust set up by Mr. Zhang Hui as the settlor. Mr. Zhang Hui (as the
founder of the ZH Trust) is taken to be interested in 24,000,000 Shares
held by ZH Investment Capital Ltd under the SFO.

Jiagi Hair Service Limited is an investment holding company incorporated
in BVI. The entire share capital of Jiagi Hair Service Limited is wholly
owned by Mr. Geng lJiagi. Accordingly, Mr. Geng Jiagi is deemed to be
interested in 658,668 Shares held by Jiagi Hair Service Limited.
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DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during
the Reporting Period was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement that would enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate, and none of the Directors or
any of their spouses or children under the age of 18 were granted any
right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the Company or
any other body corporate or had exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at December 31, 2022, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
the following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO:
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REBITRE
BENS#T REENEST
FERRAE B REEME ROEAE BoE®
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
issued Shares in issued share
Name of substantial Shareholders  Capacity/Nature of interests held capital@®
ZY Investment Capital Ltd® E=EEA 161,531,916 (L) 30.65%
Beneficial owner
ZY Ventures Ltd® RRIEGEE R 161,531,916 (L) 30.65%
Interest in controlled corporation
Yonghe Hair Service Holdings Limited® Ezi#EA A 91,866,668 (L) 17.43%
Beneficial owner
B — AT HFAFEER 91,866,668 (L) 17.43%
Interests jointly held with another person
B (EB)REDL (BRE&R) RRIEHEE R 183,733,336 (L) 34.86%
([ExLEgl@
Panmao (Shanghai) Investment Interest in controlled corporation
Centre (Limited Partnership)
("Panmao Shanghai”)®
FEEECEEEREAERAF RRIEFEE R 183,733,336 (L) 34.86%
([ BBl @
Shanghai Pannuo Corporate Interest in controlled corporation
Management Service Company
Limited (“Shanghai Pannuo”)®
FEEXREESEEBRAF® RRIEFEE R 183,733,336 (L) 34.86%
CITIC Private Equity Funds Interest in controlled corporation
Management Co., Ltd.®
CYH Cosmetic Medical Holdings EmfEA A 91,866,668 (L) 17.43%
Limited® Beneficial owner
B — ATHAFEER 91,866,668 (L) 17.43%
Interests jointly held with another person
CYH Cosmetic Medical Investment RRIEGEE R 183,733,336 (L) 34.86%
Limited® Interest in controlled corporation
CPEChina Fund Il, L.P.® REEGEERER 8BS — AT HA 183,733,336 (L) 34.86%
HEER
Interest in controlled corporation; interest
jointly held with another person
CPEChina Fund IIA, L.P.®) REEGEERER 8BS — ATHA 183,733,336 (L) 34.86%

FrE
Interest in controlled corporation; interest
jointly held with another person
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TERRER

Name of substantial Shareholders

B REME

Capacity/Nature of interests

FENE BT
R BB

Number of
issued Shares
held

REBITRAE
REENEST
BoE®
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
in issued share
capital@®

Citron PE Associates Il, L.P.®

Citron PE Funds Il Limited®

Citron PE Holdings Limited®

CITIC Securities Company Limited®®
Frandor Limited®

Trident Trust Company (Singapore)
Pte Limited®

RRIEHEEER
Interest in controlled corporation
RRIEHEEER
Interest in controlled corporation
RREGEEER
Interest in controlled corporation
RREGEEER
Interest in controlled corporation
RRIEGEEER
Interest in controlled corporation
RRIEGEEER
Interest in controlled corporation

183,733,336 (L)
183,733,336 (L)
183,733,336 (L)
184,388,336 (L)

655,000 (S)

185,531,916 (L)

185,531,916 (L)

34.86%
34.86%
34.86%
34.98%

0.12%

35.20%

35.20%

°

)

(1) LiffE Sk

Notes:

(1) L: Long positions; S: Short positions.

(2 FHRASLDHERAREN2022F12A31 (2)
H 2 317H9527,080,416 IR A% {H 4B 85t & -
(3)  ZY Investment Capital LtdEZY Ventures (3)

Ltd2E %A * MZY Ventures Ltdflf
Frandor LimitedZ¥&#7% ° Frandor Limited
&K The ZY TrustFFAZY Ventures Ltdf%
HERIZRE - BTrident Trust Company
(Singapore) Pte Limited2& %A/ - M
Trident Trust Company (Singapore) Pte
Limited@FRE %A (EAZFEA) KTrident
Trust Company (Singapore) Pte Limited ({E
BEFA) RILHIThe ZY TrustB) LA ©

The percentage of shareholding was calculated based on the Company's
total number of 527,080,416 Shares in issue as at December 31, 2022.

ZY Investment Capital Ltd is wholly owned by ZY Ventures Ltd, which is
in turn wholly owned by Frandor Limited. Frandor Limited is a nominee
shareholder holding shares of ZY Ventures Ltd on behalf of The ZY Trust
and is wholly owned by Trident Trust Company (Singapore) Pte Limited,
which is the trustee of The ZY Trust established by Mr. Zhang Yu (as
the settlor) and Trident Trust Company (Singapore) Pte Limited (as the
trustee).
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Yonghe Hair Service Holdings Limited %
EEBR2EHRSE LXK LBNEBEBAR
FEER M EBERAATEEEREER
CEBRBRARZEHER -PEEEXRE
ELEBBRAFTBPEUEFRNHER DT
(—RREBRFIR EBERZ S ETHR
A)) HAE35% o

CYH Cosmetic Medical Holdings Limitedfa
CYH Cosmetic Medical Investment Limited
28 AH > MCYH Cosmetic Medical
Investment LimitedBJf CPEChina Fund
Il, L.P.}2CPEChina Fund IIA, L.P.2 RIS
#186.3% N 13.7%# % » CYH Cosmetic
Medical Investment Limited@CPEChina
Fund Il, L.P.%2CPEChina Fund lIA, L.P.2[F
4l - CPEChina Fund I, L.P.}2CPEChina
Fund IIA, LP. RMRXBERSFHSEET
e EER R BRE M Z - CPEChina Fund
I, L.P.5%2CPEChina Fund IIA, LP.EYE@EA
% A &Citron PE Associates Il, L.P. » Citron
PE Associates Il, LP.A—XRIBEHSHEE
EZAMNEREBREBLE  EEBE
#% A ACitron PE Funds Il Limited ° Citron
PE Funds Il Limitedf Citron PE Holdings
Limited2&#74A + fCitron PE Holdings
LimitedBIIFHCLSA Global Investments
Management Limited#535% i ° CLSA
Global Investments Management Limited £
CLSA, B.V.2&#E ' CLSA, B.V.BHF &L
FBBREARABZERE © MPEILHFEE
ERABAIBFEAEFROBRARZERE
Ao

Frandor Limited/&% 512k The ZY Trust
K The ZH Trusti##HZY Ventures Ltd&ZH
Ventures LtdBIRRMD AR - B The
ZY Trust}The ZH TrustfyS5E ATrident
Trust Company (Singapore) Pte Limited%
EHE - Al REHFKBAEKMAMES -
Frandor Limited &2 Trident Trust Company
(Singapore) Pte Limited& BB BN Z
185,531,916 A 7o A 2% o

Yonghe Hair Service Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Panmao
Shanghai, the general partner of which is Shanghai Pannuo, which is in
turn wholly owned by CITIC Private Equity Funds Management Co., Ltd.
CITIC Private Equity Funds Management Co., Ltd is owned as to 35% by
CITIC Securities Company Limited, a company listed on both the Stock
Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

CYH Cosmetic Medical Holdings Limited is wholly owned by
CYH Cosmetic Medical Investment Limited, which is owned as to
approximately 86.3% by CPEChina Fund I, L.P. and 13.7% by CPEChina
Fund IIA, L.P.. CYH Cosmetic Medical Investment Limited is jointly
controlled by CPEChina Fund I, L.P. and CPEChina Fund IIA, L.P..
CPEChina Fund I, L.P. and CPEChina Fund IlIA, L.P. are two exempted
limited partnerships registered under the laws of the Cayman Islands.
The general partner of CPEChina Fund Il, L.P.and CPEChina Fund IIA, L.P.
is Citron PE Associates Il, L.P.. Citron PE Associates Il, L.P. is an exempted
limited partnership registered under the laws of the Cayman lIslands
whose general partner is Citron PE Funds Il Limited. Citron PE Funds II
Limited is wholly owned by Citron PE Holdings Limited, which is held as
to 35% by CLSA Global Investments Management Limited. CLSA Global
Investments Management Limited is wholly owned by CLSA, B.V., which
is wholly owned by CITIC Securities International Company Limited,
which in turn is wholly owned by CITIC Securities Company Limited.

Frandor Limited is a nominee shareholder holdings shares of ZY Ventures
Ltd and ZH Ventures Ltd on behalf of The ZY Trust and The ZH Trust,
respectively. It is wholly-owned by Trident Trust Company (Singapore)
Pte Limited, the trustee of The ZY Trust and The ZH Trust. Accordingly,
each of Frandor Limited and Trident Trust Company (Singapore) Pte
Limited is deemed to be interested in the 185,531,916 Shares by virtue
of the SFO.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

There was no equity-linked agreement entered into by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries during the Reporting Period.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Shares during the year ended December 31,
2022.

2022 RESTRICTED SHARE UNITS SCHEME (THE “SCHEME")

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated July 26, 2022
(the “Announcement”), the Scheme was approved and adopted
by the Board on July 26, 2022. The following is a summary of the
principal terms of the Scheme but does not form part of, nor was it
intended to be, part of the Scheme nor should it be taken as affecting
the interpretation of the rules of the Scheme. Unless otherwise
defined, capitalized terms used herein shall have the same meanings
as those defined in the Announcement.

(1) Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is to recognize and acknowledge
the contributions that the Grantees have made or may make to
the Group; and to provide the Grantees with the opportunity to
own a personal stake in the Company with a view to (i) motivate
the Grantees; and/or (ii) attract and retain or otherwise maintain
an on-going relationship with the Grantees whose contributions
are, will be or are likely to be beneficial to the long-term growth
of the Group.

(2) Eligibility of Participation of the Scheme

Persons eligible to receive restricted Share units under the
Scheme are any individuals, including executive Directors
(but excluding non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors), who provide service under the employment
contract to any member of the Group, and in terms of work and
working methods, accepts the control and dominance of any
member of the Group.
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(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)
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EBETRA(TRHEZE)N10% @ 8
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(3

4

(5)

(6)

Total number of Shares to be granted

The aggregate number of Shares under the Scheme available
to be granted to the Grantees during the Valid Period (i) shall
not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
(as changed from time to time), being 52,708,041 Shares,
representing 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the date of this report; and (ii) shall be subject to an annual
limitation within 2% of the issued share capital of the Company
(as changed from time to time).

Maximum entitlement of each Grantee

The number of Shares which may be awarded to an individual
Grantee under the Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company (as changed from time to time) in
any 12-month period.

Administration of the Scheme

The Scheme shall be administered by the Board, whose
decision as to all matters arising in relation to the Scheme or its
interpretation or effect shall (save as otherwise provided therein)
be final and binding on all related parties.

Subject to any restrictions in the rules of the Scheme, the Board
has delegated the monitoring and managing authority of the
Scheme to Mr. Zhang Yu, the chairman of the Board, as the
Administrator of the Scheme. Without prejudice to the Board's
general power of administration, the Company has appointed
the Trustee to assist with the administration and vesting of RSUs
granted pursuant to the Scheme.

Vesting Period of Restricted Shares Units under the
Scheme

The RSUs in an Award shall be vested in phases, which shall
be determined by the Administrator and stated in the Award
Agreement.

Unless otherwise agreed by the Administrator, the Awards shall
be vested in three phases:

(i)  the first thirty percent (30%) of the RSUs shall vest on the

first anniversary from the Grant Date;

(i) the second thirty percent (30%) of the RSUs shall vest on
the second anniversary from the Grant Date; and

(iii)  the last forty percent (40%) of the RSUs shall vest on the
third anniversary from the Grant Date.
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(7) Consideration for Acceptance

There is nil consideration for any acceptance of the relevant
Awards by the Grantees.

(8) Remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme commences on July 26, 2022 and remains valid and
effective unless and until being terminated upon the expiry of
the period of ten (10) years from such date, unless terminated
earlier by the Board.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not granted any RSUs
under the Scheme.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands that would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

INTEREST IN COMPETING

As at December 31, 2022, none of the Directors or their respective
associates had engaged in or had any interest in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group.

TAX RELIEF

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Group had entered into
certain non-exempt continuing connected transactions as set out
below. For detailed terms of such non-exempt continuing connected
transactions, please refer to pages 64 to 79.

63



64

EXREESEEARLLT  YONGHE MEDICAL GROUP CO., LTD.

EEEHS
REPORT OF DIRECTORS

TEREFERERS

BRZH

AL BBEBREREE MK EBZERD
30% K 10% %1 - BARKE BEBEE (5K
HHERRRIN) HIZRE A R]

AT REBHAE DRI AT EN D E
BHASENEENDRRA -

EA/N|
(HE8HS)
the Company
(Cayman)

100%

y

Yonghe Management
Consulting
(RBRXES)
(BVI)

100%

ERBEEIER
(B®)
Yonghe Medical Holdings

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
Contractual Arrangements

The Contractual Arrangement apply to the 30% and 10% equity
interest in Yonghe Investment and Chengdu Yonghe, respectively.
Yonghe Investment is the holding company of our Medical Institutions
(other than Chengdu Yonghe).

The following simplified diagram illustrates the flow of economic
benefits from our VIE Entities to our Group as stipulated under the
Contractual Arrangements:
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(Hong Kong) N
Offshore
O

I RELE RIBEAE 1 Onshore
BRIZHE Mr. Zhang Yu Mr. Zhang Hui '
e Contractual .
..:.H:/?\//.ﬁji ¥-.._  Arrangements 85% 15% :
Beijing Haiyouyou '
70% h E
Y \ |
R 30% '
ERKRE Al dbRUAE :
Yonghe Investment Beijing Xunyi
100%
Y .
BEME (REERRIN)
Medical Institutions !
(other than Chengdu Yonghe) ,
*90% E
RXERZER 10% :



GEE
1 BREAAREEALABERE -

2. [— [ ERZBENEEAERESHEE
T -

3. [w--»lEEHREE-

4. JEERNAOTHNERS -

HERAHNRENEERENBAEINT
X - BEFEMENFE  F2HABKER
[B#IZHE ] —H e

(1) BREERB HZH

BHRE - ERAE - ERIEERT
N EEEDHEI TSN AN20214F
1868 20219448808 2021484
178 ~ 2021499 A308 20214104
128 K2021F 10 20 L BRE
‘EEE%T&**(FE%%EHE%T%%J) '
Bt - TR EERE - BRRkERIE
FARBEZELTENAAEBR
R #F - BER AR M H qth AR 75 L
PABREURHG B -

BRIBEBREERBEHZE - BIRENR
BEBEBATRANEE Eﬁﬁ&%ﬁ;ﬁ'
(INEERIMEBEER BEEERLZE
%kﬁg%/\iiﬁ%ﬂl CNANEBRE
C(VTHSZ R (v) & R EKRE
WS (VIHERRTFEERE 5 (vi)&EE
&SRB S E R BT  (vil) BERTE
mEES () AEPE R R(X)EM B
E.IE&%?L SEMBORS - LRF
HREERNGREBITZERBPHRE
LB BANBERESERE - &
REERB WM - L8R
REBEEGHFERILRARRAERN &R
f‘%mﬁﬁﬁm%ﬂuﬁiﬁﬁﬁ AR RA
BRmEREAAFERILEREERNE
*Eﬁﬁ%%@ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%@ﬁﬂﬁ%qﬂE'J
BRAREREER

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 Z—ZE-—FFH

EEEWS
REPORT OF DIRECTORS

Notes:

1. Mr. Zhang Yu and Mr. ZHANG Hui are the Registered Shareholders.

2. “"— " denotes direct legal and beneficial ownership in the equity
interest.

3. " a--p»" denotes contractual relationship.

4. R " denotes the entities that are subject to the Contractual
Arrangements.

A brief description of the specific agreements that comprise the
Contractual Arrangements is set out below. For details of the
specific agreements, please refer to the section headed “Contractual
Arrangements” in the Prospectus.

(1) EXCLUSIVE OPERATION SERVICES
AGREEMENT

The Registered Shareholders, Beijing Xunyi, Yonghe Investment
and the VIE Entities have entered into exclusive operation
services agreements with Beijing Haiyouyou on January 6, 2021,
April 8, 2021, August 17, 2021, September 30, 2021, October
12, 2021 and October 20, 2021, (the "Exclusive Operation
Services Agreement”), pursuant to which, the VIE Entities,
Registered Shareholders and Beijing Xunyi agreed to engage
Beijing Haiyouyou as their exclusive provider of technical
support, consulting services and other services in exchange for a
service fee.

Under the Exclusive Operation Services Agreement, the
services to be provided include but are not limited to (i)
business, financing and investment, (ii) medical technology
related consultation, medical resources sharing and medical
professionals training, (iii) human resources management, (iv)
market research, (v) strategies for marketing and business
expansion, (vi) supplier and inventory management, (vii)
operation and marketing strategy formulation and monitoring,
(viii) medical service quality control, (ix) internal management
and (x) other services relating to management and operation
of medical institutions. Beijing Haiyouyou has proprietary rights
to all the intellectual properties developed or created by itself
from the performance of these services. During the term of
the Exclusive Operation Service Agreement, Beijing Haiyouyou
may use the intellectual property rights owned by Beijing Xunyi
and the VIE Entities free of charge and without any conditions.
Beijing Xunyi and the VIE Entities may also use the intellectual
property work created by Beijing Haiyouyou from the services
performed by Beijing Haiyouyou in accordance with the Exclusive
Operation Service Agreement.
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Under the Exclusive Operation Services Agreement, the service
fee shall be an amount equal to the distributable net profit of
the VIE Entities of a given audited financial year, after deducting
losses from the previous financial years (if any) and any statutory
provident fund (if applicable). Apart from the service fees,
Beijing Xunyi and the VIE Entities shall reimburse all reasonable
costs, reimbursed payments and out-of-pocket expenses incurred
by Beijing Haiyouyou in connection with the performance of
the Exclusive Operation Services Agreement and provision of
services.

In addition, absent of a prior written consent of Beijing
Haiyouyou, during the term of the Exclusive Operation Services
Agreement, the Registered Shareholders, Beijing Xunyi and the
VIE Entities shall not directly or indirectly accept the same or
any similar services provided by any third party and shall not
establish similar corporation relationships with any third party.
Beijing Haiyouyou has the right to appoint any third party to
provide any or all of the services, or to fulfill its obligations
under the Exclusive Operation Services Agreement.

The Exclusive Operation Services Agreement shall become
effective from January 6, 2021, and shall remain valid for three
years and shall, subject to compliance with the Listing Rules, be
automatically renewed for three years each time when its term
ends, unless being terminated in accordance with the terms
therein.

According to the Exclusive Operation Services Agreement, unless
otherwise required by applicable PRC laws and regulations, none
of the parties to the agreement (except Beijing Haiyouyou) is
entitled to unilaterally terminate the agreement. Furthermore,
pursuant to the Exclusive Operation Services Agreement, it may
only be terminated in the event that (i) continued performance
of the obligations of the agreements will result in violation of or
non-compliance with the applicable PRC laws and regulations,
the Listing Rules or the requirements of the Stock Exchange,
(i) Beijing Haiyouyou or its designated person directly holds all
the equity interests in Beijing Xunyi, and all of the Registered
Shareholders’ equity interests in Beijing Xunyi or all of the assets
of Beijing Xunyi attributable to the Registered Shareholders are
transferred to Beijing Haiyouyou pursuant to applicable PRC laws
and regulations, or (iii) Beijing Haiyouyou unilaterally terminates
the agreement.
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(2) EXCLUSIVE PURCHASE OPTION

AGREEMENTS

On January 6, 2021, April 8, 2021, August 17, 2021, September
30, 2021, October 12, 2021 and October 20, 2021, Beijing
Haiyouyou, the Registered Shareholders, Beijing Xunyi,
Yonghe Investment and the VIE Entities entered into exclusive
purchase option agreements (the “Exclusive Purchase Option
Agreements”).

Pursuant to the Exclusive Purchase Option Agreements, (i) each
of the Registered Shareholders irrevocably and unconditionally
grants an exclusive option to Beijing Haiyouyou which entitles
Beijing Haiyouyou to elect to purchase at any time, when
permitted by the then applicable PRC laws, all or any part of the
equity interest in Beijing Xunyi itself or through its designated
person(s), (ii) Beijing Xunyi irrevocably and unconditionally grants
an exclusive option to Beijing Haiyouyou which entitles Beijing
Haiyouyou to elect to purchase at any time, when permitted by
the then applicable PRC laws, all or part of the assets of Beijing
Xunyi itself or through its designated person(s), (iii) Beijing Xunyi
irrevocably and unconditionally grants an exclusive option to
Beijing Haiyouyou which entitles Beijing Haiyouyou to elect to
purchase at any time, when permitted by the then applicable
PRC laws, all or any part of the equity interests held by Beijing
Xunyi in the VIE Entities from Beijing Xunyi itself or through its
designated person(s), (iv) Yonghe Investment irrevocably and
unconditionally grants an exclusive option to Beijing Haiyouyou
which entitles Beijing Haiyouyou to elect to purchase at any
time, when permitted by the then applicable PRC laws, all or
any part of the equity interests of the Medical Institutions (other
than Chengdu Yonghe) held by Yonghe Investment, and (iv)
VIE Entities irrevocably and unconditionally grant an exclusive
option to Beijing Haiyouyou which entitles Beijing Haiyouyou
to elect to purchase at any time, when permitted by the then
applicable PRC laws, all or part of the assets of the VIE Entities
from the VIE Entities themselves or through their designated
person(s), Beijing Haiyouyou may appoint designated person(s)
in its sole discretion when exercising its option. The transfer
price of the relevant equity interests and assets shall be the
minimum purchase price permitted under PRC law, and each of
the Registered Shareholders, Beijing Xunyi and the VIE Entities
will undertake that he/it will, subject to applicable PRC laws,
return in full the consideration received in relation to such
transfer of equity interests or assets to Beijing Haiyouyou and/or
its designated person(s) within ten (10) business days.
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The Registered Shareholders and Beijing Xunyi undertake
to develop the business of the VIE Entities and not to take
any action which may affect their asset value, goodwill and
effectiveness of business licenses. Furthermore, in the absence
of prior written consent of Beijing Haiyouyou, the Registered
Shareholders and Beijing Xunyi shall not (i) transfer or otherwise
dispose of any option under the Exclusive Purchase Option
Agreements, or create any encumbrances thereon; and the VIE
Entities shall not assist in transferring or otherwise disposing of
any option under the Exclusive Purchase Option Agreements, or
creating any encumbrances thereon; and (ii) directly or indirectly
(by itself or through the entrustment of any other natural person
or legal person entity) carry out, own or acquire any business
compete with or likely compete with the business of Beijing
Haiyouyou or our Group.

In addition, the Registered Shareholders, Beijing Xunyi and the
VIE Entities undertake that, upon Beijing Haiyouyou issuing the
notice to exercise the option in accordance with the Exclusive
Purchase Option Agreements, they will implement necessary
actions to affect the transfer and relinquish any pre-emptive
right, if any. Each of the parties to the Exclusive Purchase
Option Agreements confirms and agrees that (i) in the event of
a dissolution or liquidation of Beijing Xunyi and the VIE Entities
(as applicable) under the PRC laws, all the residual assets which
are attributable to the Registered Shareholders and Beijing Xunyi
(as applicable) shall be transferred to Beijing Haiyouyou or its
designated person(s) at the minimum purchase price permitted
under PRC law, and each of the Registered Shareholders, Beijing
Xunyi and the VIE Entities undertakes that they will, subject to
applicable PRC laws, return in full the consideration received in
relation to such transfer to Beijing Haiyouyou or its designated
person(s), (ii) in the event of bankruptcy, reorganization or
merger of Beijing Xunyi, death or incapacity of the Registered
Shareholders or any other event which causes changes to the
Registered Shareholders’ shareholding in Beijing Xunyi and
Beijing Xunyi's shareholding in the VIE Entities, (a) the successor
of the Registered Shareholders’ equity interest in Beijing Xunyi
and the successor of Beijing Xunyi's equity interest in the VIE
Entities shall be bound by the Contractual Arrangements, and (b)
any disposal of shareholding in Beijing Xunyi and the VIE Entities
shall be governed by the Contractual Arrangements unless
Beijing Haiyouyou consents otherwise in writing.
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Exclusive Purchase Option Agreements shall become effective
from January 6, 2021. Each of the Exclusive Purchase Option
Agreements has an indefinite term and a termination provision
which stipulates that unless otherwise required by applicable
PRC laws and regulations, none of the parties to the agreements
(except Beijing Haiyouyou) is entitled to unilaterally terminate
the agreements.

Each of the Exclusive Purchase Option Agreements may only
be terminated in the event that (i) continued performance of
the obligations of the agreement will result in violation of or
non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations, the
Listing Rules or the requirements of the Stock Exchange, (ii)
Beijing Haiyouyou or its designated person directly holds all
the equity interests in Beijing Xunyi, and all of the Registered
Shareholders’ equity interests in Beijing Xunyi or all of the assets
of Beijing Xunyi attributable to the Registered Shareholders are
transferred to Beijing Haiyouyou pursuant to applicable PRC laws
and regulations, (iii) Beijing Haiyouyou or its designated person
directly holds all the equity interests in Beijing Xunyi and all of
Beijing Xunyi's equity interests in the VIE Entities or all of the
assets of the VIE Entities are transferred to Beijing Haiyouyou
pursuant to applicable PRC laws and regulations or (iv) Beijing
Haiyouyou unilaterally terminates the agreements.
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AGREEMENTS

On January 6, 2021, April 8, 2021, August 17, 2021, September
30, 2021, October 12, 2021 and October 20, 2021, Beijing
Haiyouyou, the Registered Shareholders, Beijing Xunyi, Yonghe
Investment and the VIE Entities entered into the shareholders’
rights entrustment agreements (the “Shareholders’ Rights
Entrustment Agreements”).

Pursuant to the Shareholders’ Rights Entrustment Agreements,
(i) the Registered Shareholders irrevocably agree to authorize
Beijing Haiyouyou (and its successors or liquidators) or a natura
person designated by Beijing Haiyouyou to exercise all of its
rights and powers as a shareholder of Beijing Xunyi, including
the rights to vote at a shareholders’ meeting, sign minutes, and
file documents with the relevant companies registry, (ii) Beijing
Xunyi irrevocably agrees to authorize Beijing Haiyouyou (and
its successors or liquidators) or a natural person designated
by Beijing Haiyouyou to exercise all of its rights and powers
as a shareholder of Yonghe Investment and Chengdu Yonghe
(as applicable), including the rights to vote at a shareholders’
meeting, sign minutes, and file documents with the relevant
companies registry, and (iii) Yonghe Investment irrevocably
agrees to authorize Beijing Haiyouyou (and its successors or
liquidators) or a natural person designated by Beijing Haiyouyou
to exercise all of its rights and powers as a shareholder of each
of the Medical Institutions (other than Chengdu Yonghe) held
by it, including the rights to vote at a shareholders’ meeting,
sign minutes, and file documents with the relevant companies
registry. Pursuant to the Shareholders’ Rights Entrustment
Agreements, the power of attorney granted in favor of the
Company and actions it takes in relation to the Contractual
Arrangement will only be decided by officers or Directors who
are not the Registered Shareholders. As Beijing Haiyouyou is
a subsidiary of the Company, the terms of the Shareholders’
Rights Entrustment Agreements will give the Company control
over all corporate decisions of the VIE Entities and 100% equity
interests of Beijing Xunyi.
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Shareholders’ Rights Entrustment Agreements shall become
effective from January 6, 2021. Each of the Shareholders’
Rights Entrustment Agreements has an indefinite term and a
termination provision which stipulates that unless otherwise
required by applicable PRC laws and regulations, none of the
parties to the agreement (except Beijing Haiyouyou) is entitled
to unilaterally terminate it.

Each of the Shareholders’ Rights Entrustment Agreements may
only be terminated in the event that (i) continued performance
of the obligations of the agreement will result in violation of
or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations,
the Listing Rules or the requirements of the Stock Exchange,
(ii) Beijing Haiyouyou or its designated person directly holds all
the equity interests in Beijing Xunyi, and all of the Registered
Shareholders’ equity interests in Beijing Xunyi or all of the assets
of Beijing Xunyi are transferred to Beijing Haiyouyou pursuant
to applicable PRC laws and regulations, (iii) Beijing Haiyouyou
or its designated person directly holds all the equity interests
in VIE Entities and all of the Beijing Xunyi’s equity interests in
VIE Entities or all of the assets of VIE Entities attributable to
Beijing Xunyi are transferred to Beijing Haiyouyou pursuant to
applicable PRC laws and regulations; or (iv) Beijing Haiyouyou
unilaterally terminates the agreement.
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(4) EQUITY PLEDGE AGREEMENTS

On January 6, 2021, Beijing Xunyi, the Registered Shareholders,
Beijing Haiyouyou, Yonghe Investment and Chengdu Yonghe
entered into equity pledge agreements (the “Equity Pledge
Agreements”). Pursuant to the Equity Pledge Agreements,
(i) the Registered Shareholders agree to pledge all of their
respective equity interests in Beijing Xunyi, and (ii) Beijing
Xunyi agrees to pledge all of its equity interests in Yonghe
Investment and Chengdu Yonghe to Beijing Haiyouyou to secure
performance of all their obligations and the obligations of the
Registered Shareholders, Beijing Xunyi, Yonghe Investment
and Medical Institutions (where applicable) under the Exclusive
Operation Services Agreement, the Exclusive Purchase Option
Agreements, the Shareholders’ Rights Entrustment Agreements
and the Equity Pledge Agreements underlying the Contractual
Arrangements.

If Yonghe Investment, Chengdu Yonghe and Beijing Xunyi
declare any dividend during the term of the pledge, Beijing
Haiyouyou is entitled to receive all dividends or other income
arising from the pledged equity interests, if any. In case of any
breach of obligations by any of Beijing Xunyi, the Registered
Shareholders and Yonghe Investment, Chengdu Yonghe, Beijing
Haiyouyou, upon issuing a written notice to the Registered
Shareholders or Beijing Xunyi, will be entitled to all remedies
available in the Contractual Arrangements including but not
limited to disposing of the pledged equity interests.
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In addition, pursuant to the Equity Pledge Agreements, the
Registered Shareholders and Beijing Xunyi undertake to Beijing
Haiyouyou, among other things, not to transfer their pledged
equity interests and not to create or allow any pledge or
encumbrance thereon that may affect the rights and interest
of Beijing Haiyouyou without its prior written consent. Beijing
Xunyi, Yonghe Investment and Chengdu Yonghe undertake to
Beijing Haiyouyou, among other things, not to consent to any
transfer the pledged equity interests or to create or allow any
pledge or encumbrance thereon without Beijing Haiyouyou's
prior written consent.

The pledges in respect of Beijing Xunyi, Yonghe Investment
and Chengdu Yonghe takes effect upon the completion
of registration with the relevant Administration for Market
Regulations and we have registered the equity pledges
contemplated under the Equity Pledge Agreements with
the relevant PRC legal authority pursuant to PRC laws and
regulations.

Equity Pledge Agreements became effective from January 6,
2021. Each of the Equity Pledge Agreements has an indefinite
term and a termination provision which stipulates that unless
otherwise required by applicable PRC laws and regulations, none
of the parties to the agreement (except Beijing Haiyouyou) is
entitled to unilaterally terminate it.

Each of the Equity Pledge Agreements may only be terminated
in the event that (i) continued performance of the obligations
of the agreement will result in violation of or non-compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations, the Listing Rules or
the requirements of the Stock Exchange, (ii) Beijing Haiyouyou
or its designated person directly holds all the equity interests
in Beijing Xunyi, and all of the Registered Shareholders’ equity
interests in Beijing Xunyi or all of the assets of Beijing Xunyi are
transferred to Beijing Haiyouyou pursuant to applicable PRC laws
and regulations, (iii) Beijing Haiyouyou or its designated person
directly holds all the equity interests in Yonghe Investment and
Chengdu Yonghe or all of the assets of Yonghe Investment and
Chengdu Yonghe attributable to Beijing Xunyi are transferred
to Beijing Haiyouyou pursuant to applicable PRC laws and
regulations or (iv) Beijing Haiyouyou unilaterally terminates the
agreement.
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(5) SPOUSE UNDERTAKINGS

The spouses of each of the Registered Shareholders has signed
an undertaking (the “Spouse Undertakings”) to the effect
that each of the spouses has no right to or control over such
interests of the respective persons and will not have any claim
on such interests.

The Foreign Investment Law

On March 15, 2019, the NPC promulgated the Foreign
Investment Law of the People’s Republic of China (FFZEARH
MBASNEIREE)) (the “FIL”) and replaced effective on January
1, 2020. After the FIL comes into effect, the FIL replaced the law
on Sino-Foreign Equity Joint Ventures (FoNE BELMDEER)),
the law on Sino-Foreign Contractual Joint Ventures ( FR4MNA 1EAE
ZE5%)) and the law on Foreign-Capital Enterprises #M& 1B
%)) and became the legal foundation for foreign Investment
in the PRC. The FIL stipulates three forms of foreign investment,
but does not explicitly stipulate the contractual arrangements as
a form of foreign investment.

The FIL does not explicitly stipulate the contractual arrangements
as a form of foreign investment. The FIL does not mention
concepts including “de facto control” and “controlling through
contractual arrangements” nor does it specify the regulation
on controlling through contractual arrangements. Furthermore,
the FIL stipulates that foreign investment includes “Foreign
Investors invest in China through many other methods under
laws, administrative regulations or provisions prescribed by
the State Council”. There are possibilities that future laws,
administrative regulations or provisions promulgated by the
State Council may regard Contractual Arrangements as a
form of foreign investment, at which time it will be uncertain
whether the Contractual Arrangements will be deemed to be
in violation of the foreign investment access requirements and
how the above-mentioned Contractual Arrangements will be
handled. Therefore, there is no guarantee that the Contractual
Arrangements and the business of the VIE Entities will not be
materially and adversely affected in the future due to changes in
PRC laws and regulations. In the event that such measures are
not complied with, the Stock Exchange may take enforcement
actions against us which may have a material adverse effect on
the trading of our Shares.
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Save as disclosed above, there were no other new contractual
arrangements entered into, renewed and/or reproduced
between the Group and Beijing Xunyi and/or the VIE Entities
during the Reporting Period. There was no material change in
the Contractual Arrangements and/or the circumstances under
which they were adopted during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, none of the Contractual
Arrangements had been unwound on the basis that none of
the restrictions that led to the adoption of the Contractual
Arrangements had been removed. As of December 31, 2022,
the Company had not encountered interference or encumbrance
from any PRC governing bodies in operating its businesses
through its VIE Entities under the Contractual Arrangements.

Reasons for Adopting the Contractual Arrangements

The Group primary engages in providing hair transplant services
and medical hair care services, which involve the operating of
medical institutions, and therefore falls into the scope of the
“restricted” category of the Special Administrative Measures
for the Access of Foreign Investment (Negative List) (2021) (#h
PR EEANFRIEEER(BEEE)(20214M)). As advised
by our PRC legal advisers, the Company, as a foreign entity,
shall not hold, either directly or indirectly, more than (i) 90%
equity interest in the Company’s hair transplant institutions
located in Sichuan province; and (ii) 70% equity interest in the
Company’s hair transplant institutions located in other provinces
other than Sichuan. As a result, in line with common practice in
industries in the PRC subject to foreign investment restrictions
and qualification requirements, the Group entered into a series
of contractual arrangements (the “Contractual Arrangements”)
with Beijing Xunyi and the Registered Shareholders to enable
the Group to gain effective control over, and receive all the
economic benefits generated by the businesses currently
operated by our VIE Entities.

75



76

EREBEEEAERLT  YONGHE MEDICAL GROUP CO., LTD.

EEEHS
REPORT OF DIRECTORS

BERSNZHNER

BRRESRETRR - B

MRPBEBTRB/AHNRHELT
EREHINEREMRBITENE
ERS - HANRZFEZRKIAA
ERMRERRBREE - M
RS R B BB R B S E
BBA R PFWEAI R & o

o EMMAHNRIERHELZEES
BOEARVINEEEAE &K
Mo BRMNGEMEER - it
AR KB R R AT L EAETT
HERAHRBETHERE -

o HMMAKHRIEFREHRFIEK
PRI HE R R o

o AbFUAE B RCRIR AL EEAM
FHEEENDZER - BMFIrse
ERBERMFTZAE QIR E A
B AT M e AR B 77 B RT *%

FAK -

o HEREZNBRERBEEALE
B UCEZ =4 SIERI0PNSIES
B EEERAREBLENAT
MEFEEATRHEEN

EHHE F2HRAKRERIRARE
E-HEBMANAORHFERNAR] —

B o

Risks Relating to the Contractual Arrangements

There are the certain risks that are associated with the
Contractual Arrangements, including:

o If the PRC government deems that the Contractual
Arrangements do not comply with PRC regulatory
restrictions on foreign investment in the relevant industries,
or if these regulations or the interpretation of existing
regulations change in the future, we could be subject to
severe penalties or be forced to relinquish our interests
received through the Contractual Arrangements.

o Our Contractual Arrangements may not be as effective in
providing operational control as direct ownership and our
VIE Entities, Beijing Xunyi and Registered Shareholders may
fail to perform their obligations under our Contractual
Arrangements.

o Our Contractual Arrangements may result in adverse tax
consequences to us.

o Beijing Xunyi or the Registered Shareholders may
potentially have a conflict of interest with us, and they may
breach their contracts with us or cause such contracts to
be amended in a manner contrary to our interests.

o Substantial uncertainties exist with respect to the
interpretation and implementation of the Foreign
Investment Law and how it may impact the viability of our
current corporate structure, corporate governance and
business operations.

For details, please refer to the section headed “Risk Factors
— Risks Relating to Our Contractual Arrangements” of the
Prospectus.
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Our Group has adopted the following measures to ensure the
effective operation of our Group with the implementation and
compliance of the Contractual Arrangements:

(@) major issues arising from the implementation and
compliance with the Contractual Arrangements or any
regulatory enquiries from government authorities will
be submitted to our Board, if necessary, for review and
discussion on an occurrence basis;

(b) our Board will review the overall performance of and
compliance with the Contractual Arrangements at least
once a year;

(c) our Company will disclose the overall performance
and compliance with the Contractual Arrangements in
its annual reports and interim reports to update our
Shareholders and potential investors; and

(d) our Company will engage external legal advisers or
other professional advisers, if necessary, to assist the
Board to review the implementation of the Contractual
Arrangements and the legal compliance of Beijing
Haiyouyou, Beijing Xunyi, the Registered Shareholders,
and the VIE Entities to deal with specific issues or matters
arising from the Contractual Arrangements.

Listing Rules Implications and Waivers from the
Stock Exchange

The transactions contemplated under the Contractual
Arrangements constitute continuing connected transactions of
our Company under the Listing Rules upon Listing as certain
parties to the Contractual Arrangements, namely Mr. Zhang,
Mr. Zhang Hui and Beijing Xunyi, are connected persons of
the Group. Mr. Zhang is one of our Controlling Shareholders
and Directors, Mr. Zhang Hui is one of our Directors, therefore
Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhang Hui are connected persons of our
Company. Beijing Xunyi is owned by Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhang
Hui as to 85% and 15% respectively, and therefore is an
associate of Mr. Zhang and a connected person of our Company.
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In relation to the Contractual Arrangements, we have applied to
the Stock Exchange for, and the Stock Exchange has granted, a
waiver from strict compliance with (i) the announcement, circular
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the transactions
contemplated under the Contractual Arrangements pursuant
to Rule 14A.105 of the Listing Rules, (ii) the requirement of
setting an annual cap for the transactions under the Contractual
Arrangements under Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules, and
(iii) the requirement of limiting the term of the Contractual
Arrangements to three years or less under Rule 14A.52 of the
Listing Rules, for so long as the Shares are Listed on the Stock
Exchange subject however to the following conditions:

(@) No change without independent non-executive Directors’
approval;

(b) No change without independent Shareholders’ approval,

(c)  The Contractual Arrangements shall continue to enable our
Group to receive the entire economic benefits derived by
the VIE Entities and Beijing Xunyi;

(d) The Contractual Arrangements may be renewed and/
or reproduce (i) upon expiry or (ii) in relation to any
existing, newly established or acquired wholly foreign
invested enterprise or operating company (including a
branch company) engaging in the same business as that
of our Group which the Group might wish to establish
when justified by business expediency, without obtaining
Shareholders’ approval, on substantially the same terms
and conditions as the Contractual Arrangements; and

(e) Our Group will disclose details relating to the Contractual
Arrangements on an on-going basis.

Annual Review by the Independent Non-executive
Directors and the Auditor

The independent non-executive Directors, upon review of the
overall performance of and compliance with the Contractual
Arrangements, confirmed that:

(a) The transactions carried out during the Reporting Period
have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Contractual Arrangements;
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(b) No dividends or other distributions have been made by
the VIE Entities to Beijing Xunyi which are not otherwise
subsequently assigned or transferred to our Group; and

(c) Any new contracts entered into, renewed or reproduced
between the Group and the VIE Entities during the
Reporting Period are fair and reasonable, or advantageous
to the Shareholders, so far our Group is concerned and in
the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Auditor has carried out review procedures in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 "Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants annually
on the transactions carried out pursuant to the Contractual
Arrangements. The Auditor has confirmed in a letter to
the Board that the transactions carried out pursuant to the
Contractual Arrangements during the year ended December
31, 2022 had received the approval of the Board, had been
entered into in accordance with the relevant provisions of
the Contractual Arrangements and that no dividends or other
distributions had been made by the Company’s VIE Entities to
the holders of its equity interests which were not otherwise
subsequently assigned or transferred to the Group.

Please refer to note 33 to the consolidated financial statements
prepared under the HKFRSs for details of the significant related
party transactions. Information on connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions required to be disclosed
under the Listing Rules is set out in this section. Save as
disclosed above, the related party transactions disclosed in note
33 to the consolidated financial statements do not constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions of
the Company nor are they connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions exempt from disclosure requirements.
The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong
Listing Rules in relation to the relevant transactions.
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DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group made no charitable and other
donations.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company was not
engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material importance and no
litigation or claim of material importance is known to the Directors to
be pending or threatening against the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles of Association, every Director or other officers of
the Company acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company
shall be entitled to be indemnified against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which he or she may incur or sustain
in or about the execution of his or her duties in his or her office; be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company;
provided that this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect
of any fraud or dishonesty.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
legal action against its Directors and officers.

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

The Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Company had,
together with the management and the auditor of the Company,
reviewed the accounting principles and policies adopted by the
Group and the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 82 to 101 of this annual
report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total
issued shares, the prescribed minimum percentage of public float
approved by the Stock Exchange and permitted under the Listing
Rules, was held by the public at all times during the Reporting Period
and as of the date of this annual report.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

If the shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holdings, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of any
rights (including entitlements to any relief of taxation) in relation to,
the Shares, they are advised to consult an expert.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as the auditor of the
Company for the year ended December 31, 2022. The accompanying
financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution will be proposed
for approval by Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the Company.

There has been no change in the auditor of the Company since the
Listing Date.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Yu
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, March 30, 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Shares were listed on the Main Board on December 13, 2021. The
Board hereby presents to the Shareholders the corporate governance
report for the year ended December 31, 2022 (the “Period”).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of its shareholders and to
enhance its corporate value and accountability.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and code provisions as set out in the CG Code contained
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules to enable the Shareholders to
evaluate how the principles of corporate governance have been
applied.

The Board is of the view that during the Period, the Company has
applied all the applicable principles and code provisions as set out
in the CG Code except for the deviation from provision C.2.1 of the
CG Code. The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

Details of deviation are set out in the section headed “Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer” below in this corporate governance report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules for dealings in securities of the Company by the
Directors and relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished inside information of the Company.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the Period.

No incident of non-compliance of the Model Code by the relevant
employees was noted by the Company throughout the Period.
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THE BOARD
Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the businesses, strategic decisions and
performance of the Group. The Board has established Board
committees and has delegated to these Board committees various
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.

All Directors have carried out their duties in good faith and in
compliance with the standards of applicable laws and regulations, and
have acted in the interests of the Company and its shareholders at all
times.

All Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution
required from each Director to perform his responsibilities to the
Company.

Delegation of Management Function

The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the Company
including the approval and monitoring of policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, risk management and internal control systems,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflicts of
interest), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information to
ensure that Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations
are followed. Each Director is able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon
making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the senior management by the Board. The
delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Under
the leadership of the chief executive officer, the management is
responsible for the daily operation of the Company.
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Board Composition
The Board currently comprises the following Directors:
Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Yu (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhang Hui
Ms. Han Zhimei (appointed on June 28, 2022)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Geng Jiaqi
Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Liang Jihong (appointed on June 28, 2022)
Mr. Chan Peng Kuan
Mr. Li Xiaopei

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time pursuant
to the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive Directors are
expressly identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the
Listing Rules. Mr. Zhang Yu is the elder brother of Mr. Zhang Hui.
Saved as disclosed, there is no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship among the Directors. Biographical
details, including offices held in public companies or organizations
and other significant commitments of the Directors are set out in the
section “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Board has at all times
met the requirements under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors with at least one independent non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company has
also complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of independent non-executive Directors representing at
least one-third of the Board.

The Board has assessed the independence of all the independent
non-executive directors of the Company and considers all of them
to be independent having regard to (i) their annual confirmation
on independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, (ii) the
absence of involvement in the daily management of the Company,
and (iii) the absence of any relationships or circumstances which
would interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring
a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing
a balance in the Board for bringing effective independent judgement
on corporate actions and operations.
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The Company adopted a Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism
on March 24, 2022. This mechanism is designed to ensure a strong
independent element on the Board, which allows the Board effectively
exercises independent judgment to better safeguard shareholders’
interest. The Board will review the implementation and effectiveness
of such mechanism on an annual basis.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) are appointed for a specific term of three years, subject to
renewal after the expiry of the then current term.

Mr. Zhang Hui, Ms. Han Zhimei and Mr. Geng Jiagi are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings.
Under the Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their number
is not three or a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not
less than one-third shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
The Articles of Association also provides that all Directors appointed
to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at
the first general meeting after the appointment. The retiring Directors
shall be eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, Mr. Zhang Hui, Ms. Han Zhimei and Mr. Geng Jiaqi
will be subject to re-election at the forthcoming AGM. None of the
Directors who are proposed for re- election or any other Directors has
a service contract that is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes
in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive induction on
the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she
has appropriate understanding of the businesses and operations of
the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements. Continuing briefing and professional development for
Directors will be arranged whenever necessary.

Directors are encouraged to participate in appropriate continuous
professional development (“CPD") program to develop and refresh
their knowledge. Internal briefings for Directors will be arranged by
the Company and reading materials on relevant topics will be issued
to Directors where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expense.
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The records of CPD relating to director’s duties and regulatory and

business development that have been received by the Directors for the
Period are summarized as follows:

EEpE EIER
Name of Directors Type of Training
| ezall
Note
WITES
Executive Directors
RELLE AKB
Mr. Zhang Yu Aand B
SRS AKB
Mr. Zhang Hui Aand B
BN LW AKB
Ms. Han Zhimei® Aand B
FEHMITES
Non-executive Directors
BhsE T S A AKB
Mr. Geng lJiaqi Aand B
P2k vt o) AKB
Mr. Zhai Feng? Aand B
BIUFNTES
Independent Non-executive Directors
R L@ AKB
Ms. Liang Jihong®¥ Aand B
BRIm 9 5% & AKB
Mr. Chan Peng Kuan Aand B
FNEFEE AKB
Mr. Li Xiaopei Aand B
THF L AKB
Ms. Wang Jiping® Aand B

s
(1) BFIER

A HEEIRE - BIEETRAMEE -
P ®  BARIIED

B: BIEMABFERA - W= BT R
A MARR T

(2) BEEAEDTN202246 A28BELIEHTT
=

(3) THEFLETDN2022%66HA28BFTE L
FEHITES

(4) BEMRZLTRRBELLETDFIN2022%6 A
28R ERNTESERBILIRNITES

Notes:

Types of Training

A:  Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings,
seminars, conferences and workshops

B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines
and relevant publications

Mr. Zhai Feng resigned as non-executive Director on June 28, 2022

Ms. Wang Jiping resigned as independent non-executive Director on
June 28, 2022

Ms. Han Zhimei was appointed as executive Director and Ms. Liang Jihong
was as independent non-executive Director on June 28, 2022 respectively
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Attendance Records of the Board and Board Committee
Meetings and General Meetings

Regular Board meetings should be held at least four times a year
involving active participation, either in person or through electronic
means of communication, of a majority of Directors.

The Company fully complies with the requirement under the code
provision C.5.1 and C.2.7 of the CG Code to convene Board meetings
at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals and
arrange meetings between the Chairman and independent non-
executive Directors annually.

Since January 1, 2022 and up to December 31, 2022, one general
meeting and four Board meetings were held.

The attendance records of each Director at the general meeting, the
Board meetings and the Board committee meetings of the Company
held between January 1, 2022 and December 31, 2022 are set out in
the table below:

HERE, BRLENERETRY
Attendance/Number of Meetings Entitled to Attend

REAE 22 BKZEEY FEEe® RAZEE
General Audit Remuneration Nomination
EEnE Name of Directors Meeting Board Committee Committee  Committee
BITEE Executive Directors
REELE Mr. Zhang Yu 171 44 TEFANA 1/1 1/1
RIESAE Mr. Zhang Hui 171 414 TERN/A THEENA  TERANA
BEMgE L Ms. Han Zhimei® 0/0 34 DEAN/A TEANA  TEANA
FPTES Non-executive Directors
PEBEE Mr. Geng Jiagi 11 4/4 33 TEENA  TEANA
BBEED Mr. Zhai Feng® n 14 NERAN/A TEANA  TEANA
BYkHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
RUELT 70 Ms. Liang Jihong® 0/0 3/4 DEAN/A TEANA  TEANA
BRmEE Mr. Chan Peng Kuan 171 4/4 3/3 i n
NNt Mr. Li Xiaopei 171 4/4 3/3 i 0/0
FlEE LW Ms. Wang Jiping® 171 174 TEANA TEANA (7l
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Notes:

(1) Ms. Han Zhimei has been appointed as an executive Director since June
28, 2022.

(2)  Mr. Zhai Feng resigned as a non-executive Director on June 28, 2022.

(3)  Ms. Liang Jihong has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director since June 28, 2022.

(4)  Ms. Wang lJiping resigned as an independent non-executive Director on
June 28, 2022.

Since January 1, 2022 and up to December 31, 2022, the Chairman
held one meeting with the independent non-executive Directors
without the presence of other Directors.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information will be sent to all Directors at least three days before each
regular Board meeting or committee meeting (or such other period
as agreed) to keep the Directors apprised of the latest developments
and financial position of the Company and to enable them to make
informed decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate
and independent access to the senior management whenever
necessary.

The senior management, where necessary, attends regular Board
meetings and other Board and committee meetings to advise on
business developments, financial and accounting matters, statutory
compliance, corporate governance and other major aspects of the
Company.

The Articles of Association contains provisions requiring Directors to
abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving transactions in which such Directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.

The agenda of each Board meeting is in consultation with members of
the Board such that they are given an opportunity to include agenda
items, draft and executed Board minutes are sent in a timely manner
to all Directors for their comments and records, minutes of the Board
meetings recorded in sufficient details are kept by the Company
Secretary.

Directors and Officers Liability Insurance
The Company has arranged the directors and officers liability

insurance in respect of legal action against the Directors during the
Period. The insurance coverage will be reviewed on an annual basis.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. However, Mr. Zhang Yu
is the Chairman and chief executive officer of the Company (“Chief
Executive Officer”). With extensive experience in the hair health
industry and having served in the Company since its establishment,
Mr. Zhang Yu is in charge of the overall strategic planning, business
direction and operational management of the Group. The Board
considers that vesting the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer in the same person is beneficial to the management
of the Group. The balance of power and authority is ensured by the
operation of the Board, which comprises experienced and diverse
individuals. The Board currently comprises three executive Directors
(including Mr. Zhang Yu), one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors, and therefore has a strong
independent element in its composition.

During the Period, the positions of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer are held by Mr. Zhang Yu. The Chairman provides leadership
and is responsible for the effective functioning and leadership of the
Board. The Chief Executive Officer focuses on the Company’s business
development and daily management and operations generally. Their
respective responsibilities are clearly established and set out in writing.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company's affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority and duties.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee are posted on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are available to
Shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive Directors. The Board committees are
provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties, and upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of two independent non-executive
Directors being Mr. Chan Peng Kuan, Mr. Li Xiaopei and one non-
executive Director being Mr. Geng Jiagi. The chairman of the Audit
Committee is Mr. Chan Peng Kuan, who holds the appropriate
professional qualifications as required under Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21 of
the Listing Rules.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the CG Code. The main duties of the
Audit Committee are to assist the Board in reviewing the financial
information and reporting process, risk management and internal
control systems, effectiveness of the internal audit function, scope
of audit and appointment of external auditors, and arrangements to
enable employees of the Company to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters
of the Company.

The Audit Committee held three meetings to review, in respect of
the year ended December 31, 2022, the annual financial results
and reports and significant issues on the financial reporting,
operational and compliance controls, the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and internal audit function,
appointment of external auditors and engagement of non-audit
services and relevant scope of works and, connected transactions
and arrangements for employees to raise concerns about possible
improprieties.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors once without the
presence of the Executive Directors during the Period.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of two independent non-
executive Directors being Mr. Chan Peng Kuan and Mr. Li Xiaopei,
and one executive Director being Mr. Zhang Yu. The Remuneration
Committee is chaired by Mr. Chan Peng Kuan.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of
no less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The
primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include reviewing
and making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management,
the remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management; reviewing and/or approving matters relating to share
schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, and establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will
participate in deciding his/her own remuneration.
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Period
to consider the relevant matters regarding/to review and make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and
the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and senior
management.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the senior
management of the Company by bands for the year ended December
31, 2022 are set out below:

Number of
Remuneration Bands individuals
HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 6
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 3
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of two independent non-
executive Directors being Mr. Chan Peng Kuan and Mr. Li Xiaopei
(who served as the member since June 28, 2022), one former
independent non-executive Director being Ms. Wang Jiping (who
ceased to be the member since June 28, 2022), and one executive
Director being Mr. Zhang Yu. The chairman of the Nomination
Committee is Mr. Zhang Yu.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The principal
duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the Board
composition, developing and formulating relevant procedures for the
nomination and appointment of Directors, making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment and succession planning of
Directors, and assessing the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects as well as factors concerning
Board diversity as set out in the Company’s Board Diversity Policy.
The Nomination Committee would discuss and agree on measurable
objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and
recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships,
the Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s relevant
criteria as set out in the Director Nomination Policy that are necessary
to complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity,
before making recommendation to the Board.
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The Nomination Committee held one meeting to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors, to consider the qualifications
of the retiring Directors standing for re-election at the Annual
General Meeting, and to review the Board Diversity Policy and
Director Nomination Policy. The Nomination Committee considered
an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board is
maintained.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity of the Board and is available on the
website of the Company. The Company recognizes and embraces the
benefits of having a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the
Board level as an essential element in maintaining the Company’s
competitive advantage.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee
will review annually the structure, size and composition of the Board
and where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and to
ensure that the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile. In relation
to reviewing and assessing the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee will consider a number of aspects, including but not
limited to skills, professional experience, educational background,
knowledge, expertise, culture, independence, age and gender.

The Company aims to maintain a truly diverse Board which will
include and make good use of differences in the skills, regional and
industry experience, background, race, gender and other qualities of
Directors. These differences will be taken into account in determining
the optimum composition of the Board. All Board appointments
will be based on merit while taking into account diversity (including
gender diversity).

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement
the Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to
time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives.
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An analysis of the Board’s current composition based on the
measurable objectives is set out below:

Gender
Male: 5 Directors
Female: 2 Directors

Age Group

31-40: 3 Directors

41-50: 2 Directors

51-60: 2 Directors

61-70: 0 Director

Educational Background

Business Administration: 3 Directors
Account and Finance: 3 Directors
Legal: O Director

Other: 1 Director

Skills

Marketing: 3 Directors
Engineering: 1 Director
Other: 3 Directors

Business Experience

Accounting & Finance: 3 Directors

Legal: O Director

Experience Related to the Company’s
Business: 4 Directors

The Nomination Committee and the Board consider that the current
composition of the Board is sufficiently diverse and are of the view
that the current composition of the Board has achieved the objectives
set in the Board Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy to
ensure its effectiveness.

Gender Diversity

The Company values gender diversity across all levels of the Group.
As of December 31, 2022, the share of female employees (including
senior management) at the Group is 70% and the share of male
employees is 30%. The Board considers that the current gender
diversity is satisfactory. The Company will continue to devote efforts
in maintaining at least one-third of the Group’s management roles be
held by women, with a view to create a promising career path for the
Group’s outstanding female management personnel and to nurture
potential female successors to the Board in the future.

Director Nomination Policy

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection
and appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy which sets
out the selection criteria and process and the Board succession
planning considerations in relation to nomination and appointment
of Directors of the Company and aims to ensure that the Board has a
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the Company and the continuity of the Board and appropriate
leadership at Board level.
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The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed
candidate, including but not limited to the following:

o Character and integrity;

o Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

o Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service;

o Requirements of Independent Non-executive Directors on the
Board and independence of the proposed Independent Non-
executive Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules; and

o Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest
to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committee(s) of the Company.

The Company's specific procedures for the nomination and election
of Directors are as follows: qualified nomination bodies recommend
candidates for directorship to the Company. After conducting
a preliminary review of the qualifications and conditions of the
candidates for directorship, the Nomination Committee will proposing
the qualified candidates to the Board for consideration. Upon
consideration and approval by the Board, a written resolution will be
put forward at a general meeting for the election of the proposed
candidates for directorship.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for
the selection and appointment of new Directors and re-election of
Directors at general meetings.

During the Period, the Nomination Committee recommended to the
Board the appointment of one new executive Director, namely Ms.
Han Zhimei and one independent non-executive Director, namely Ms.
Liang Jihong. the appointment of Mr. Li Xiaopei as a member of the
Nomination Committee. The appointments were subject to a stringent
nomination process in accordance with the Director Nomination
Policy and the Board Diversity Policy, to ensure the Board possesses
the necessary skills, experience and knowledge in alignment with the
Company's strategy.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination Policy
to ensure its effectiveness.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

During the Period, the Board reviewed the Company’'s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and
Written Employee Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the
CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended December
31, 2022.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditors’ Report on page 154 of this annual report.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s external auditors
of the Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services
for the year ended December 31, 2022 amounted to RMB3,150
thousands and RMB1,115 thousands respectively.

An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external auditors of the
Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, in respect of audit services and
non-audit services for the year ended December 31, 2022 is set out

below:

et ENER

R 3% 38 Bl Service Category (AR%Fr)

Fees Paid / Payable

(RMB’000)

ZERTE Audit Services 3,150

FEIZBAR TS Non-audit Services 1,115

— P E AR E — Review of interim financial information 1,050

— B — Tax Consulting 65
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CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Company’s strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of the
risk management and internal control systems.
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The Company has developed and adopted various risk management
procedures and guidelines with regular review for implementation
by key business processes and office functions, including operational
management, medical advertising, procurement and sales, financial
reporting, human resources and information technology. The Audit
Committee reviews annually the continued effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems dealing with
risk and financial accounting and reporting, the effectiveness and
efficiency of operations, compliance with laws and regulations, and
risk management functions. Up to the date of this annual report, the
Audit Committee had reviewed and confirmed to the Board, that the
Group’s risk management and internal control system are effective
and adequate.

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems are
featured with well-defined organizational structure with appropriate
segregation of duties, limit of authority, reporting lines and
responsibilities. Aimed at providing reasonable assurance against
material errors, losses or fraud and safeguard assets of our Group, the
Company has established a sound risk management procedure which
comprised the following steps:

1. Risk identification: stores and functional departments identify
major and significant risks that could affect the key process of
their operations;

2. Risk assessment: the management assesses and evaluates the
identified risks according to their expected impacts and the
recurrence frequency; and

3.  Risk mitigation: the management plans effective control
exercises to mitigate the risks and monitor the progress of risk
management.

The management has confirmed to the Board and the Audit
Committee on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems for the year ended December 31, 2022.

The Internal Audit Department is responsible for performing
independent review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems. The Internal Audit
Department examined key issues in relation to the accounting
practices and all material controls and provided its findings and
recommendations for improvement to the Audit Committee. Any
urgent matters in relation to the relevant areas of internal control will
be reported in a timely manner. Review results and recommendations
in the form of written reports are submitted to the Audit Committee
for discussion and review. Follow up actions will be taken up by
the Internal Audit Department to ensure that material weaknesses
previously identified have been properly resolved.
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The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the
management report, reviewed the risk management and internal
control systems, including the financial, operational and compliance
controls, for the year ended December 31, 2022, and considered
that such systems are effective and adequate. The Board also believes
that the Company has sufficient resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programme and budget for the discharge of its
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting duties, as well as
those relating to the ESG performance and reporting.

The Company has established a whistleblowing policy and system
for employees, customers and suppliers to raise concerns, in
confidence and anonymity, with the Audit Committee about possible
improprieties in any matter related to the Company.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides
a general guide to the Directors, senior management and relevant
employees of the Company in handling confidential information,
monitoring information disclosure and responding to enquiries.
Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that
unauthorized access and use of inside information are strictly
prohibited.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Kam Mei Ha Wendy (“Ms. Kam”) and Ms. Han Zhimei have
been the joint company secretaries of the Company. Ms. Kam is
an executive director of the corporate services division of Tricor
Services Limited, a global professional services provider specializing
in integrated business, corporate and investor services. Ms. Kam has
over 25 years of experience in the corporate secretarial field and
is a Chartered Secretary, a Chartered Governance Professional and
a Fellow of both The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute
(formerly “The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries”) and
The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly “The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators”) in the United Kingdom.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the joint
company secretaries on corporate governance and board practices
and matters. Ms. Han Zhimei, finance director and joint company
secretary of the Company has been designated as the primary contact
person at the Company which would work and communicate with
Ms. Kam on the Company’s corporate governance and secretarial and
administrative matters.

During the Period, Ms. Kam and Ms. Han Zhimei have received no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training to refresh their skills
and knowledge in compliance with Rules 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company endeavors to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings and
other general meetings. At the annual general meeting, directors are
available to meet shareholders and answer their enquiries.

The Company has in place a Shareholders’ communication policy. The
policy aims at promoting effective communication with Shareholders
and other stakeholders, encouraging Shareholders to engage actively
with the Company and enabling Shareholders to exercise their rights
as Shareholders effectively.

The Company communicates with the Shareholders and/or potential
investors mainly in the following ways: (i) the holding of annual
general meeting and extraordinary general meetings, if any, which
may be convened for specific purposes which provide opportunities
for the Shareholders to communicate directly to the Board; (ii) the
publication of announcements, annual reports, interim reports and/
or circulars as required under the Listing Rules and press release
providing updated information of the Group; (iii) the availability
of latest information of the Group on the Company’s website at
http:.//www.yonghegroup.cn; (iv) the holding of press conference(s)
from time to time; and (v) the prompt responses to Shareholders’
enquiries.

During the Reporting Period, the Board reviewed the implementation
and effectiveness of the Shareholders’ communication policy,
including the multiple communication channels for Shareholders in
place and the steps taken to handle Shareholders’ enquiries, and
considered that the Shareholders’ communication policy has been
properly implemented and effective.

On June 28, 2022, the annual general meeting of 2022 of the
Company considered and approved the amendments to the Articles of
Association. For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated April 22, 2022 and the circular dated April 28, 2022. An up
to date version of the Articles of Association is also available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange's website.

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolution
should be proposed for each substantially separate issue at general
meetings, including the election of individual Director. All resolutions
put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to
the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange after each general meeting.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of dividends.
The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend payout
ratio. Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and
the Group and the conditions and factors as set out in the Dividend
Policy, dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the Board
during a financial year and any final dividends for a financial year will
be subject to the shareholders’ approval.

The Group is not aware of any arrangement under which a
Shareholder has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
should be proposed for each substantially separate issue at general
meetings of the Company, including the election of individual
Directors. All resolutions put forward at general meetings of the
Company will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and
poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange after each general meeting of the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

In accordance with Article 12.3 of the Articles of Association, general
meetings shall be convened on the written requisition of any two
or more members of the Company deposited at the principal office
of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases
to have such a principal office, the registered office specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitions, provided that
such requisitions held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.
General meetings may also be convened on the written requisition
of any one member which is a recognized clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) of the Company deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have
such a principal office, the registered office specifying the objects
of the meeting and signed by the requisitions, provided that such
requisitions held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. If the Board
does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition
proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within a further 21
days, the requisition(s) themselves or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene
the general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that
in which meetings may be convened by the Board provided that any
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meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisition(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General
Meeting

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Act. However, Shareholders who wish to propose
resolutions may follow Article 12.3 of the Articles of Association
for requisitioning an extraordinary general meeting and including
a resolution at such meeting. The requirements and procedures of
Article 12.3 of the Articles of Association are set out above.

Putting Forward Enquiry/Requisition to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries or requisitions to the Board,
Shareholders may send written enquiries/requisitions to the Company.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requisitions as mentioned
above to the following:

Name: Yonghe Medical Group Co., Ltd.

Address: 5/F, Manulife Place, 348 Kwun Tong Road, Kowloon, Hong
Kong

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must send the original duly
signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case
may be) to the above address, and provide their full name, contact
details and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.
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REPORT OVERVIEW

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report ("ESG”) covers
the period from January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022 and involves
Yonghe Medical Group Co., Ltd. ("Yonghe Medical”) and its
subsidiaries in the consolidated financial statement of annual report.

For the convenience of expression, it is also referred to as “the
Group”, “Group” in this Report.

Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Reporting Principles:

° Materiality: In compliance with the materiality principle of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (HKEX), this Report
discloses the Board’s oversight of ESG matters, stakeholder
communication, the process to identify material ESG-related
topics and the matrix for material ESG-related topics.

o Quantitative: This Report discloses the statistic standards,
methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation tools used,
and the source of conversion factors used for the reporting of
quantitative key performance indicators which are described in
the relevant sections.

o Balance: This Report objectively presents the Group’s
performance during the reporting period by disclosing indicators
involving both positive and negative information.

o Consistency: The statistical methods used to disclose data in this
Report are consistent.

Basis of Preparation:

This Report has been prepared with reference to Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide ("ESG Reporting Guide”) as set
out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules, the Global Reporting Initiative
Sustainability Reporting Standards (“GRI Standards”) and the United
Nations Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs).

This report has complied with all the mandatory disclosure
requirements and the “comply or explain” provisions of the ESG
Reporting Guide.

HONORS & RECOGNITION

Yonghe Medical adheres to standardized governance and operation,
upholds the concept of sustainable development, and strives to
practice and assume environmental and social responsibilities. Yonghe
Medical has won many important awards in the sector, capital market,
leadership and other fields during the reporting period.
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In 2022, Yonghe Medical won the environmental, social and
governance awards as follows:

. §K1EE22022 EDGE AWARDSFEEE AR EBE O
° 2022 EDGE AWARDS Sponsored by TMTPost

. 1BEr2022 Bl E S B FETOP10

° TOP 10 Chinese Chain Medical Institutions of 2022 Rated by EqualOcean
o 2MHAAAUEIRE2022FEEBEER LT AA
° A Valuable Hong Kong Listed Company of 2022 Rated by 21st Century Business Herald

o  REERR202D2FEEMEBEAIFEE

° An Outstanding Health Innovation Company of 2022 Rated by The Economic Observer

s REEKRKEER

° Gelonghui Growth Value Award

o  EIRE022FEREHBNTAEEAY —KE
° Zhang Yu, One of 2022 Top 10 Health New Forces Leaders Rated by China Times

YONGHEGROUP
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

With the concept of “good doctor” in mind, Yonghe Medical is
committed to the medical hair care service market, providing high-
quality services for patients and benefiting human health. In an
environment full of uncertainty, Yonghe Medical chooses to explore
the path of sustainable development for the Group by taking the
established strategy and values as the guidance and taking the
initiative to change.

Contributions to the Global Sustainable Development
Goals (SDGs)

In September 2015, the United Nations formally adopted the 2030
Agenda for Sustainable Development, putting forward 17 Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs), which aims to thoroughly tackle
development issues in the three dimensions of society, economy and
environment in a comprehensive manner from 2015 to 2030, and to
move to the path of sustainable development.
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Yonghe Medical actively responds to the SDGs implementation
plan, and cares about the sustainable development of itself and the
industry while focusing on the medical service market. We take a
comprehensive look at the relevance of SDGs to the Group’s ESG
practices, and incorporate them into the strategy formulation and
business implementation, in an effort to contribute to the global
SDGs.

FEZERE
Protect the
green homeland
BMBRERERYIN  RSER
RURGEFIRE ; 2 [0 BiR
INEESR (R B 32

Bzite ARiE
What's taken from
society is used for society
EMSREEEEMESRES B
TR S B ERRE © MAESHRE
R HEITRARRR

We conduct a tight control over the
discharge of wastes by improving the
efficiency of resources and energy use

and responding to the “carbon peaking
and carbon neutrality” goals, as well

Through the connection of the health
profession with the needs of the community,
we actively participate in the community
volunteer services. We expand the
enterprise-university-research institute

as strengthening the climate risk f_ﬁhgﬁﬂﬁﬁ ecosystem and promote the shared . ﬁ?ﬂgidﬁgﬁ% )
management. eI iy development of the industry. rom a “Good Doctor” to

medical service
BRDINEERY  BHINEES
BERBRRES  BEGENERERS
We focus on hair-related care service
and are committed to enabling more
patients to experience high-quality and
affordable medical services.

“Doctor Team Strengthening
Program”
RMEHLERE - TEST - T2
BRRSERE  RILERET RRESE
= W
We support women’s development by
creating a diverse, equal and inclusive
workplace. We prohibit the use of child
labor and forced labor. We empower
employees to achieve the
development.

EARBEARAZRRMOATE M

Four Major Action Directions of the Sustainable Development of Yonghe Medical
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STATEMENT OF THE BOARD

The Board of Directors is the highest body responsible for the
management and disclosure of ESG matters in respect of Yonghe
Medical. The Board comprehensively supervises the progress of
the Group’s ESG work, and holds ESG communication meetings
on a regular basis. Yonghe Medical has set up an ESG working
group at the management level, which is in charge of identifying
and evaluating ESG risks and reviewing ESG plans and objectives.
The Board undertakes as follows: the Group has fully disclosed
the progress and results of the Group's 2022 ESG work in strict
compliance with the disclosure requirements of Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide of HKEX. The Board guarantees that
this Report is free from any false records, misleading statements or
major omissions, and the Board assumes individual and joint liability
for the authenticity, accuracy and completeness of this Report.
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Exg

Board of Directors

EHESGEH -
EBESGHRER
Review ESG matters and
monitor the progress towards
ESG objectives

ESG MANAGEMENT
Governance structure

The Board of Directors is the highest decision-making body for the
ESG work of the Group, including evaluating the ESG risks in respect
of the Group, ensuring that the Group has established an effective
ESG risk management system, and reviewing and approving the
disclosure information in the Group's ESG Report.

In March 2023, the Board of Directors reviewed the 2022 ESG Report
of the Group, and approved the disclosure of the Report.

In 2022, in order to promote the continuous improvement of ESG
management, the Investor Relations Department, as the main
department responsible for ESG work, was in charge of supervising
the commitment and performance of ESG key issues, evaluating the
Group’s ESG risks, and reporting ESG related work and progress
to the Board of Directors on a regular basis. In addition, the Audit
Department, as the communication and coordination department,
was in charge of encouraging other functional departments and sub-
groups to carry out ESG related work such as energy conservation and
emission reduction, medical safety protection and customer service
improvement in daily work. All functional departments and sub-groups
were responsible for implementing ESG work within the scope of their
responsibilities according to their own business and functions, and for
cooperating with the Group’s annual ESG information disclosure and
reporting.

As of December 31, 2022, there were seven directors in the Board
of Directors, including three independent directors and two female
directors.

N

BEMIM
Various Business
Departments

ESGI{E/hE
ESG Working Group

HIEESGETE
HESGEEEIA i
Develop ESG plans to fully
integrate ESG into
business operations

RIBRBIERAR
MITABRAESGIIE
Perform ESG work according
to business line contents

EAREBEESGEIRRE

Yonghe Medical’s ESG Governance Structure
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* HMERS

Honest Transaction
o ERYER
o HEREEREEAME

Use

e BEMEEH

o ZEREHIE
Participate in the

HRFEETNEEM
Materially to stakeholders

o TR
Industry Research
o REEY

Green Operation

Waste Management

Responsible Marketing
o HEESEIRITE R B

Formulation of Standards

Identification of material topics

In 2022, the Group maintained close communication with internal
and external stakeholders. According to the ESG management
system and business developments of the Group, we identified and
evaluated material ESG topics and prioritized them according to their
importance through internal special seminars and questionnaires for
internal and external stakeholders. The Board of Directors reviewed
and approved the identification, evaluation and prioritization of
material topics so as to ensure the formulation of the strategy and
vision based on the systematically analyzed ESG topics, and to
urge the Group to continuously improve the ESG performance for
satisfying the requirements and expectations of stakeholders. Based
on the evaluations of the materiality of each applicable ESG topic to
our business and its impacts on stakeholders, we have formed the
following materiality matrix and ranking, which are further discussed
in the subsequent sections of this Report:

c BEREZE
Medical Safety

s EFRANERERE
Customer Privacy and
Information Security

Efficiency of Resources and Energy o BERKSES

Medical Service Quality

o HEEE SR
Safeguard the Rights and
Interests of Customers

Supply Chain Environmental and o HEBEE
Social Risk Business Ethics

c BiEREHER

Data Security and Management

¢ EEREREES

Information Disclosure and Quality

o EREE

Risk Management

o EEHEZ R
Health and Safety

o SEHIERER
Training and Development
o REHBERE

Intellectual Property Protection

&

Low

= T
@
>

HAEENERM
Materially to the Group

EEEEBEH B4R Identification Results of Material Topics
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Communication with stakeholders

The Group attaches great importance to the mutual communication
with all stakeholders. The Group has openly communicated with
all stakeholders on their expectations and opinions by establishing

EFz=AET - BEREENRE - BT & various communication mechanisms. The Group’s stakeholders include
EEWE  RFEMEE - SEBH BT investors, shareholders, governments, regulators, customers, patients,
partners, employees, the environment, communities and so on.

RE - HRE -

MEBHEES BB BEFRR BIEEE E
Stakeholders Expectations and Demands Communication and Response
BEERE e  RERDREER o EHmE

Investors/Shareholders

BT M EEE s
Governments and
Regulatory authority

BEPMEE

Customers and Patients

o Investment returns and growth

s  HEmRE

o Protection of rights and interests

s GFEREERRAIES

o Information transparency and efficient
communication

e BEERERRER

° Corporate governance and risk
management

o EFEBEMR

o Comply with laws and regulations

s BITHBEME

o Fulfilling tax responsibilities

o IREBEHGRBABERERE

. Supporting sustainable economic,
social and environmental
development

e REBERES

e Ensuring healthcare service quality

o RRHEBEBERY

e Providing high-quality healthcare
services

o EPEmEEILRE

e Customer rights and privacy
protection

o Regular reporting

o REHEEKER

e Timely information disclosure

e RERREE

o Investor meetings

e INEEREFERERER

o Further efforts for risk control and
anti-corruption management

e BREXE

o General meeting of shareholders

e ARKE

° Compliant operation

o KEFBAM

e Taking the initiative to pay taxes
according to the law

s BIOKEEREER

. Practicing green and low-carbon
development

e ERMZ

o Information submission

o  ERBE

. Information disclosure

o EBPAMMRBRAR

. Customer consultation and service
hotline

s EPWEERM

° Customer satisfaction survey

o TEFTPREmEBMRERE

e Improving the measures for protecting

customers’ rights and privacy
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Stakeholders Expectations and Demands Communication and Response
BIERH o MESABEERERE REHEREE
Partners . Supply chain sustainability management Standardizing the supplier management
o AfEHE - HEEZRE FRIERAE
° Win-win cooperation and common Conducting project cooperation
development BRI ERRE
Attaching importance to intellectual
property protection
BT o HEEBRMRE B FBREMNER
Employees e Remuneration and welfare guarantee Optimizing the remuneration and
o HEENREIRMERERE welfare system
e Promoting career development and ik e S gl
skill development Regular meetings and specialized
o BEREERZLE training
e Occupational health and safety I e
Strengthening safety supervision
RIE o HIMMER ZRE=TT A RHRE R R IR B R R
Environment ° Emissions management ¥
o HIRE[EFE Entrusting a qualified third party to

o'

Community

Energy conservation and consumption
reduction

E /N

Participation in public welfare
activities

recycle and treat medical waste

BERE BRI B3 I 53 4R

Energy consumption monitoring and
wastes sorting

W

Participating in volunteer services
FEARESEE

Carrying out public welfare and
charitable activities
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1. WITH GREAT OR NAL ,
SHOULDERING THE MEDICAL HAIR CARE
MISSION

As a leading group specializing in the provision of medical hair
care services, we have our business ethics rooted in our business
values as well as the policies and regulations, external initiatives
and international norms we shall follow. Yonghe Medical constantly
improves the internal control management system, intensifies the
supervision and management of medical safety, strengthens the
publicity of combating corruption and upholding integrity, and
guarantees the long-term sustainable development of the Group.

This chapter corresponds to the following SDG.

'I 6 PEACE, JUSTICE
AND STRONG
INSTITUTIONS

Yy,

1.1 Internal control compliance

Yonghe Medical constantly improves the construction of internal
control system by intensifying the supervision of internal audit as
well as the internal control consciousness and responsibility of the
Board and key positions. The Compliance Management Committee
was established, and the Rules of Procedure for the Compliance
Management Committee were taken as the standard to conduct
continuous monitoring and irregular spot checks on the compliance
management of the important business of the Group. In addition,
directors, supervisors and senior managers were organized to
learn regulatory compliance knowledge to improve the corporate
governance level of the management.

1.2 Protection of business information

In order to strengthen the protection of business information, the
Group has developed the Information Security Management System,
the Employee Online Behavior Management System, the Computer
Room Management System, the Provisions on the Management of
Classified Documents and other information management systems.
The Employee Handbook clearly states that employees shall strictly
keep all sensitive information confidential, including documents,
materials and photos. All employees are required to sign the Employee
Confidentiality Agreement upon entry. Efforts are made to encrypt
and manage key data and information and electronic documents, and
periodically check the identity of users in key systems. In addition,
information system administrators are required to periodically review
cross-over work logs.
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1.3 RESEE Anti-corruption management

Yonghe Medical attaches great importance to business ethics and
adheres to the high level of business ethics. Yonghe Medical has
developed the Anti-money Laundering Policy, Risk Compliance
Management Manual, Anti-Fraud Reporting Mailbox Management
System, Relevant Authorization for Financial Expenditure and other
systems, which clearly define the regulations that employees should
abide by in terms of business ethics. The Group expressly prohibits
corruption and bribery, extortion, fraud, money laundering, monopoly,
unfair competition, and insider trading.

The Group maintains a working environment of openness, trust
and respect, and has established a special supervision and reporting
channel. All stakeholders are encouraged to actively use the reporting
channel to report any suspected illegal, irregular or improper behavior.
Once a report is received, we shall strictly comply with the provisions
on the identity information of the informant, ensure that the privacy
and security of the informant shall be well protected and that the
informant shall not receive any discrimination, unfair treatment
and other retaliation, and that the informant shall be protected
to the maximum extent. In addition, for various kinds of reporting
information special personnel shall be designated to follow up and
investigate it.

During the reporting period, there were no important events
regarding corruption or commercial bribery in the Group.

Reporting Channel

E-mail for reporting: jubao@zhifa.cn
Internal DingTalk platform: employee reporting module

Anti-corruption training

In order to further cultivate the compliance consciousness of
employees and strive to create a corporate culture of integrity,
honesty and compliance, the Group has vigorously promoted anti-
corruption training. We have not only provided relevant content at
the orientation training, but have also required senior managers and
employees in important positions to sign the Letter of Honesty and
Moral Commitment upon onboarding.

During the reporting period, the Group provided one anti-corruption
training for the Board of Directors, one anti-corruption training for
the management, and corruption prevention training for all employees
through the online platform. The coverage rate of anti-corruption
training was 100%.
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Case: Online platform of corruption prevention training for all
employees

In 2022, the Group launched a special course platform for corruption
prevention and compliance training to provide employees with
professional compliance knowledge and to foster a clean company
culture.
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of the Group. We have strictly complied with the Regulations
on the Administration of Medical Institutions, Measures for the
Administration of Medical Cosmetology Services, Regulations
on the Supervision and Administration of Medical Devices, Drug
Administration Law of the People’s Republic of China and other laws
and regulations. We formulated the Contraindications and Treatment
Opinions for Hair Transplant Surgery (2021 version), the Medical
Adverse Event Reporting Management System V2.1, the Emergency
Management System for Branch Hospitals V2.0, the Medical Treatment
Service Process V2.0, the Unified Standards of Surgical Operation 2.0,
and the Notice on the Quality Control and Management Measures
for Medical Records, and so on. In addition, we have also established
a comprehensive management system so as to strictly monitor the
quality of medical products, properly deal with emergencies, and
ensure the safety and stability of medical services with steady and
lean management.
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REEAA EI*?"EE&%?%&E@%F& During the reporting period, there were no product recalls resulting
%%Iiﬂ’]ﬁcﬁ: ° from product safety and health problems.

EEEE
Supervision and Management

KUBFREEEREZES  THHRBEL2HENAS
IR RS ENEL -

Establish the medical quality management committee,
conduct regular medical safety inspection and
self-inspection, and make timely rectification and
optimization of problems once found.

EasEE

Emergency Management

BUAREEEHE  ARESFHNEERE RETRE
HBRABZRE -

Establish a corresponding management system and specify
the treatment process and methods of emergencies to
ensure the safety of personnel.

Practicing Requirements

mEE
Supplies Management

ZHHAX KRB LEAORIUSHEREE - BEASTE
BIEIER - 2MBWFHTE - RBAREKT -
Medical clinics and doctors are required to obtain relevant

qualifications before starting work Medical workers receive
regular training and evaluation and attend academic seminars
to enhance their practicing level.

RS SEE
JAF A=
Establish the standardized process of quality inspection, speofy

the access standards of various medical drugs, devices
consumables and others, and formulate the three classification
standards of the validity period of supplies.

EABELZEEREEBR
Yonghe Medical's Medical Safety Management System

2. ;%E;'?IDWE@Q@EHE 2. PROVIDING HIGH-QUALITY SERVICES TO
5 XS%IEJ%ECDUSTOMERS FEEL AT EASE AND

EREBEIHEEBETETHT  BiEL Yonghe Medical has been deeply involved in the hair-related

EOBEZERN  SEORBES  ERAR healthcare industry for more than ten years. With advanced hair

BEAENNRBEREESTERRESL - transplant technology and honest service concept, the Group has
promoted the development and progress of the industry while
improving its comprehensive strength.

AEHESDG BIZ This chapter corresponds to the following SDGs:

GOOD HEALTH CLEAN WATER
AND WELL-BEING AND SANITATION

INDUSTRY, INNOVATION
AND INFRASTRUCTURE

6 BRI 9 EX- fI3H
B RIE HEERIE

3 s

| o

‘I RESPONSIBLE PARTNERSHIPS
CONSUMPTION FOR THE GOALS
AND PRODUCTION

c,\o@

o

17 &uaas™
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Women'’s
aesthetic hair
transplant brand
“Yonghe Fa
Zhi Chu”
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Case: Yonghe Medical won the “2022 EDGE AWARDS”

Sponsored by TMTPost, 2022 EDGE AWARDS are the innovation
awards with industry authority and keen insight. Yonghe Medical
won the “2022 EDGE AWARDS” for its contribution to promoting the
return of consumer healthcare to the essence of the health industry,
its focus on technological innovation and patients experience, and the
high-quality growth potential of its products and services.

2.1 High-quality service

Adherence to the essence of medical treatment and provision of high-
quality medical services are the foundation of sustainable development
of the Group. Yonghe Medical continues to improve the industry-wide
chain service system, to create the medical hair care management
service system integrating “treatment, nourishment, hair transplant
and wig”, for the sake of constantly satisfying the diverse needs of
customers for hair care services.

BEBERE
W& |
Medical wig
brand “Harvard”

HEBE Mg
[ZERIES ]
Professional hair
transplant brand
“Yonghe Hair

Transplant”

B B mhg
[ 52 B3 |
Medical hair-nourishing
brand”Svenson”

ERBEREER

Yonghe Medical Service System

During the reporting period, Yonghe Medical served more than
100,000 patients, operated 72 directly-owned chain institutions and
completed nearly 40,000 operations. We have now established a
professional medical team of more than 1,000 medical professionals,
including 294 physicians and nearly 1,000 nurses.
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2.1.1 Service quality

Yonghe Medical always regards service quality as the lifeline of the
development of the Group. Yonghe Medical continuously strengthens
the service quality management. In addition, Yonghe Medical
continues to make progress in terms of doctors’ diagnosis and
treatment capability, technological innovation, medical accessibility,
digital upgrading and emergency management.

From “Good Doctor, Good Service” to “Strong Physician
Program”

Yonghe Medical embraces the concept of “good doctors provide good
services for patients”. In 2022, Yonghe Medical officially implemented
the “Strong Physician Program”, aiming to build a one-stop hair
healthcare service platform, improve the technical ability and diagnostic
ability of the medical team, promote academic exchanges, and promote
the specialized and standardized upgrading of the business.

1) Good surgical doctors

The “Strong Physician Program” clearly requires surgeons to conduct
a higher standard of comprehensive technical upgrading certification
in hair transplant. It has not only put forward the corresponding
certification requirements for business heads and hospital directors,
but has also made higher surgery requirements for hair transplant
doctors at the levels of heads and directors in Yongxiang, so as to
increase the technical ability of all Yonghe Medical surgical doctors to
a new level.

2) Good outpatient doctors

“Good doctors” include both “good surgical doctors” and “good
outpatient doctors”. The “integrated consultation management
system” of Yonghe Medical requires outpatient doctors to meet the
following requirements:

gﬁﬂﬁl [BA# | Two “clearly”

\ gﬁﬂﬁ [BE%9] Two “able” \

v PREEDEN R R s R EERE

Clearly diagnose common skin and hair diseases

BRHE S KRB 2 AR RS BAUE AR )R T 22

Clearly provide corresponding treatment plans for

different hair loss groups and different hair loss stages

v BESMIRIEEEE T - PIDAR

Able to make hair transplant and mesoblast treatment

A HRAMREN R

J Able to offer a comprehensive diagnosis and treatment

plan
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Service Capability

15%

3) Hierarchical diagnosis and treatment system

In 2022, the Group launched a hierarchical diagnosis and treatment
system for hair transplant doctors with doctor value as the core. This
system is different from the “doctor title system” in public hospitals.
It is a comprehensive, multi-factor, three-dimensional and dynamic
evaluation system established according to the characteristics and
attributes of the hair transplant industry. Its core is to scientifically
evaluate and grade professional hair transplant doctors through
academic ability, surgical clinical experience and personalized design
level. This system design plays a good role in establishing a ladder
professional team with distinct hierarchy and high recognition,
improving the teaching and training mechanism of doctors, opening
up the promotion channel, and forming a complete closed loop of
services and management.

g ey
BHIRE 2
Healthcare Quality

50%

15288 1 5 4
SER
Hierarchical evaluation
system for hair
transplant doctors

HEEFR

Working Years

20%

ERBEEIRLERRNOEE

Scoring Weight of Yonghe Medical Hierarchical System

RiRIMEEMERT R

FESSb IR RIFT A - EARBEAERKA—R
HOHE S R AT B 0 LA R BB R AR B0 R I SR E i %
BIKEE - BUERIEIRITEE L - BREH 2
Pk - 2022F - EREBHEBBEKEIF
HEEBBETEER - FRTERFUEEMN
WERERIEEZFIEASR  BETHEZE
£ WENEEE  EANITIEES -

Technological innovation for hair solutions

In terms of strengthening technological innovation, Yonghe Medical
has always been relying on first-class hair transplant technical ability
and ultra-strict technical evaluation criteria, to keenly grasp industry
changes, and actively respond to new challenges. In 2022, Yonghe
Medical contributed to the development of medical hair care service
industry through business innovation, and grasped the whole category
of hair transplant technology solutions based on FUE technology,
including hair transplant without shaving, micro-needle dense hair
transplant, gem knife punching hair transplant, etc.
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Medical Accessibility
1) Comprehensive diagnosis and treatment plan

The “comprehensive diagnosis and treatment plan” requires doctors
to provide customized and comprehensive diagnosis and treatment
services of “one case for one person” based on patients’ subjective
needs and objective conditions of hair loss. For example, if the health
condition of a patient does not allow hair transplantation, then
the doctor will use drug therapy, laser physiotherapy, medical hair
nourishment, and other non-surgical treatment, and the patient will
be strongly recommended to receive no surgery.

2) Medical hair nourishment brings the “common
prosperity” in the hair healthcare field

Medical hair nourishment combines a variety of non-surgical
treatments, including medical devices and drugs, to provide pre- and
post-operation medical care for hair transplant patients and to satisfy
the various needs of patients who are unnecessary or unsuitable for
hair transplant. Yonghe Medical is committed to the same-frequency
resonance of low-frequency and high-price hair transplant treatment
with high-frequency and low-price medical hair nourishment, thereby
creating the “common prosperity” in the hair healthcare field.

Digitalization improves the service level

Yonghe Medical attaches great importance to the positive role played
by digitalization in improving service quality, boosting business
development and strengthening the governance of the Group.
Yonghe Medical has endeavored to build the three platforms of
digital marketing, digital service and digital operation collaboration,
and continued to improve the digital and intelligent level and the
efficiency of the business operation system.

o Yonghe Medical digital marketing platform: through the analysis
of the whole chain customer service data, to realize accurate
customer acquisition and efficient conversion, so as to constantly
cut marketing costs.

o Yonghe Medical digital service platform: to enhance the online
service capability for users through the Internet hospital, raise
the digital and intelligent level of diagnosis and treatment
services, and constantly improve patients’ satisfaction and the
operation efficiency of the hospital.

o Yonghe Medical digital collaborative operation platform: to
remarkably enhance the operating efficiency of the functional
systems through the digital integration of the supply chain,
financial, medical, human resources and other business systems.
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2.1.2 Customer Service

Yonghe Medical upholds the service concept of “patient orientation”,
and is committed to providing customers with a satisfactory medical
experience with good environment, considerate services, and
reassuring convenience.

One-stop service

Yonghe Medical’s one-stop services include early treatment and
testing, mid-stage diagnosis and treatment planning, treatment,
and later-stage care services. Prior to surgery, medical practitioners
are required to sign the commitment document 5+5 Reassuring and
Worry-free Guarantee to ensure patients’ right to know; Through
the comprehensive diagnosis report, doctors can provide patients
with professional hair transplant surgery, medical hair-nourishing
services, wig products and other comprehensive one-stop treatment
plans. After surgery, a professional service team is available to offer
postoperative consultation and care services for patients. According
to Yonghe Medical Guidelines of Yonghe Medical Services of
Important Notes after Surgery, we can standardize the requirements
of postoperative tracking services, and conduct online customer
satisfaction questionnaires on a regular basis to obtain patients’
feedback and opinions on medical services in a timely manner.

Digital service

With the help of the digital information system, the Group has
improved the transparency of services and the effectiveness of
consultation. At the clinical reception stage, we have provided real-
time and intelligent reply to customers’ online consultation, quickly
and accurately identified patients’ needs, and proposed professional
service plans. At the surgical stage, real-time data and live surgical
broadcast have contributed to surgical transparency, improved
patients’ treatment experience, thereby making patients and their
families feel at ease and assured.

Safeguard the rights and interests of customers

Yonghe Medical has strictly abided by the Regulations on the
Prevention and Treatment of Medical Disputes, Measures on the
Management of Complaints for Medical Institutions and other
laws and regulations. In addition, Yonghe Medical formulated and
implemented the Process of Yonghe for Customer Complaint Handling
to specify the responsibility and principles of handling customer
complaints, regularly reexamine complaints, supervise and inspect the
handling status of complaints, and constantly enhance the timeliness,
accuracy and rationality of complaint handling. Yonghe Medical also
organized relevant training and typical complaint-sharing meetings,
and arranged case analysis and experience summary learning for all
kinds of complaints, so as to continuously improve the service level.
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The Group has set up an official hotline 400-888-6667 and an
official complaint platform of Yonghe Medical to provide smooth
communication channels for patients. During the reporting period,
there were 752 customer complaints received by the Group, with
the customer complaint rate of 0.11%, and the customer complaint
feedback rate of 100%.

2.1.3 Privacy protection

The Group has abided by the information security requirements
of national laws, regulatory regulations and industry norms. The
Group formulated and followed some policies and systems such as
Regulations on Further Strengthening the Management of Medical
Records in clinic, Rules and Regulations for Yonghe Customer Service
Center — Information Security, Management System of the Group's
Work-related Mobile Phone and Number, Customer Resources Security
Management System, and so on, for the sake of achieve the effective
protection of customers’ private information in terms of password
permission management, medical record management, self-inspection
and rectification, confidentiality education and others, and ensuring
the protection of customers’ privacy from any infringement.

RISEREE
Password .
Permission
Management .

o DEHHRRETFARER - BUSTIHEREL

Set different permissions according to classification and level, and strictly implement the password approval and
acquisition procedures;

REHEBASRZARRETEA

Disable the system account of any departing employee in time;

BUBBOEBELRERE  ReBBREER  BREBNZ2M -

Establish a strict password approval and authorization process and improve password setting requirements so as
to ensure the security of passwords.

mEERE
Medical Records .
Management

EEEF

o IAREEREAMTE
Specify and standardize the review process and seal requirements of medical records;

REBFRENRBNL -

Keep and destroy medical records in strict accordance with the requirements to ensure the confidentiality of

patents’ medical records.

BIRRPMRE - $HER

BHEEY .
Self-check and
Rectification

FREPERLZEER HWEEHE FTPERRETHESE  HABEEHEE -
Conduct customer information security rectification, make regular self-inspection of important data and customer
information, and guard against related information leakage.

REHE
Confidentiality
Education

and education;

o FRREHERE - BR2ERIRTHEINHKE
Conduct confidentiality education and training to ensure that all employees receive confidentiality training

o NMAEEHBENE  HREINREEBMN  AFRZLIENERE -
Make more efforts for publicity and education, enhance the confidentiality consciousness of employees, and
highlight the importance of confidentiality.

ERBERILRETHEG

Action Measures of Yonghe Medical for Protecting Medical Privacy
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2.2 Responsible marketing

In strict compliance with the Advertisement Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Administrative Measures on Medical Advertisement,
Enhancement Guidance for the Medical Cosmetology Advertising and
other laws and regulations, the Group has developed the Measures
for Advertising Management, which stipulates that all marketing
contents and forms shall be reviewed by the company headquarters,
and that activities with exaggerated or false information shall be
strictly prohibited to ensure that the brand image is accurate and
unified and the publicity is true and reasonable.

CHIIAEE TEMEMEESE
CAREI R ERENAR

EEEE -

Training Management:

Advertising and compliance

~

HEZEE  BERMAOTRANTETEE
% WS (BRESEEER) -

Review Management: All advertisements
shall be subject to the prior internal and

training is provided from time to l> platform review before release, for which
time to strengthen the Medical Advertisement Examination Certificate
consciousness of compliance shall be obtained.
publicity in all regions.
A4
\/
A
BHEE  FERBTEHIONMTHEHAS - 1§
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FH o NEAEITTHE - Eier HAEST LEERE - HIER LREMNE

HE  EBREHERTBENDE

overselling, false promises and
Kunnecessary medical treatment.

Sales Management: Marketing contents
such as service price shall be subject to
strict examination and approval. Random
inspection shall be carried out to prohibit

)—l;r/\

Release Management: Each region regularly

4l analyzes and evaluates the release contents to
ensure the authenticity and consistency of the
publicity contents. In addition, the Group
conducts regular survey and statistics of online
publicity channels and identifies potential risks
of online channels. j
EABEEHERER

Yonghe Medical's Marketing Management System
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In 2022, Yonghe Medical officially launched the digital construction,
and it’s the first private hair healthcare service institution to establish
the data analysis system. Through the digital construction, Yonghe
Medical has built the accurate operation in the private domain and
enhanced the operation management efficiency as well as customer
experience. Compared with a single marketing resources-driven
growth method that relies on traffic, Yonghe Medical makes a nice
combination of brand contents and traffic, speeds up the construction
of private domain traffic, and develops and launches the WeChat
mini-program of “Hair Steward” to enhance the user conversion rate.
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2.3 Sustainable supply chain

The quality, resilience and sustainability of the supply chain are
critical to Yonghe Medical's operations. The Group has formulated
the Specification for Management of Procurement Method and
Procurement Process V1.0, Processing Supplier Selection and
Evaluation System, Incoming Supplies Inspection Management System
and Quality Complaint Management System so as to prevent bribery,
contract encroachment and other violations of discipline and law in
the procurement process. Yonghe Medical has set up a centralized
procurement management system and a whole-life cycle quality
management system for commissioned processing products so as to
ensure the supplier compliance, strengthen supplier risk evaluation
and management, reduce supply chain risks, and guarantee the
sustainable development in production and operation.

During the reporting period, there were 99 suppliers cooperating
with the Group. In the process of supply chain management, the
Group conducted classified evaluations according to the transaction
frequency, importance of suppliers and others, and reviewed suppliers
for 55 times in total.

i@ E 2 MR ERE D fhE

Distribution Diagram of Suppliers by Region
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Supplier management

Yonghe Medical is committed to achieving the shared development
with suppliers. Yonghe Medical has formulated the Supplier
Management Specification V1.0 and the Supplier Performance
Evaluation and graded Management Procedure, to strictly control the
access threshold and process of suppliers, optimize the cooperation
quality with suppliers, and avoid the adverse effects caused by
suppliers due to their integrity or other illegal acts.

Supply chain environmental and social risk management

Yonghe Medical has firmly believed that the fulfillment of
environmental responsibility is the guarantee for the survival and
development of enterprises. Yonghe Medical constantly integrates the
consciousness of environmental responsibility into the group culture
and strategic management, and always gets the environmental policy
to run through the direct and indirect behavior management modules
of the supply chain.

o In the direct supply chain management process, the Group
has established long-term cooperative relationship with those
suppliers qualified for wastes treatment, to effectively deal with
waste materials that may result from business operations.

o At the stage of selection, access and review of new suppliers,
the supplier’s environmental protection system evaluation
is put into the supplier access evaluation system, and the
selected suppliers shall have the same environmental protection
consciousness and responsibility goals with the Group.

Preferred environmentally-friendly products

The upstream supply chain of the Group mainly includes suppliers of
medical drugs, medical devices, medical consumables and washing
and care formulas. When purchasing products, the purchasing staff
shall give priority to those products and services in line with the
concept of environmental protection and under the same conditions
of performance, price and technical service. For example, the
energy consumption level of medical devices is an important index
deserving our attention. We also pay attention to the environmental
management performance of suppliers. In the process of selecting
production-oriented suppliers, we are willing to cooperate with those
enterprises with the EIA report certification, for the sake of promoting
the green and low-carbon upgrading of the overall supply chain.

121



122

EREBEEEAERLT  YONGHE MEDICAL GROUP CO., LTD.

BRI HERERBREG

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BFILERIBHRIERE

ERBEIRBCARREBRS  L3IAE
BEEEMEETA  RSEBKF - &M
BE  EBNEF B ESBEERKL &
REEERRRBNEBLOMEN  REE
RERARREHEBENTE - EREFLER
BHESREEZRBENERRE BE2
A2 AILEBREEMEENRFTE - KL
£ BIERE  BEREERRBELHF
UPRES C=Eld-payii

R BERBETE-WABFLREERE

Fa

2022F  EARABEEZEARANBLNRE
FTEREADERTRESIE  BFED
— R REEETFENER - % EE
AERBEITER —HHEMADMEER
Fa o BREEM - BY - AERSE =
®EEETE > BEEANHER2EGE
HMESEIRERE R EREEHT
REEEAFUECERNBECRE &M
BEEREE SHEE FJEEE - K8
ERMTEHRNEREZ AHE T LE
2 RAREAREESNOBRME - BMENS
B BRIERERA - Lo ZTEEERE
REEITET —ECERBETEN - K
BRCOREISSMER - TMERAREE
B WARSBEEREY  HEEBRERE
FRAR o

B F{LIREE R ESE Digital procurement supply chain

Yonghe Medical constantly optimizes and upgrades the procurement
system, and introduces intelligent control and management tools to
enhance the level of intelligence. We believe that the digitalization of
business can promote the business of data, meet the digital analysis
capability required for procurement to the maximum extent, and
provide more accurate support for the business decision-making of the
Group. Yonghe Medical digital procurement supply chain takes into
account indirect procurement and direct procurement, covering the
whole process, which can contribute to the same online platform for
operation and management, increase transparency, and achieve the
upgrade from traditional procurement to digital and even intelligent
procurement.

Case: Yonghe Medical has built a one-stop digital procurement
management platform

In 2022, Yonghe Medical decided to make in-depth cooperation
with Zhenyun Technology, a leading digital procurement service
provider in China, to jointly launch the construction of a one-stop
digital procurement management platform. This project would
create a unified supplier entrance and management platform for
Yonghe Medical, and achieve the whole — life cycle online closed-
loop management of suppliers from registration, invitation and
investigation to classification, evaluation, information change
and elimination. In addition, with the connection of the digital
procurement management system with other internal systems of
the Group, the digital break points of the whole process and the
whole cycle of supplier management, source management, order
management, delivery management and financial coordination could
be linked up, so as to improve the synergy, efficiency and transparency
of the procurement business and to cut the process costs. In addition,
the project also helped to build an electronic shopping mall for
Yonghe Medical to form an e-commerce purchasing scenarios and
modes, which could not only improve the purchasing experience, but
could also give full play to the advantages of centralized procurement
and contribute to a direct decline in purchasing costs.
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2.4 Innovation and R&D

Yonghe Medical believes that innovation and R&D are essential to
the sustainable growth of business operations. Therefore, the Group
has actively built an innovative technology platform, established
Yonghe Medical R&D Department, and formulated the Programme
of Yonghe for Medical R&D work and the Work of R&D Department
and the Regulations on the Use of Medical R&D Expenditures, aiming
to standardize the management of R&D projects and promote
sustainable innovation and development. The Group lays stress on
market-oriented R&D projects. Through technical cooperation with
external institutions of higher learning and medical institutions, the
Group has been constantly pursuing breakthroughs in hair transplant
technology and promoting technological progress in the industry.

During the reporting period, the Group invested RMB17.67 million in
the scientific research field.

By the end of 2022, the Group had accumulated more than 350 IP-
related certificates, with 3 new patents acquired during the reporting
period.

R&D team building

1) Establish an internal expert committee

The expert committee guides and improves the medical team in the
two aspects of diagnosis and R&D.

B2 RERPIGLDEIRAREER

Diagnosis and Treatment

Provide diagnosis and treatment plan or treatment advice for difficult cases

faEak

FEHE  BMRBEFENVRIGHEEER

Give appra|sa| opinions for cases with disputed medical quality and treatment effect

HEELERMERERBREETS

i~ SR BCEMTER 7 =

Analyze existing quality defects and risk problems, and propose plans for improvement
and prevention

R AR - FERMAITIERRE

Scientific Research

Make feasibility demonstration for new projects and new technologies

% E B &t &
Make a project plan

THEKINEE - BB HE AR E KREL

Evaluate project results and help to promote the transformation of specific project

results
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2) Establish a team of diagnosis and treatment experts

The expert team can offer services in Beijing and Shanghai clinics,
providing diagnosis and treatment training internally and participating
in academic seminars and journal review externally. At the same time,
the team may assists in the construction of intelligent diagnosis and
treatment standardization.

Medical technology innovation

In terms of scientific research and innovation, the Group has set
a long-term goal of intelligent operating room, aiming to create
better medical experience for patients through the power of science
and technology. We continue to innovate in the fields of aesthetic
technology, instruments and equipment, cutting-edge medical and
other technologies, thereby achieving the transformation of scientific
research achievements into diagnosis and treatment means, and
improving the quality of medical services.

Case: The academic achievement of hair follicle regeneration by
Yonghe Medical and Sun Yat-sen University was published in
the international authoritative academic journal.

The cooperative research achievement by Yonghe Medical and Sun
Yat-sen University has been officially published in the International
Journal of Molecular Sciences, an authoritative SCI journal in the field
of molecular medicine. The paper, entitled A Single Small Molecule
Drug Can Transform Skin Fibroblasts into Hair Follicle Papilla Cells,
was written by Wang Xusheng research team at the School of
Pharmacy, Sun Yat-sen University (Shenzhen).

In the research achievement of cooperation between Yonghe Medical
and Sun Yat-sen University, fibroblasts are transformed into dermal
papilla cells with the ability of inducing hair follicle growth through
small molecule drugs, which provides a simple and effective scheme
for the subsequent in vitro culture of dermal papilla cells and for
the treatment of hair loss, and brings the hope of hair follicle
regeneration to hair loss patients. In a word, it's a revolutionary
breakthrough academic achievement in the hair industry.



ANNUAL REPORT 2022 Z—ZE-—FFH

RE #HEBREBRRBE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

IEEER R

EEMREY  BREFBELEENEMS
& BEEBEMTA  BRICEBRTHE B
[ChEatE | EFERE AR

R0 EREE20222EEIWHE

8A-9A  EXRBEEBMMADEEII &
g RTEINBA LERBHELEHENT
X BE2MELEL - EEHI KA
AARER - ERFECBRENERHR - B
EABENBEN —BILDE  EHEXER
it RERPFHRARMONER - B&
Al BESG-T —RLEZEES RATY
iR Bae W 8RG8 n -

Strengthen cooperation and exchanges

In the field of academic exchanges, Yonghe Medical has strengthened
the collaboration among enterprises, universities and research
institutes by organizing academic meetings and building academic
platforms, thus laying a solid foundation for the “Doctor Team
Strengthening Programme”.

Case: 2022 diagnosis and treatment training seminar of Yonghe
Medical

From August to September 2022, Yonghe Medical held two intensive
training seminars on diagnosis and treatment, with 113 people trained
offline, and covered all the receiving doctors through online live
broadcasting. Experts and professors from Peking University People’s
Hospital and Beijing Tongren Hospital were invited to communicate
and discuss with doctors of Yonghe Medical on some topics such
as integrated diagnosis and treatment, aesthetic design of hair
transplant, and difficult cases. After intensive training, the trainees
have unified the concept of integrated diagnosis and treatment, and
improved their capability of diagnosis and treatment and “aesthetic
design”.
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Intellectual property protection

The Group strictly abides by the Copyright Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China and other
intellectual property-related laws and regulations. The Group has
also publicized and popularized intellectual property knowledge and
related laws, strictly reviewed the Group’s contracts in respect of
intellectual property, and provided employees with consultation on
intellectual property law and patent matters. In order to safeguard the
intellectual property rights of the Group and other third parties, the
Group has standardized the fonts and pictures used for the publicity
in all marketing channels, and made the timely application for the
copyright of related trademarks, patents and software.

3. WITH A SINCERE HEART,
EMPLOYEES TO GROW

ENABLE

The Group attaches great importance to growing together with
employees, respects and cares for employees, hires employees
pursuant to laws and regulations, opposes workplace discrimination,
and prohibits forced labor and child labor. In addition, the Group has
provided professional training and fair opportunities for employees,
actively made communication, listened to the voice of employees, and
conducted diverse activities to protect the physical and mental health
of employees.

This chapter corresponds to the following SDG goals.

QUALITY GENDER
EDUCATION EQUALITY

M| &

1 REDUCED
INEQUALITIES

A
(=)

v

DECENT WORK AND
ECONOMIC GROWTH

o
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Proportion of Male and Female on-the-job Employees

B Zi#EBE T Female on-the-job employees

B Zi#EBET Male on-the-job employees

DPYRBRABE TG

Proportion of on-the-job Employees of Ethnic Minorities

94.73%

3.1 Compliance Employment

The Group safeguards the legitimate rights and interests of employees
in strict compliance with the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China
and other relevant laws and regulations. In addition, the Group has
developed and implemented the Recruitment Handbook and the
Employee Handbook to continuously improve the employment system.

Employment policy

The Group follows the principles of openness, impartiality and fairness
in recruitment, and puts ethnic minority employees, female employees
and disabled employees on equal footing. The Group strictly controls
the age of applicants and prohibits the recruitment of applicants
under the age of 18. The Group enters into labor contracts with
employees according to law to safeguard the rights and interests of
employees.

There were no employment violations during the reporting period.

BRAEBE T/

Proportion of Disabled on-the-job Employees

0.53%

99.47%

B 2% AfEBE T Disabled on-the-job employees

B #BKEAERET Non-disabled on-the-job emp

BHARBSNHERETAY

Proportion of on-the-job Employees by Employment Category

8

252

3,481

B Y HEKERES IOn-the-job employees of ethnic minorities B S4%EEE Senior Management

H TOn-the-job

of thnic minorities Ml HHE®E Middle Management

[l —M&I Ordinary Employees
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Remuneration system

In order to promote the realization of the Group’s strategic goals,
the Group has developed the Yonghe Medical Salary Management
System as a guiding document for the management of the salary
system, structure, assessment and payment. Salaries are reasonably
determined according to employees’ work experience, ability, industry
accumulation, educational background and work attitude, as well as
the average wages of the society and the industry.

Employment Performance of Employee in 2021 and 2022

B Indicators B Unit 2022 2021
ETERE Employment of employees

BT 4 Total number of employees A person 3,741 4,264
S Number of male employees A person 949 1,106
gl Number of female employees A person 2,792 3,158
2BET Number of full-time employees A person 3,705 4,222
Hib@EHAXBITHES  Number of part-time and other employees A person 36 42
30mEATEI AR Number of employees aged 30 and below A person 2,226 2,851
315%-4055 8 T AE Number of employees aged 31-40 A person 1,227 1,190
415%-505% B T ABL Number of employees aged 41-50 A person 226 180
S1aR M EE T AZ Number of employees aged 51 and above A person 62 43
i Number of employees in North China A person 922 1,010
=] Number of employees in South China A person 755 603
B Number of employees in East China A person 1,136 1,458
FEh Number of employees in Central China A person 416 486
[ishid Number of employees in Northwest China A person 149 304
7am Number of employees in Southwest China A person 245 279
ik Number of employees in Northeast China A person 118 124
BE Indicators By Units 2022 2021
BIRK Employee Turnover

BT k= Employee Turnover Rate % % 21.79 23.31
BB T mk=R Turnover Rate of male employees % % 11.32 22.39
B Timk=® Turnover Rate of female employees % % 32.81 23.20
30mMIATRE I #ALE  Turnover Rate of employees aged 30 and below % % 24.61 24.91
315%-405% 8 TimA X Turnover Rate of employees aged 31-40 % % 17.98 19.86
4175%-50 %A Turnover Rate of employees aged 41-50 % % 12.19 13.37

8 ITmkx

51 MEIAEEBTH%E  Turnover Rate of employees aged 51 and above % % 16.92 25.85
#4L B TRk =R Turnover Rate of employees in North China % % 11.08 14.77
ERE T RAER Turnover Rate of employees in South China % % 33.54 24.23
ERE T RAR Turnover Rate of employees in East China % % 25.04 29.71
B TRAkR Turnover Rate of employees in Central China % % 17.74 20.42
FidE B Timsk = Turnover Rate of employees in Northwest China % % 29.47 20.97
7ar B Tk R Turnover Rate of employees in Southwest China % % 40.61 25.41
BB Timak= Turnover Rate of employees in Northeast China % % 13.22 15.79




ANNUAL REPORT 2022 Z—ZE-—FFH

B #HEBREARRS

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

3.2% R EH
WGEEHRE

SEFRFIAT - RE - AFIOBFHES
MBEZBETHEM - BIELER(EREX
ERERGE)  PARSELETRERR
2 REMEZRRAT KRBTSR
BIRBUNBEECENRRERRESR
ko BIEERER  BUBESBOHANE
IREIEREH RGBS THRE -

Vel £

EERETEEIER  UBEETES
BAAEGAEE T - 20229 BT
ENBEXRAE100% @ BIlNEFREE
PEETHHETEI - &N
hdag IR - STE BT AR 5 B AL T
Bl —BE2Ed FeRBER B
Al ARESTHEREEE NEIIE— R
R RBTEIXERHEMZERE -
FREFABRIABRESEAZENEDE
g 1278 T2 B E#R o

ER T

Business line training

#18 T
New employee training
B
On-duty training
R 7]
Competency training

3.2 Development Training
Smooth promotion channels

The Group upholds the “fair, impartial and open” competition
mechanism and evaluates employees’ performance in a scientific way.
The Group has developed and implemented the Yonghe Medical
Performance Appraisal Management System, which can specify
the promotion standards and processes of each post, standardize
and improve the talent development and promotion mechanism.
The Group determines the evaluation indicators according to the
responsibilities of different posts and the phased development
requirements of the Group, and establishes a flexible and efficient
human resources management system and smooth promotion
channel.

Improve the training system

The Group continues to improve the training system, and actively
provides training in various ways such as online and offline. In 2022,
with the coverage rate of 100%. The training contents include
new employee training, on-duty training, and competency training
covering all employees, as well as teaching, training, integrated
reception training and special service project training for employees in
the clinic posts, and a series of training for the management such as
leadership training, which can help to enhance the professional skills
of employees. In addition, various forms of interactive activities such
as knowledge competitions are conducted to enhance employees’
interest in participation.

=1518 B & SEIE Y|
Special project training

Business line training

B 4@ R FHIE
Chief resident doctor
promotion class

wEIE
Teaching training
— B2
Integrated clinic
reception training

FreR%EE

Characteristic services

ERBEIFIIRR

Yonghe Medical’s Training System
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Employee Training Performance in 2021 and 2022

BE Indicators B Units 2022 2021
B TiFI=x Employee training rate % % 100 100
EMEIZIEL Percentage of trained male employees % % 100 100
ZMEIZIESL Percentage of trained female employees % % 100 100
SREEEZIBE L Percentage of trained senior management % % 100 100
RAEEESIIEDE  Percentage of trained middle management % % 100 100
—MEIZIESL Percentage of trained ordinary employees % % 100 100
BHEB T TR Average training hours of male employees N Hour 29 26.53
IEBE TSR Average training hours of female employees N Hour 10 25.63
SREREFHEIIERE  Average training hours of senior management N Hour 96 53.47
RAEREF IR Average training hours of middle management N Hour 200 33.14
—M BT FIEHIEFR  Average training hours of ordinary employees s Hour 20 26.25

1. EBEE

ERBREXGREIFROREBHFET
BE - ERBENIFT - BRI IR = KK
B TEHEEBRABRNERS - REXE
AR IR B & o

FETEI
New employee training

B-STiE s Ik
Basic professional knowledge
XIEES
Practical operation of business
ES 1

Business skills

~

WERA - B THEII R eEEE1,370
AN BELFHABEZBETIOA  FIlE
FEFTENIE365 A - B mEIENES2 A - 7
EEB R RBIEIEA205A - BEFEE
EREM110A - FEEEAE E S EM22
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A

Orientation training for attending doctors

Training for new medical assistants and

Training for new nurse practitioners

1. Business line training

The business line training of Yonghe Medical involves the three
modules, namely, new employee training, on-duty training, and
competency improvement at the business end of the clinics, which
mainly aims to improve the ability improvement of business line
personnel and to promote the implementation of business line
strategies and projects.

LrRgE DN
On-duty ability training

EDBEABIEY

ERE RN
Competency training
P2 BE [GR1NE] ZREEE
“1 hour a day” diagnosis and treatment
training for outpatient doctors

HrER

New nurse instruction

Special ability certification
for doctors

-~

During the reporting period, the new employee training was provided
for a total of 1,370 employees. In addition, 79 in-service attending
doctors, 365 new in-service assistants, 82 new transfer assistants,
and 295 full-time and part-time new nurses were trained, and 110
in-service hair-nourishing consultants and 22 nurse instructors were
trained.

FNIRBNIE T 98 e B IR A5 5

transfer assistants

IR AN

EEREEEI
Training for new
hair-nourishing consultants
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Case: Intensive “1 hour a day” diagnosis and treatment training
for outpatient doctors

The intensive “1 hour a day” diagnosis and treatment training lasts
for 14 days and is aimed to strengthen the diagnosis and treatment
and receiving capability of out-patient doctors. During the training
period, one hour every morning during the working days is spent to
improve the professionalism and reliability of receiving doctors from
the three modules of professional knowledge, professional diagnosis
and treatment, and professional reception.

During the reporting period, a total of 212 attending doctors received
the training, including 87 outpatient doctors and 124 surgical doctors.

Case: Special ability certification for doctors

The Group provides training on hair growth skill certification and
hairline and eyebrow certification for surgeons. During the reporting
period, a total of more than 20 times of online certification services
were arranged. A total of 69 doctors obtained the employment
certificate of hair growth skill, and 102 doctors received the hair
growth skill grading certificate; 99 doctors obtained the hairline
technology certification, and 77 doctors passed the eyebrow
technology certification.

2. Special project training

Female project: Under the guidance of Yonghe Medical aesthetic
design concept, the Group improves the aesthetic design ability of
outpatient doctors and assistants, and optimizes the preoperative
design ability of surgeons and their understanding of aesthetic
surgery.

Wig project: the three major modules of wig product knowledge,
customized product operation methods and hair-cutting operation
methods are provided to enhance the medical staff's wig styling
service ability. Qualified trainees can be selected as regional hair
stylists.

Hair-nourishing and hair root-strengthening project: Nurses can
learn the hair-nourishing and hair root-strengthening knowledge
from the DingTalk group at any time, so as to optimize the nursing
operation process and improve the customer experience. During the
reporting period, 345 employees were trained.

Integrated reception: Yonghe Medical implements the reception
mode with doctors as the core, where the doctors are responsible
for professional diagnosis and treatment, and the medical assistants
are in charge of assistant services in the whole process. 234 medical
assistance teams have been set up, and six rounds of exercises have
been carried out through online training and offline exercise and
appraisal. In this way, the new receiving mode has been put into use.
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Case: Practical exercise of integrated reception process

In order to put the reception process into practice, the Group
held two exercises of integrated reception process to improve the
standardization of the clinical reception process of the hospital
department and the professional degree of doctors. In addition, the
exercises also help to enhance the cooperation degree of medical
assistance teams, and improve the clinical reception efficiency. After
the exercises, the pass rate of doctors’ simulation design ability and
aesthetic design ability reached 90%, which significantly enhances the
doctors’ confidence in clinical reception.

3. EEHEI
B 48 12 7 I
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3. Leadership training
Promotion class of chief resident doctors

Targeted for the reserve chief resident doctors and the new chief
resident doctors, the promotion class lays stress on the five abilities of
clinical reception ability, member management ability, service concept
and service standard, risk response and female reception ability,
which serves the four major goals of cultivating a unified cognition
mentality, determining the general standards of chief resident doctors,
improving the hierarchy of the three types of chief resident doctors
and achieving the business model. During the reporting period, a total
of two sessions of intensive training were provided for 36 employees.
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Various kinds of interactive activities

The Group cares about the mental health of its employees and carries
out interactive activities such as "Collection of Morning Meeting
Interactive Games” and “Dean’s Day”. In addition, the Group
organizes knowledge competitions to enrich training forms, such as
regional competition for the most altruistic medical assistance team,
the regional competition for the simulation aesthetic scheme design
ability of medical assistance teams, regional competition for the
medical assistance group on total output ratio, and regional debate
competition on the receiving capability improvement of medical
assistance teams, so as to strengthen the learning motivation of
medical employees.

3.3 Health and Safety

Protecting the health of employees is one of our major tasks. Yonghe
Medical actively assumes the main responsibility of occupational
health as an enterprise, integrates the health and safety of employees
into each link of daily operation, and creates a safe and comfortable
workplace. We comply with the requirements of occupational health
risk warning, employee personal protection, employee physical
examination and other requirements stipulated by the state in daily
supervision. We provide complete occupational health protection
facilities, improve occupational disease warning signs, and realize the
closed-loop management of occupational health.

During the reporting period, there were no work-related casualties.

We provide free pre-employment physical examination for employees,
and regularly arrange occupational health examination for employees
exposed to occupational hazard factors in the daily work. During the
reporting period, about 80% (950) of the employees had the physical
examination.
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2020 - 20212022 ETR2EN

2020 - 2021 & 2022 FETIRE2HEM Employee Safety
Performance in 2020, 2021 and 2022

20225 20214 20204
b Index By Unit 2022 2021 2020
ETERT A Death toll due to work-related injury A Persons 0 0 0
ETETx Death rate due to work-related injury % % 0 0 0
A T15E K TEEE Number of working days lost due to x Days 0 48 \

work-related injury

3 ETHEE
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3.4 Care for employees

It's specified in the Employee Handbook that the Group provides
welfare for employees, including annual leave, marriage leave and
funeral leave for employees. In addition, female employees are
entitled to maternity leave, antenatal care leave and breast-feeding
leave, and male employees are entitled to paternity leave. We also
provide benefits for employees on Nurses’ Day, Women's Day,
employee birthdays and other holiday.

Case: Nurses’ Day activities of “caring for the nurse team and
protecting the health of the masses”

May 12th is the International Nurses’ Day, and this year’'s theme is
“Caring for the nurse team, protecting the health of the masses”.
On the day solely for the angel in white, hospitals Yonghe Medical
held simple and warm celebrations for the majority of medical staff in
several clinics.
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RO BRBHGHED Case: Celebration of Doctor’s Day

2022F 8 A19HEE AEFRBRERE - 8 August 19, 2022 is the fifth Chinese Doctor's Day, which aims to
EEEERA AOBREBMMTERE - create a social atmosphere of respecting and caring for doctors. Every
BREMBE—RX  HEAEHT  XBF doctor is a beam of light, with chivalrous tenderness. On the occasion
Jtoo B R BIERET 2B - EREBEBIE of the Chinese Doctor’s Day, Yonghe Medical held the holiday
HEFNES  RBEG (I BENE)FEHT - celebration activities to thank every doctor for their hard work.

ﬁ m:-cb’E)‘MEJﬁL%bﬁ.-v < 1
B Bt r

——

/\:‘f/—/ FEARALER.
BiE 8

=61 : & B @RI K Case: Distribution of holiday benefits

ERBERHHEINFHNL  BFTEH Yonghe Medical thanks employees for their hard work and distributes
EEHRE B (WM TE - PIED) 3 H0E 7 welfare gifts during traditional festivals such as Dragon Boat Festival
e e and Mid-Autumn Festival.
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Case: Holding employee birthday party every month

In order to enhance employees’ sense of belonging to the Group
and enrich their cultural and entertainment life, the Group holds a
collective birthday party for relevant employees on a monthly basis.
Through the birthday party, the Group promotes communication
and sharing among employees, showing the Group’s humanized
management and care for employees, and enhancing employees’
sense of identity with the Group.

4. ADHERENCE TO THE ORIGINAL
ASPIRATION AND PROTECTION OF CLEAR
WATERS AND GREEN MOUNTAINS

It's clearly proposed in the 14th Five-Year Plan to implement the
sustainable development strategy, build an ecological civilization
system, comprehensively enhance the resource utilization efficiency,
vigorously develop the green economy, and promote all-round green
transformation of economic and social development. In response
to the call of the state, the Group conducts long-term practice of
the green development concept, strictly performs environmental
management, and adheres to green operations. In the future, we will
intensify our own carbon emission management, continue to improve
the climate risk identification and evaluation methods, reduce the
impact of climate changes on our business, and help the country
achieve the goals of “carbon peaking and carbon neutrality”.

This chapter corresponds to the following SDGs:

Bioow |14 sovwm

15 viwe
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4.1 Emission management

In strict accordance with the Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste, the Regulations on the
Administration of Medical Waste, the Catalogue of Medical Waste
Classification (2021 Edition) and other laws and regulations, the
Group discharges pollutants and takes an active part in environmental
governance.

There was not any major environmental pollution event during the
reporting period.

Emission management objectives: The Group sets short-, medium-
and long-term environmental management objectives based on the
industry characteristics and its own development plans. The Group
endeavors to conduct the recycling of packaging materials before
2025, and increases the recycling quantity of packaging materials year
by year. By improving the capacity and efficiency of sewage treatment
equipment, the Group meets the medium-term goal of reducing the
discharge density of water pollutants. The Group gradually reduces
the emission density of greenhouse gases (Scope 1 and Scope 2)
through the optimization of the energy system and the application of
green and low-carbon office, so as to ultimately achieve the long-term
goal of carbon neutrality in its operations.
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2021 - 2022 FH R E X Emissions Performance in 2021 and 2022
BERESR Type of emissions B Unit 2022 2021
TSR E Sewage discharge Mg t 2,489 3,571
VEUNEE Sz 36 Total discharge of pollutants in sewage Mg t 0.16 0.14
EEEEYESHEE  Output of hazardous wastes i1 t 131.83 168.51
EEEEYEE Density of hazardous wastes Mg &TW A t/RMB 10,000 0.0009 0.0008
income
BEREEYELMLE  Output of non-hazardous wastes i1 t 900 815.44
BEBRENEE Density of non-hazardous wastes We, Bt A  YRMB 10,000 0.0064 0.0038
income
#[E—B = RPN E Scope 1: emission of greenhouse gas M —&/LIiXEE  tCO2e 40.45 15.25
emission
#[E — )8 = FEEHENE Scope 2: emission of greenhouse gas M —&/LIiXEE  tCO2e 9,761.02  8,649.08
emission
RERBHRES Total emissions of greenhouse gas MR birEE tCO2e 9,801.47 8,664.33
(BE—+#E ) emission (scope 1+scope 2)
BERBINEE Emission density of greenhouse gas —SbiE S tCO2e/RMB 0.07 0.04
F%T_E%U\ 10,000 income
s Notes:
1. B E RSB E R R R E IR AT(WRI) 1. Greenhouse gas emissions are calculated pursuant to the “GHG

R A E TEEFE(WBCSD)EMM
<</ ERELEEBROCEREERERE)

AR ENERETF2RERREED
(ﬁ%;‘%‘lEﬁ%‘%ﬁ?ﬁﬁ?%ﬁﬁiiﬁii&%%ﬁtﬁé
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RRIHORSE  oBEERE|MRAETSK
BI2 - 2R EOKERE JEK/WKET#
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Protocol” released by the World Resources Institute (WRI) and the World
Business Council for Sustainable Development (WBCSD), in which the
power conversion factor is determined with reference to the Guidelines
for Greenhouse Gas Emission Accounting Method and Reporting for
Enterprises — Generation Facilities issued by the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment;

2. The density data in the table is calculated by dividing the usage
(emissions) by the operating income.

Sewage management

In terms of sewage treatment, the Group strictly abides by the
Medical Sewage Treatment Management System and sets up a sewage
emergency treatment team with defined responsibilities. The Group
also develops the Sewage Emergency Treatment Plan, and specifies
the operation standards and operation management of sewage
treatment. The Group conducts the sewage treatment according to
the principle of “separation of clean water and sewage, and sewage
treatment according to different water quality and classifications”,
establishes and improves a drainage network diagram, prohibits any
direct discharge of sewage into surface water bodies, and ensures
the compliance discharge of medical wastewater. Through regular
employee training, the Group improves employees’ environmental
consciousness and effectively protects the surrounding ecological
environment.
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Self-inspection and external inspection

The Group requires each branch hospital to inspect and investigate
hospital sewage treatment safety hazards on a monthly basis from
the perspectives of system, process, posts, personnel, equipment and
others, to rectify existing problems once identified, and to reasonably
adjust the daily disinfection frequency. The Group conducts an
emergency drill of medical wastes every quarter to improve the
treatment efficiency and specify the treatment process. The Group
enters into agreements with qualified third-party professional testing
institutions to conduct sewage pollutant testing at least on a quarterly
basis, for the sake of ensuring the compliance discharge of sewage.
The Group's washing and care products are usually tested for harmful
ingredients by testing institutions before they are put on the market.
Meanwhile, in terms of the disposal of discarded contents, the Group
cooperates with professional third-party disposal institutions to
actively prevent environmental pollution.

During the reporting period, the Group discharged 2,489 tonnes of
sewage, down 30.3% on a year-on-year basis.

EIKBEE (WR)

Sewage Discharge (Tonnes)

3,571

2,489 .

2022 2021

FEAREERZ 2021 F ~ 2022 FI5KEEHE
Sewage Discharges of Yonghe Medical in 2021 and 2022
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Medical waste management

In terms of medical waste treatment, the Group strictly abides by the
Pollution Control Standards for Medical Waste Treatment and Disposal
and relevant regulations. Special personnel for special room shall be
designated to manage medical wastes pursuant to the process of
“daily inspection, timely removal and monthly self-inspection”. The
Group provides medical wastes classification management training
for medical staff from time to time, so as to strengthen employees’
risk and compliance consciousness. With an aim to standardize the
internal medical waste disposal process, the Group has formulated
the System and Standards for the Management of Medical Wastes,
which specifies the provisions on the collection, handover, transport
and centralized disposal of medical wastes. The first-in-first-out
principle is strictly implemented for drugs, and the monthly self-check
is performed for drug validity and a summary report is submitted so
as to reduce the generation of waste drugs. Plastic infusion bottles
are recycled according to recyclable garbage, so as to enhance the
reuse efficiency of wastes. Infectious wastes and damaging wastes are
strictly classified. Hazardous wastes shall be collected and transported
by qualified third parties to ensure the timely, compliant and harmless
treatment of medical wastes.

Office waste management

Embracing the principle of “reduction, recycling and harmless
treatment”, the Group reduces the use of disposable products such
as paper and paper cups, and enhances the recycling of plastic bottles
and packaging materials. According to the principle of garbage
classification, we separately recycles harmful wastes such as batteries,
toner cartridges and ink cartridges, and classifies tea residues, coffee
grounds and leftovers into kitchen waste, and metal office supplies
such as folders, staplers and scissors into the recycling waste.
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4.2 Green Operation
Green buildings

Yonghe Medical is committed to creating a comfortable and healthy
working and medical environment for both employees and patients.
At the time of selecting office space, Yonghe Medical Group gives
priority to the office space with green building certification, so
as to achieve the harmonious coexistence between humanity and
nature to the maximum extent. In terms of interior decoration, the
Group clearly requires construction contractors to purchase and
use environmentally-friendly decoration materials for the sake of
preventing pollution from the source. A certified environmental
monitoring report by China Metrology Certification (CMA)
qualification institutions is required to be provided at the time of
project delivery.

Green office

The Group adheres to the concept of sustainable operation, attaches
significance to building green office space, continuously improves the
energy efficiency in diagnosis and treatment and daily office work
by using LED lights and other energy-saving devices, and encourages
employees to save resources and reduce waste. In addition, employees
are encouraged to take a green mode of travel such as shuttle buses,
public transportation and carpooling. At the same time, the Group
actively provides water and electricity saving training for employees
to enhance their consciousness of saving resources and reduce
greenhouse gas emissions.

Case: Energy-saving measures

o Strengthen the daily management, maintenance and monitoring
of water and electricity equipment, limit the consumption of
water, electricity, oil, office supplies and other resources, and
enhance the reuse of resources.

o Put up eye-catching signs such as “Save Water” and “Save
Electricity” to call for saving water and electricity and strengthen
the energy-saving consciousness of employees and patients.

o The temperature of the office air conditioner is set to 26 degrees
Celsius, and the doors and windows should be properly closed

before the use of the air conditioner.

o Do a good job in garbage sorting.
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2021 - 2022FERFEHEN

Resource Utilization Performance in 2021 and 2022

ERESE Resource Type B Unit 2022 2021
b Gasoline Pan L 18,499 6,974
FINEE T Net outsourced electricity TR KWh 15,310,967.16  12,895,423.08
FINBEH Net outsourced heat = GJ 9356.15 10,176.79
REBEREFEBE  Total consumption of WEAZ B ton standard coal 2,220.82 1,939.57
comprehensive energy
RABERBRMEEE  Density of comprehensive WEAZLE ton standard 0.0157 0.0073
energy consumption ST A coal/RMB 10,000
income
MK FEKRE Municipal water consumption [ t 109,170.49 118,531.38
RAEFKETE Density of comprehensive Wa, Bt A t/RMB 10,000 0.77 0.55
water consumption income
BERYVEEFEE Total consumption of i t 62.88 40.37
packaging materials
BEYMEEMRZE Density of packaging materials & &t A  t/RMB 10,000 0.0004 0.0002
income

RPGREEREBRBURAERETERR
(GB/T 2589-2020)) st & &

RPRERBBRERE (FRE)BRUE
EWAGTESL

MRSET AR - RPED 2021 FEUE
BATELE

Note:

The comprehensive energy data in the table are calculated according to
the General Rules for Calculation of Comprehensive Energy Consumption
(GB/T 2589-2020);

The density data in the table is calculated by dividing the usage
(emissions) by the operating income;

Due to the updating of statistical methods, some 2021 data in the table
have been modified.
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4.3 Response to climate change
Support the “carbon peaking and carbon neutrality” goals

On September 22, 2020, President Xi Jinping made an important
commitment to the “carbon peaking and carbon neutrality” goals
at the general debate of the 75th session of the United Nations
General Assembly. The government, enterprises and the society work
together for a decarbonized future, which has become a common
task of the community with a shared future for mankind. With the
gradual implementation of the “1+N” carbon peaking and carbon
neutrality policy system in China, regulators, industry associations and
other relevant institutions are also steadily pushing ahead with the
realization of the “carbon peaking and carbon neutrality” goals.

The Group attaches great importance to responding to the national
goals of “carbon peaking and carbon neutrality” and actively tackles
climate change. Our corporate responsibility enables us to constantly
measure the effect of our own sustainable development, continuously
strengthen our consciousness and action of climate change
management, incorporate climate change risks into the Group’'s
business risks, and constantly improve the resilience of the Group
through practical green and low-carbon practices, so as to contribute
to the realization of the “carbon peaking and carbon neutrality”
goals.

Climate risk management

Through industry-level benchmarking analysis, the Group has
preliminarily prepared a list of climate risks from the perspectives
of the Group’s daily operation, business development, financial
management and others, combined with its own development
strategy:

YDIE EL bR
Physical Risk
Py Mubay R EF B REEE M ROERAGFRERBBRAEMNRTRM - BINESK

T BRRRAGIEYEE TR

Rising temperature

Rising temperature can cause the Group to increase energy consumption for keeping

medical drugs at the required temperature and under the required preservation
conditions, thereby leading to an increase in operating costs; the higher temperatures
can also have an negative impact on the health of employees.

BRImAREEREAS
Increased occurrence frequency
of extreme weather events

1% 3% RS

5 B/ 40

SR BESEEN  HNFMER - MAEEHREFHHRA
Extreme weather can affect operation continuity, increase surgical risks, and increase
the Group's investment in emergencies.
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Transition risk

RIBELAHIKE

Mandatory disclosure of
environmental information

BILRERAEE

Optimization of energy structure

(25 BRIRTEERBHRBESRENER « KK - RERBHNEESAIHE
EERBAEMARGIERERY, FEFERHARIEDS - MU REBZERERKE - K2
Bk ANERIE

The “carbon peaking and carbon neutrality” goals speed up the regulatory
requirements for environmental information disclosure. In the future, sustainable
information such as greenhouse gas emission data is likely to be included in the
mandatory disclosure mechanism. The Group shall consider conducting carbon
inventory, doing a good job in carbon data accounting and disclosure, and planning for
carbon neutrality path.

BRERBEZEABRAGENLD  SEAFTRAESHETRREASSCEAR - EBE
RREENERERE  BERFRES

The widespread use of clean energy can lead to an increase in the proportion of
green electricity. The Group needs to invest for transformation and upgrading of the
energy system by purchasing more environmentally-friendly and energy-saving medical
equipment and preferring clean electricity.

BB BAIRIR (AR
TIRBCTRBERMNOTE -
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By identifying climate change risks, Yonghe Medical has had a full
understanding of the impact that climate change may have on us. We
will mitigate the impact of climate change on the Group from both
adaptation and mitigation.

Adaptation:

SEMARERRRRANERE  EAFESD
EHIR - WECHE T HRARE - BEREER
MBEREBRTIETEET - s HAIKZ
TR/ SERERSIAE - A RES
BERDRIE -

&

SEEMERER  THIRLEREIREA
B REeERAME - RAKEREZEAAT
BTIEMEZT  HEETHORRE - 1M
EERRAMEEEERACRERSE N
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The Group has strengthened the monitoring of extreme weather,
conducted regular inspection in daily operations, and provided backup
equipment to ensure the normal operation of medical devices in case
of an emergency. In addition, we have established an emergency
response team and formulated corresponding contingency plans so as
to minimize the damages in a timely manner.

Mitigation:

The Group optimizes energy management by continuously decreasing
the use of energy resources, and increasing the use efficiency. We
have incorporated energy control into the employee performance
evaluation to cultivate employees’ conservation consciousness. At
the time of choosing office locations, we have prioritized green
energy-saving buildings to reduce greenhouse gas emissions from our
operations.
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5. SPREAD LOVE AND WORK TOGETHER
FOR COMMON DEVELOPMENT

The volunteers of Yonghe Medical achieves a good combination of
serving others, contributing to the society and realizing personal
value. Through practical action, they interpret the voluntary spirit
of “dedication, friendship, mutual help and progress”, and make
voluntary service the warmest force in the epidemic prevention and
control.

This chapter corresponds to the following SDGs.

NO IERD 'I SUSTAINABLE CITIES
POVERTY HUNGER AND COMMUNITIES

w | aide

In 2022, the Group's volunteer service involved Tianjin, Nanchang,
Haikou, Luoyang and other cities, with a total of 2,149 hours of
volunteer service and 400 person-times of volunteer service.

APPENDIX: INDEX TO ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING
GUIDE OF HKEX

Ml

ESG 12 EEHT REEEH
ESG Indicators Index description Disclosure chapters
EBEA1: #BY

Aspect A1: Emissions

—RIKE

BRBERIMOREREEN - MKRIEs BERE 418 ER

EREEVNELSFH

B R

ETHBEITAREAZENEREERAOINER -

General Disclosure

Relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges 4.1 Emission management

into water and land, and

generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste:

the policies; and compliance with relevant laws and
regulation that have a significant impact on the issuer.

BRANIEEAL
KPI A1.1

PEm iR RARRE R IR -

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

4.1 BEE R
4.1 Emission management
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Index description

WEEEH
Disclosure chapters

AR EMIEEAL2

KPI A1.2

AR EMIEEALS

KPI A1.3

AR EMIEZEALL

KPI A1.4

AR EMIEZEALS

KPI A1.5

AR EMIEZEALG

KPI A1.6

EHEA2: ERER

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

—RIKE

General Disclosure

R ENIEZEA2.1

KPI A2.1

AR EMIEIZEA2.2
KPI A2.2

FAREMIEEA2.3

HE (HBEN) RepREE (BE2) R =EREYNE (LA
AE)V R (EA) BE (UNEBEEEA - BHEERBTE)
emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

EEEEEEYBEE (UEFTE) & (iEA) =& (2
BES%M - BERETE) °

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

FREEREEEYAS (ETE) & (WER) BE (1A
SERE - SERIEHE) -

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

HIPTEI L HE S B IR R AE DS B IR e e 5
Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.

MR A EREEEEYN A - REMRFTET I 8RE
B R RABESEL B ZMERIE R -

handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.

BRERER (BIEER - KREAFRME) ABUR -
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.

BEAEISMEE R SEEER (B - REoh) 85
EUUTETREE) REE (NMABESEMN - BIER
METHE) -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or ail) in total (kWh in "000s) and intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

BRRKENEE (WABESEM - §ERETH) -
Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit
of production volume, per facility).

HLFTRT SR BEIRIE et B 1R M R RIS L B AR AT ERER

42 EER

4.2 Green Operation

41 HrEE

4.1 Emission management

41 FrEE

4.1 Emission management

41 BrEE

4.1 Emission management

4.1 BEE R

4.2 iREEE

4.1 Emission management
4.2 Green operation

42 EBEE

4.2 Green operation

42 EES

4.2 Green operation

4.2 iREEE
4.2 Green operation

42 EEE
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ESG E& EE#EL REEH
ESG Indicators Index description Disclosure chapters
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and 4.2 Green operation
steps taken to achieve them.
BREVIERA24 F i SREGE A KOR E Al B ERIERE - ARPAETZAKE 4.2 SEEE
@ AR REDEL B IRFTRIE TR -
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing 4.2 Green operation

AR EMIEZEA2.5

KPI A2.5

BEA3 :  RERXAER
Aspect A3: The Environment
and Natural Resources
—RIRE

General Disclosure

AR EMIEZEA3A

KPI A3.1

BHEAL : RIZE
Aspect A4: Climate Change

—RIKE

General Disclosure

BAREMIEE Ad.1

water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s)
set and steps taken to achieve them.

LR RATABEMRNBRE (NS
EEM(EE -

Total packaging material used for finished products (in
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit

produced.

R EITABMRRERAAE REREATEHBE
Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on
the environment and natural resources

MO EHEDHRERAANERNEAZERERNERE

BRATENTY -

42 B BEE

4.2 Green operation

42 B EEE

4.2 Green operation

4.1 BERE 2
42 BEEE

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the 4.1 Emission management
environment and natural resources and the actions taken 4.2 Green operation

to manage them.

WAREHEMRTREHETAELVFOERRRMA 43 BHARRI

B EEMEUR

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant
climate-related issues which have impacted, and those

which may impact, the issuer.

W BERTRSHETAEEYENEARRANEL, 43 RERREE(L

MEET1TE)
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ESG Indicators Index description Disclosure chapters
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues 4.3 Adaptation to climate

which have impacted, and those which may impact, the change
issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

BREREIESR
Employment and labour
practices

EEB1 : EfE
Aspect B1: Employment

—RIKE ERFHLEE  BRERE  TERE - RY - TSR 3.1 aRER
g Ze - REGRA R E AR B R AR A

B R

BTHETABERTZENEERLIROIRER
General Disclosure Relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment 3.1 Compliance employment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare:

the policies; and

compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

BRERNIEEB.1 RIER - BIBEE (2R - FRAN RS D 3.1 ARER
Wi B4R -

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for 3.1 Compliance employment
example, full-or part time), age group and geographical
region.

BRENIEEB.2 IR FiRERI bR EIDNIEBSRKLE - 3.1 ARIER

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and 3.1 Compliance employment

geographical region.

[EmB2: REHEZE

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
—RIKE IRELRE2TIEFRERREREEHRBENLEEN 3.3 fERRE
5.

i
i

St
Y @

BTHBETAREAZENRBEEIROINER -
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Index description

WEEEH
Disclosure chapters

General Disclosure

BB EMIEEB2.1
KPI B2.1

BRENIEEB2.2

KPI B2.2

BRERNIEEBR2.3

KPI B2.3

FBEB3 : &ERIZI

Aspect B3: Development and
Training

—RiIEE

General Disclosure

BB B MIEEB3.1

KPI B3.1

BB E MIEIEB3.2
KPI B3.2

Relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards:

the policies; and

compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

BE=F (BEEREY) BFRTTHHARRLE -

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in

each of the past three years including the reporting year.

EIEEARTIIERE -
Lost days due to work injury.

R FTRANBERERELZ 2 - WRBERTRER
TIE

Description of occupational health and safety measures

adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored.

BRERTEERET TIFRE MM LR BUR - sl
FEE) ©

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills
for discharging duties at work. Description of training

activities.

EMRIREBER (NEREEE  PREEE) EHHT
JEEBDE -

The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management).

RUERI R EBERIBE D - BEEETRZIE TR -
The average training hours completed per employee by
gender and employee category.

3.3 Health and Safety

33 RERLE
3.3 Health and Safety

33 RERLE
3.3 Health and Safety

33 EFEELE

3.3 Health and Safety

3.2 EREEF

3.2 Development training

3.2 EREEI

3.2 Development training

3.2 EREEI
3.2 Development training
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fEEB4 : & %8|
Aspect B4: Labor Standards

—RIKE B LEE T o bIEs Tr) - 3.1 ARER
B R

BFHBETABEATEORWERRROINER -

General Disclosure Relating to preventing child and forced labour: 3.1 Compliance employment
the policies; and

compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

BRENISEBA.1 R ET BB E GBS e AR R E T ROASIA T - 3.1 &HER
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices 3.1 Compliance employment

to avoid child and forced labour.

BRENIEEB4.2 e i A2 B3R E AR B JERR A RIS SUPTERER Y 2P 5% - 3.1 &HER
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices 3.1 Compliance employment
when discovered.

EEE
Operating Practices

[EMEBS5 : fEEEE
Aspect B5: Supply Chain

Management

—RIKE EIR MR RIE M R R BUR 2.3 AIFFE e

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of 2.3 Sustainable supply chain
the supply chain.

B R A RIS EB5.1 iR E D HHEREE - 2.3 AIRHE L pE

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 2.3 Sustainable supply chain

R ERIEEB5.2 R BRI AHERNED - MERITERIEMNMER 2.3 A REHEE
A URBEBRTRERITE -

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, 2.3 Sustainable supply chain

number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, and how they are implemented and
monitored.
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BRENISEBS.3 A FHR M EREEERONRE R ERRNIED, 2.3 AIFERERE
ARABRIT R EESR 7 0% o

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental 2.3 Sustainable supply chain
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they
are implemented and monitored.

B ENIEEB5.4 HAERERERNREZARRERRRBEEN - LU 2.3 AIFEHERE
NABBIT R EE R T0% -

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally 2.3 Sustainable supply chain

[EEB6 : EMEME
Aspect B6: Product
Responsibility

—RIKE

General Disclosure

B A 515 B6.1

KPI B6.1

B AN IE15B6.2
KPI B6.2

preferable products and services when selecting
suppliers, and how they are implemented and

monitored.

B BA P Y (2 am AN AR A5 0 2
EENERITER

B R

BEZE - EE BRI

HTHETABEAZENERERNRIINER -
Relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress:

the policies; and

compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have

a significant impact on the

CEACEXEMERTE
o e

issuer

70 2 SRR FRIE i i R [ W B

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons.

EERNE M MREHIRFEE AR ITE -

Number of products and service related complaints

received and how they are

dealt with

1.4 BREZ2EIE
2.1 SRS
22 BEMTEH

1.4 Medical safety
management

2.1 High-quality service
2.2 Responsible marketing

1.4 BEZE2ER

1.4 Medical safety
management

2.1 FHRE
2.1 High-quality service
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B R ERIE1EB6.3 ot 4 v L ARPR AN E A ARV B 2.4 B EaRTEE

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and 2.4 Innovation and R&D
protecting intellectual property rights.

BRENIEEB6.4 B 2 BRENERLIWIRR ° 1.4 BERZ2ER

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall 1.4 Medical safety
procedures. management

B R EIEEB6.5 HIUE B E SRR REBALEGE, ARMEBRITRERT 2.1 S8R%
& o

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy 2.1 High-quality service

[EEB7 : RES
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

—RIKE

General Disclosure

policies, and how they are implemented and monitored.

BRI LR - R - BEFROEREMN:

BR; &
BTHETABERZENBRERZLADINER
Relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering:

the policies; and

compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

1.1 RIEER
13 REFER

1.1 Internal control compliance
1.3 Anti-corruption
management



ESG 1512
ESG Indicators

bt pu

Index description

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

TECIFFR

RE #HEBREBRRBE
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

WEEEH
Disclosure chapters

BB MIEEBT.1

KPI B7.1

BB MIEEBT.2
KPI B7.2

B EEMIEEBT.3
KPI B7.3

HE
Community

[EHEB8 : HEBIRE
Aspect B8: Community
Investment

—RIKE

General Disclosure

B A 515 B8.1

KPI B8.1
B A MIEEB8.2
KPI B8.2

RERHARETAREREBREL CRENESHAR

VBB MARRARER o

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the

cases.

AP E A R B WmAE T, LB T RERETE

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing

procedures, and how they are implemented and

monitored.

R ESR RS TIRHENRETE -
Description of anti-corruption training provided to

directors and staff.

BRAMERSERTHEEMELERBENBRRLIREE

BEEEHLEMSHOER

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the

communities’ interests.

BIEREE (HE -
1t 87)-

BEEE

BIER 2 X

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
environmental concerns, labour needs, health, culture,

sport).

ERIHBMEHAER (MEELRHE)

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus

area.

13 REFSER

1.3 Anti-corruption
management

1.3 RESER
1.3 Anti-corruption
management

1.3 RESER
1.3 Anti-corruption
management

5 EEE LT HERRE

5 Spread love and work
together for development

5 EEE LT HERRE

5 Spread love and work
together for development

5 FREOIETF HFAKE
5 Spread love and work
together for development
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162E269 B KA MK - B

. MN2022F 12831 HNAHEERE
=

s HEZALFENAHEZEKEER:

X

o AMBmERME BERIEGHR
RREMBREES -

EMWER

BMRE  ZEEHVBEREECRET LS
AERAERGNCEBYBRELN)EE
MASHRERT HEEMN2022F12A31
BREHVBRALEHEZALFENE
HUBRELEHBESRE YR ERES
CRRMED ) BV T 43 E 2 A -

ERHNER

BMPERBEZESHAMASRMAOCEEE
SHERD TR - WAIERFT LR T ASE
MEFDEARSE [ZBMR BT HIHB
WRAENEE | BohEE— TR -

HFIHEE  RPAESNRIERIRETRER
EEWASRMANET B RIEHER -

To the Shareholders of Yonghe Medical Group Co., Ltd.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Yonghe Medical Group Co.,
Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are
set out on pages 162 to 269, comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2022;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
December 31, 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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BREEEEFAMAGEMANC(EEGE
BRSAD) (ATEBEITAID - HABL
®n OBEE YEETTATHEMERE

BEME -

FAREFTEE

MRBAZTEERERMNEXHE - B8
HABMAEHPBBRRNBIRAEENS
B BUEERAISERMEAREEHUBER
KREHABRBETREN - HMPTEHE
LRRRHEBNER

BMAER PRI NBRESZTRTEND
BRERY -

BERETEE
Key Audit Matter
BB A

Impairment assessment of goodwill

BRMA MU BRRMEIS -
Refer to note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

2022512 A31H - EXEEHENHRBRED
RARB2SBET  EEMN202155H &&
B ERNTF AT ([YEE]) -

As at December 31, 2022, the Group had
goodwill of approximately RMB25 million,
arising from the acquisition of a subsidiary
in May 2021 (the “Acquisition”).

HEHEREN G BERERRZTATE—E
BEENEEM  UHERESREZEERT -
For the purposes of goodwill impairment
assessment, management considered the
subsidiary as a separate cash-generating-unit
("CGU") and goodwill has been allocated to
that CGU.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 Z—ZE-—FFH

B % B A RS
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to impairment
assessment of goodwill.

BMWETT N EERRENEE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BT T AT B E R L ARERF1E -
We have performed the following procedures to address this key audit
matter:

()  FHMBEETEREBENERENTGBIE  BBEET G RE T
REMEME R R EZEKE - 5 R R EE KR E A E
T

(i)  We obtained an understanding of management’s assessment
process of goodwill impairment and assessed the inherent risk of
material misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors;

(i HEMTETEEBUNEEMARTEN RN  UARBEBE IS
BEMARERE BESENSHECKURRME BEXEEMNER:

(i)  We evaluated the appropriateness of management’s
identification of the CGU and the allocation of goodwill to that
CGU by reference to the Group’s accounting policy and our
understanding of the Group's business;

(i) FHME BREBEFZHOMNGTEEROFEN  BEEIUARTERIE
AT T A

We evaluated the competence, capability and objectivity of the
external valuation expert engaged by the Group;

(iii)
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HEEEE
Key Audit Matter

BEEEEHBRENTERERNEEEED
W TEEEITIR &R 2 TERRIEE & EA R AT U
Bl& % - AT e EHEE S R ZEE®R - 1A
BEAAR A RE - HEIERE - BRI
RE  FLHRBRONE A e R ATEAIKE
7o

The Group assessed the impairment of
goodwill by determining the recoverable
amount of the CGU based on value-in-
use calculation using cash flow projections
based on the financial budget approved
by management. The determination of
recoverable amount involved a variety of
assumptions, such as growth rate of revenue
within forecast period, terminal growth
rate and pre-tax discount rate. Changes in
the conditions of these assumptions could
significantly affect the recoverable amounts.

ERECEBEIISTEER  RETEEENT
Wm & R EEEN ) -

The Group has engaged an external valuation
expert to provide technical support and
assistance in determining the recoverable
amount of the CGU.

BN ES AR EEEEEE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

(iv)

BHEABEEEROF T AAEEERERENATENEE
M WEEERFE AT EMAT L AR RANRHERRE R
EABRBATITR EET R EREEREMBRATTRENSIE
M

We involved our in-house valuation experts to assess the
appropriateness of the methodology adopted by management in
the goodwill impairment assessment and the reasonableness of
the terminal growth rate and pre-tax discount rate by comparing
them with the long-term expected inflation rate and the pre-tax
discount rate as adopted by other comparable companies based
on our independent research;

BAFETHEEREFEANERERNEEE  BESFRALR
REPERERNEBER ELMHBERMTEERS (WER) #1T
LERR

We assessed the reasonableness of the key assumptions used in
the value-in-use calculation, including comparing annual revenue
growth rate with the relevant data in the financial budgets,
historical financial data and industry data, where applicable;

BfiRE T ERE BB Em
We checked the mathematical accuracy of the value-in-use
calculations;



HEEEE
Key Audit Matter

ST IR B R BB ERT R By E R R A
st B TREUERS - RMRAEERE
sHEERRERFE -

Given the goodwill impairment assessment

is subject to high degree of estimation
uncertainty as significant management'’s
judgment and estimates are involved, we
considered impairment assessment of goodwill
as a key audit matter.
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BN ES AR EEEEEE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

(vii)

(vii)

(viii)
(viii)

BAFEEEEETAMIERREEXENGREDIN - NE—F
PR ) (AR ER) S EHMBRENREE

We assessed the sensitivity analysis performed by management
with potential impacts on the above key assumptions to
further understand the extent to which adverse changes, either
individually or in aggregate, would result in impairment of
goodwill;

BAEEHYEREABARERERENTDIE -

We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related to
impairment assessment of goodwill in the context of the
applicable financial reporting framework.

ERA LR - BB AEREEERERENETAEANHEGMNRRTA
FrES R RERMTAITIRERF T AR

Based on the above, we considered that management’s judgments
and assumptions applied in the impairment assessment of goodwill
were supportable by the evidence obtained and procedures
performed.
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Hz 8

BERREFAHHEMESRE - RERE
RERANMBES  BETEREEHTER
REBMIOZEEN RS -

BRHAHMBREANBERAL NRERLMBE
B BT TEZEEMEREREMERA

RS o

‘BABMYEHBBRROES  RANE
TREEREMER - HIBIET  ZEHM
EERBHEAHMBRRARMERTBE
AT BEERFEEREESRE LT FE
BEAHERRAWIER -

ERBFAERTHITE  WREMARSEMD
EEFHEEREREL  BMFEREZE
BofEhmE e RORBEEFERSE -

EENMELZEEEGHSH
MBHRREAENEE

BERRESAAERBEEESITMASHEM
(BRI @S 2R RBFACARERDD
MRBERERBEEMTENAHUBER
= THERBREAHUBREOEET
T 7 i 70 R 388 AR T 8 By B KB AR RO
Fr@BmAEHEHIa S -

ERBEHIBHRERE  EFEENE B
SEFBEEENREN  YEBERBRTHRE
RBELEEMNER  UREAFELE
RETER  BRIEFEEN BEEEBR
FEIEEE - HPEEMERERTE -

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee of the Company
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee of the Company with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee of
the Company, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yuen Kwok Sun.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, March 30, 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE12A31BLEE
Year ended December 31,

2022%F 20214
2022 2021
B sE ARMT T ARKEFTT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
RERFAHBBRA Revenue from contracts with customers 6 1,412,791 2,168,580
HE XRG4 Cost of sales and services 9 (540,212) (588,604)
EF Gross profit 872,579 1,579,976
HEREHERAEZ Selling and marketing expenses 9 (766,783)  (1,072,647)
—MRITHAX General and administrative expenses 9 (257,529) (247,542)
e Research and development expenses 9 (18,495) (14,163)
CHEE CRERE) e (Impairment losses)/net reversal gains on
Wz 5 58 financial assets 3.1(c) (138) 153
H A A Other income 7 9,687 3,603
Hib (&518),Was - F58 Other (losses)/gains — net 8 (942) 6,715
s (&8 A Operating (loss)/profit (161,621) 256,095
AR UA Finance income 11 103,382 6,130
EATSRR Finance costs 11 (51,227) (51,949)
BTSN — R Finance costs — net 11 52,155 (45,819)
BRFTSBLAT (B1E), FHE (Loss)/profit before income tax (109,466) 210,276
i8R Income tax expense 13 23,608 (90,088)
FR(EBER) B (Loss)/profit for the year (85,858) 120,188
Hi2mE (BR) WA Other comprehensive (loss)/income (144) 1,306
HiEngeEsnHEEm i EE Items that may be subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss
BEHhEEE Currency translation differences (144) 761
B rEER S EEEmr AL Items that will not be reclassified to profit
or loss
BEHhEERE Currency translation differences = 545
FREME (FHR) RSB HE Total comprehensive (loss)/income for
the year (86,002) 121,494
AATEBIZEAEEER (BE), (Loss)/profit and total comprehensive
AMEREE (BB WEEE (loss)/income for the year attributable
to equity holders of the Company (86,002) 121,494
AAREBFEAERLEER (Loss)/earnings per share attributable
(F58) &7 to equity holders of the Company
FREA (E18),/ BF (AREIT) Basic (loss)/earnings per share (RMB) 14 (0.16) 0.29
TR EEE (E518), BF (ARIT) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share (RMB) 14 (0.16) 0.28

PA_E Y& OF 2 [ k2 R B 2 (R BB P A9 P 5

—DFBIE -

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The above consolidated statements of comprehensive income should



ANNUAL REPORT 2022 —Z=—4F%#f 163

EHEEEER
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

®12A31H
As at December 31,
2022 % 20214
2022 2021
ih=s ARBTT ARETTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
BE Assets
kREBEE Non-current assets
Yz - BB kA Property, plant and equipment 16 642,296 450,213
FAEEE Right-of-use assets 17 989,235 925,142
EmEEE Intangible assets 18 39,678 41,257
REFTISTI A E Deferred income tax assets 30 60,423 32,544
TE IR -« ke RE A FEYRIE Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 21 9,258 1,508
EMEEEBE Total non-current assets 1,740,890 1,450,664
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 22 88,089 53,138
B W GRE Trade receivables 20 7,055 13,351
TR FIE « =e R EAth FE Y RIE Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 21 116,301 115,958
TEBIFR Term deposits 23 412,940 -
REMRSEZEY Cash and cash equivalents 24 565,093 1,566,192
MEEERE Total current assets 1,189,478 1,748,639
EERE Total assets 2,930,368 3,199,303
R Equity
AAREBRFEABILER Equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company
[N Share capital 25 8 8
J& A5 (B Share premium 25 1,332,287 1,240,408
HIEEROFEFENORD Shares held for employee share scheme 27 (79,038) -
H Other reserves 155,494 155,454
REBAEF Retained earnings 176,559 302,475
B Total equity 1,585,310 1,698,345
a& Liabilities
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
HEARE Lease liabilities 17 845,048 762,303
BEEFTSHARE Deferred income tax liabilities 30 1,502 975
JEmB A EEEE Total non-current liabilities 846,550 763,278
FBEE Current liabilities
R Borrowings = 74,173
B 5 R E M ERN A Trade and other payables 28 144,118 225,708
SRAaE Contract liabilities 29 154,977 189,524
EHMERas Current income tax liabilities 8,859 63,220
HEAaE Lease liabilities 17 190,554 185,055
BB EERE Total current liabilities 498,508 737,680
EERE Total liabilities 1,345,058 1,500,958
e Y SRRt Total equity and liabilities 2,930,368 3,199,303
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

NEMAHEERBREERBEMHAME—
BFBIE -

F162E269 BN EIRKRE R 202343 A
30FEARAESE M AETHATEERER
FE

MITES  REEXE

Executive Director: Mr. Zhang Yu

The above consolidated balance sheets should be read in conjunction
with the accompanying notes.

The financial statements on pages 162 to 269 were approved by the
Board of Directors of the Company on March 30, 2023 and were
signed on its behalf.

MITES  RIELE

Executive Director: Mr. Zhang Hui
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B EZEE KR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

ARREREE ARG
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
HESRG T
RE  BRARE BHEENRG  HttEE  RERA BREE
Shares
held for
employee
Share Share share Other  Retained Total
capital  premium scheme reserves  earnings equity
it AR®Tn AR®TR AR¥TR AR%Tn ARETR AR%Tx
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R2021FE1A18M%8  Balance at January 1, 2021 - - - 153,971 252,087 406,058
FRF|H Profit for the year - = - - 120,188 120,188
EMBEEE Currency translation differences - - - 1,306 - 1,306
2HNRLE Total comprehensive income - - - 1,306 120,188 121,494
HERREANRS Transaction with equity holders
BIkH Issue of shares 7 - - ) _ _
RERBEEMBTLEBE  Issuance of ordinary shares upon
global offering 11,217,986 - - - 1,217,987
BRAOBITRA Share issuance costs - (66,267) - - - (66,267)
[MZY Investment Capital  Issue of shares to ZY Investment
Ltd. BRI Capital Ltd. _x 88,689 - . - 88689
ERPREOREEARLE Deemed capital contribution from
shareholders in Reorganization - - - 74,052 - 74,052
ERPIE SRR RN Deemed distribution to shareholders
EENRERRED K for shares transfer of Beijing
Haiyouyou in Reorganization - - - (74,052) - (74,052)
Wik AEREH Share-based compensation 26 - - - 184 - 184
BREAIE Dividend distribution 15(a) - - - - (69,800) (69,800)
R2021F12 831 A4S  Balance at December 31, 2021 8 1,240,408 - 155,454 302,475 1,698,345
R2022F1A1BHER Balance at January 1, 2022 8 1,240,408 - 155,454 302,475 1,698,345
FREE Loss for the year - = = - (85,858) (85,858)
EMHEEE Currency translation differences = - = (144) = (144)
2EEESE Total comprehensive loss - - - (144) (85,858) (86,002)
HERREANRS Transaction with equity holders
RITERERLEEEET  Issuance of ordinary shares upon
BTBRER the over-allotment 25(a) -* 91,879 - - - 91,879
MR 1R BEER B Share-based compensation 26(c) - = = 184 = 184
BREAE Dividend distribution 15(a) - - - - (40,058) (40,058)
REEERMDFEMEER!  Acquisition of shares under
employee share scheme 27 - - (79,038) - - (79,038)
R2022F12 8314  Balance at December 31, 2022 8 1,332,287 (79,038) 155,494 176,559 1,585,310
* LiigpRE A AREE1,0007T © * The balance stated above was less than RMB1,000.
LA LM E B s 2 B % P& R BE P A BT 3 — The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be

BFBIE -

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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EHRETRER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE12A31BLEE
Year ended December 31,

2022%F 20214
2022 2021
B sE ARBT T ARETTT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
%‘:‘é'ﬁ FEEFRBRERE Cash flows from operating activities
B (TR FisH & Cash (used in)/generated from operations 31(a) (61,619) 535,073
2 S Interest received 11,162 6,130
B ATEHR Income tax paid (58,105) (103,922)
KEES (FrA) FBESFHE Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities (108,562) 437,281
RETEBFBEERE Cash flows from investing activities
M - BB REBERR Payments for property, plant and
equipment (240,573) (181,629)
| EEMNK Payments for intangible assets (2,940) (9,012)
HEWE - WEREEMEHIE Proceeds from disposals of property, plant
and equipment 1,788 499
B F AR B EESH  Payment for acquisition of a subsidiary, net
e of cash acquired = (3,802)
FAVIZ BB E= A MTEHFE Placement of term deposits with initial
terms of over three months (408,840) -
BREETBHFFAESTEE Net cash used in investing activities (650,565) (193,944)
RMETEMESRERE Cash flows from financing activities
BERFSE Proceeds from borrowings 75,467 232,685
EEER Repayment of borrowings (149,640) (184,853)
2RFE Interest paid (1,605) (3,946)
YNEEEaRE Payment of lease liabilities (194,664) (204,743)
BLiE B IR A B A Acquisition of shares for employee share
scheme 27 (79,038) -
ERBRERNZRGIRE Restricted cash of guarantee for borrowings - (149,500)
VEBBRIE RN R GRS TS FIE Proceeds from the restricted cash of
guarantee for borrowings - 149,500
ZY Investment Capital Ltd. &) Capital contribution from ZY Investment
ERHE Capital Ltd. - 88,689
BT MR TS A Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares 91,879 1,217,987
T EmHE Payments of listing expenses (32,289) (47,797)
ETIRE Dividends paid 15(a) (43,164) (69,800)
EHEFRENEALE Capital contribution from shareholders in
Reorganization - 74,052
T EEFIEFEF RO EFERS  Payment for consideration for shares
RE transfer of Beijing Haiyouyou in
Reorganization - (74,052)
mETEE (FrA)FEBESFHE Net cash (used in)/generated from
financing activities (333,054) 1,028,222
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EHEERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE12A31BLEE
Year ended December 31,

2022 4F 20214
2022 2021
B EE ARBT AREFTT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
ReRBESZEEYW ORD),/#imn Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash
FEE equivalents (1,092,181) 1,271,559
FUHe kRS ED Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the year 1,566,192 292,856
ReMRSFEYEL = Exchange gains on cash and cash
equivalents 91,082 1,777
FRESRBRELEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of the
year 565,093 1,566,192
LA E®E B € R E R FEERIBE M A3 — The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in

DHBIE - conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Yonghe Medical Group Co., Ltd. (the “"Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on September 17, 2020 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the Cayman
Islands Companies Act. The address of the Company's registered
office is Floor 4, Willow House, Cricket Square, Grand Cayman
KY 1-9010, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are primarily engaged in the
provision of (i) hair transplant and (ii) medical hair care services
(the "Business”) in the Mainland (“Mainland China”) of People’s
Republic of China (the "PRC").

The Company had its listing on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on December 13, 2021.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB") and all amounts are rounded to the nearest
thousands of RMB (“RMB’000"), unless otherwise stated.

After another wave of outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019
("COVID-19 outbreak”) in early 2022, a series of precautionary
and control measures have been and continued to be
implemented especially across the PRC. The pandemic in early
2022 has already caused a decrease in demand of the Group's
services in certain cities in the regional outbreak, which in turn
resulted in downward pressure on the Group’s operations.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on March 30, 2023.
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2.1 RBEXE
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(i)

(iii)
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E&T

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial
statements are for the group consisting of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation

()

(i)

(iii)

Compliance with HKFRS and the disclosure
requirements of HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance ("HKCQO") Cap. 622.

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis, as modified by
the revaluation of financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit and loss or revalued amount.

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has applied the following amendments
for the first time for their annual reporting period
commencing January 1, 2022:

o Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before
Intended Use — Amendments to HKAS 16

o Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract — Amendments to HKAS 37
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iii) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards
2018-2020, and

Reference to the Conceptual Framework -
Amendments to HKFRS 3.

Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions beyond 30
June 2021 - Amendment to HKFRS 16 (March
2021) (the "HKFRS 16 Amendment (March
2021)")

Amendments to AG 5 Merger Accounting for
Common Control Combinations

The Group also elected to adopt the following
amendments early:

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction — amendments
to HKAS 12,

Disclosure of Accounting Policies — Amendments

to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2,

Definition of Accounting Estimates -

Amendments to HKAS 8,

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current — amendments to HKAS 1,
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (Continued)

. Non-current Liabilities with Covenants -
Amendments to HKAS 1, and

o Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback -
Amendments to HKFRS 16.

The amendments and annual improvements listed
above did not have any impact on the amounts
recognised in prior periods and are not expected to
significantly affect the current or future periods.

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

Certain new accounting standards, amendments to
accounting standards and interpretations have been
published that are not mandatory for 31 December
2022 reporting periods and have not been early
adopted by the group. These standards, amendments
or interpretations are not expected to have a material
impact on the entity in the current or future reporting
periods and on foreseeable future transactions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

During the period, the functional currency of the Company
has been voluntarily changed from United States dollars
("USD”) to RMB by the management as the Company
has no business activity of its own except for investment
holding. Moreover, nearly all of the holding entity’s
subsidiaries operate in Mainland China with the functional
currency of RMB. The Company is now considered to be
an extension of the subsidiaries operating in Mainland
China. As a result, the currency that reflects the economic
substance of the underlying economic events that affect
the holding entity is RMB.

The Company was established in September 2020 and the
transactions were very limited in prior period, the impact
caused by the change of accounting policy to the prior
period’s financial statements was immaterial.

The following tables show the adjustments recognised
for each individual line item for the current year ended

December 31, 2022:

7A2022%12A831H

As at
December 31,
2022
AR®TT
RMB’000

HEMEEABRNEE Effect on the consolidated balance sheet
HREERL Decrease in other reserves 88,120
R B0 Increase in retained earnings 88,120
BZE2022F
12A31HLLEE
Year ended
December 31,
2022
AR®TT
RMB’000

Het2EKERNTE Effect on the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income

B AU ASE N Increase in finance income 88,120
Hfth 2 E U AR D Decrease in other comprehensive income 88,120
FRERZFIEMN(AREIT) Increase in basic earnings per share (RMB) 0.17
FREEREFIEIMN(AREIT) Increase in diluted earnings per share (RMB) 0.17
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BIE accounting

(i) F2H (i) Subsidiaries
FRAIIEAE BRI Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group
HHNAEER - E245%H has control. The Group controls an entity where
EXUZHLHBEME the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
2R #E®R - BHENE returns from its involvement with the entity and has
BES TR o T ERE the ability to affect those returns through its power
FEZEOWR % ' EHJZS’§ to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are
EiTHZEE . F AT B fully consolidated from the date on which control is
cHIEEEE ZSE‘%ESEI transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated

from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group
(Note 2.4).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, statements of
changes in equity and balance sheets respectively.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(i)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling
interests and any consideration paid or received
is recognised in a separate reserve within equity
attributable to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control, or significant influence, any retained interest
in the entity is remeasured to its fair value with
the change in carrying amount recognised in profit
or loss. This fair value becomes the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced
but joint control or significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Business combinations

()

Business combinations not under common
control

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

. fair values of the assets transferred

. liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business

o equity interests issued by the Group

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement, and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in
the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions, measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity's net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Business combinations (Continued)

()

Business combinations not under common
control (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration
is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity's
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which
a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts
classified as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss.



ANNUAL REPORT 2022 Z—ZE-—FFH

CRERELE:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 FESTEHRME (&)

2.4 ¥X%E50t(E)

(i)

HEZEFTHELSH

EHFBRREEREEHR
RS & B RBHER
M BHREED - BIZ
FERAXFEBERRE
HOEHE RRE A0 -

[EAERUEFNFEE
%hﬂﬁmﬁruﬁﬁﬁ
FEEAH - G HFE
HEREZMBLT £
72 4| B 48 B 0 4 g R R 5
W EE T RIS 7 A 4 Bl
E -BERIAREBELIR
JFE B 2 A 8 A AN /9 D
DHERT (L5 -

AHEERAERBESE
RERBIAXFTEREZY
FHEaERERRE
B EIRARHEHIE B (A
fﬁ%ﬁﬁ)mméiﬁ

Tam KRR S & R0 B
%o

ZEERRAR—MER
BUR © %E%IW Gl
X5 HEHRMELAEREN
%ﬁﬁx%%*“ﬁ%é

5 DAEEE o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Business combinations (Continued)

(i)

Business combinations under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statement items of the entities or businesses
in which the common control combination occurs as
if they had been consolidated from the date when
the entities or businesses first came under the control
of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are consolidated using the existing book values
from the controlling party’s perspective. No amount
is recognised in consideration for goodwill or
excess of acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of
acquirer’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over cost at the time of common control
combination, to the extent of the continuation of the
controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statements of comprehensive
income include the results of each of the combining
entities or businesses from the earliest date presented
or since the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the common control,
where this is a shorter period, regardless of the date
of the common control combination.

A uniform set of accounting polices is adopted by
those entities. All intra-group transactions, balances
and unrealized gains on transactions between
combining entities or businesses are eliminated.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker.

The board of directors of the Company assesses the
financial performance and position of the Group and
makes strategic decisions and is identified as the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (“CODM") responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segment.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation

()

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in consolidated financial statements
of each of the Group's entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
Since the majority of the assets and operations of
the Group are located in the PRC, the consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB, which
is the Company’s functional and the Group's
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are recognised
in profit or loss as finance costs. They are deferred
in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow
hedges and qualifying net investment hedges or are
attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign
operation.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each statement of
profit or loss and statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (if
any). Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over
their estimated useful lives or, in the case of leasehold
improvement and infrastructure of safety and medical
treatment, the shorter lease term, as follows:

o Medical equipment 5 years

o Electronic equipment 3 -5 years

o Office furniture and fixtures 5 years

o Motor vehicles 4 years

o Leasehold improvement and Shorter of remaining

lease term or
estimated useful
life

infrastructure of safety and
medical treatment

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.11).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in
profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Intangible assets

()

(i)

Software

The software represents the purchased computer
software which are capitalised on the basis of the
costs incurred to acquire the specific software.
Based on the current functionalities equipped by
the software and the daily operation needs, the
Group considers a useful life of 10 years is the best
estimation under current business needs. Therefore,
these costs are amortised over 10 years using the
straight-line method.

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 2.4.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in
intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses (if any). Gains
and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity
sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill
arose. The units or groups of units are identified at
the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes.
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(iii) Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are shown at
historical cost. Trademark as acquired in the business
combination is recognised at its fair value at the
acquisition date. All trademarks are amortised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of
10 to 11 years. Trademarks are carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (if
any). When determining the estimated useful life, the
Group considered the forecasted period during which
the trademark can bring the incremental economic
benefit to the Group and the operating history of the
trademark.

210 Research and development

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as
incurred. Costs incurred on development projects (relating
to the design and developing of new or improved products
and processes) are recognised as intangible assets when it
is probable that the project will be a success considering
its commercial and technical feasibility and its costs can be
measured reliably. Other development expenditures that
do not meet these criteria are recognised as an expense
when incurred. Development costs previously recognised as
an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent
period.

Capitalised development cost is measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation of capitalised development cost is
calculated using the straight-line method over its expected
useful life from the date they are available for use.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

2.12

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill is not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful
life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.
Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end
of each reporting period.

Investments and other financial assets

(i) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income
("OCI") or through profit or loss); and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12

Investments and other financial

assets

(Continued)

()

(i)

(iii)

Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment
at fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI"). The Group reclassifies debt investments
when and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(iii) Measurement (Continued)

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are two measurement categories into
which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly
in profit or loss and presented in other gains/(losses)
together with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line item
in the statement of comprehensive income.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A
gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net within other gains/(losses) in the period
in which it arises.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(iii) Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCl, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition
of the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in profit or loss and presented
within other gains/(losses) in the statement of
comprehensive income as applicable. Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12

2.13

2.14

Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)
(iv) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment

methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables, see Notes 20 and
3.1(c) for further details.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the balance sheet where the Group
currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts, and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out (FIFO) method. Costs of purchased inventory are
determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15

2.16

2.17

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. They are generally due for settlement within one
year and therefore all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. See
Notes 20 and 3.1 (c) for further information about the
Group's accounting for trade receivables and Note 2.12 for
a description of the Group's impairment policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new

shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18

2.19

Shares held for employee share scheme

Where the Company purchases the Company's equity
instruments, for example as the result of a share buy-back
or a share-based payment plan, the consideration paid,
including any directly attributable incremental costs (net of
income taxes) is deducted from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company as treasury shares until the shares
are cancelled or reissued. Where such ordinary shares are
subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net
of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs
and the related income tax effects, is included in equity
attributable to the owners of the Company.

Shares held by the Employee Share Trust of the Company
are disclosed as treasury shares and deducted from
contributed equity.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are
usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and
other payables are presented as current liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting
period. They are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees
paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw
down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it
is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortized over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when
the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished
or transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income or
finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted
by changes in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(i)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences, tax losses and
tax credits.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of investments in
foreign operations where the Company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(i)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current income tax assets and liabilities and where
the deferred income tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current income tax assets and
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred income tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively.

2.22 Employee benefits

()

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave that
are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect
of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected to
be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities
are presented as current employee benefit obligations
in the balance sheet.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Pension obligations

The Group has only defined contribution plan in
which the Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension insurance plans on
a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they
are due.

There were no forfeited contributions (by employers
on behalf of employees who leave the scheme
prior to vesting fully in such contributions) to offset
existing contributions under the defined contribution
schemes.

Medical and other benefits

The Group makes monthly contributions for
medical and other benefits to the local authorities
in accordance with relevant local regulations for
the employees. The Group's liability in respect
of employee medical benefits is limited to the
contributions payable in each period.

Housing benefits

The employees of the Group are entitled to
participate in various government-sponsored housing
funds. The Group contributes on a monthly basis
to these funds based on certain percentages of the
salaries of the employees. The Group's liability in
respect of these funds is limited to the contributions
payable in each period.
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Share-based compensation benefits are provided to
employees, and information relating to these schemes is
set out in Note 26.

The fair value of awarded shares granted to employees less
amount paid by employees is recognised as an employee
benefits expense over the relevant service period, being the
vesting period of the shares, and the credit is recognised
in equity in the share-based compensation reserve. The
fair value of the shares is measured at the grant date.
The number of shares expected to vest is estimated based
on the non-market vesting conditions. The estimates
are revised at the end of each reporting period and
adjustments are recognised in profit or loss and the share-
based compensation reserve. Where shares are forfeited
due to a failure by the employee to satisfy the service
conditions, any expenses previously recognised in relation
to such shares are reversed effective at the date of the
forfeiture.
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Provisions for legal claims are recognised when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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Revenues are recognised when, or as, the control of
the goods or services is transferred to the customer.
Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
applicable, control of the goods and services may be
transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of the
goods and services is transferred over time if the Group's
performance:

o provides all the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

° creates and enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods and services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods and services.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of performance
obligation is measured based on direct measurements of
the value of individual services transferred by the Group to
the customer.

If contracts involve the sale of multiple goods, goods
followed by related services, or multiple services, the
transaction price will be allocated to each performance
obligation based on their relative stand-alone selling prices.
If the stand-alone selling prices are not directly observable,
they are estimated based on expected cost plus a margin,
depending on the availability of observable information.
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2.25 Revenue recognition (Continued)
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When either party to a contract has performed, the Group
presents the contract in the balance sheets as a contract
asset or a contract liability, depending on the relationship
between the entity’s performance and the customer’s
payment.

The Group offers some discounts to the customers, and
revenue is recognised based on the price specified in the
contract, net of the discount.

If a customer pays consideration or the Group has a right
to an amount of consideration that is unconditional, before
the Group transfers a good or service to the customer,
the Group presents the contract as a contract liability
when the payment is made or the receivable is recorded
(whichever is earlier). A contract liability is the Group's
obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration (or an amount
of consideration is due) from the customer.

A receivable is recorded when the Group has an
unconditional right to consideration. A right to
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.

A refund liability is the constructive obligation to refund
some or all of the consideration received (or receivable)
from the customer and is measured at the amount the
Group ultimately expects it will have to return to the
customer. The Group updates its estimates of refund
liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction
price) at the end of each reporting period.

The following is a description of the accounting policy for
the principal revenue streams of the Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition (Continued)

()

Hair transplant

For hair transplant service,customers normally
receive treatment which contains various treatment
components (e.g. pre-surgery medical checking,
surgery treatment and post-surgery cleaning) that are
all highly relevant and regarded as one performance
obligation. Revenue from provision of hair
transplantation services recognised at a point in time
when the services have been rendered to customers.

The Group usually receives the payment from
customers in advance before the services are
rendered. The majority of customers normally do
not ask for a refund of payment and the services
not yet rendered are recorded as contract liability.
The Group has estimated the refund in respect of
unsatisfactory services rendered based on the Group’s
past experience with customers and recognised as
refund liabilities (see Note 4(b)). The contract liability
is recognised as revenue when the related services
are rendered.

Sales of hair transplant related goods are recognised
when the Group has transferred the products to the
customer, and the customer has obtained control of
the products.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

Medical hair care

The Group provides medical hair care services in
package which is accounted as multiple elements
of services. Revenue from medical hair care services
is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation. The
progress towards the complete satisfaction of
performance obligation is measured by direct
measures of the value of individual service transferred
to the customer. Normally, there is no expiry date for
the packages while majority of the customers take up
all the services in the packages within two years.

The Group usually receives the payment from
customers in advance before the services are
rendered. The majority of customers normally do
not ask for a refund of payment and the services
not yet rendered are recorded as contract liability.
The Group has estimated the refund in respect of
unsatisfactory services rendered based on the Group’s
past experience with customers and recognised as
refund liabilities (see Note 4(b)). The contract liability
is recognised as revenue when the related services
are rendered.

Sales of goods related to medical hair care are
recognised when the Group has transferred the
products to the customer, and the customer has
obtained control of the products.
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2.25 Revenue recognition (Continued)
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The Group also provides routine hair care services
in package which is accounted as multiple elements
of services. Revenue from routine hair care services
is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation. The
progress towards the complete satisfaction of
performance obligation is measured by direct
measures of the value of individual service transferred
to the customer. Normally, there is no expiry date for
the packages while majority of the customers take up
all the services in the packages within two years.

The Group usually receives the payment from
customers in advance before the services are
rendered. Customers normally do not ask for a
refund of payment and the services not yet rendered
are recorded as contract liability. The contract liability
is recognised as revenue when the related services
are rendered.

Sales of goods related to routine hair care are
recognised when the Group has transferred the
products to the customer, and the customer has
obtained control of the products.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 Earnings per share

()

(i)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

o the profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares;

o by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares
issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in
the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account:

. the after-income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares; and

o the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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The Group leases buildings as lessee. Rental contracts are
typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 15 years.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments (if
applicable):

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payment that are based on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.
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Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received;

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by
the Company, which does not have recent third-party
financing, and makes adjustments specific to the
lease, e.g. term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period.
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Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following (if applicable):

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received; and

o any initial direct costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases
of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis
as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less.

A lessee normally recognises an asset and a lease liability
when it enters into most leases under HKFRS 16. The
Group considers the lease as a single transaction in which
the asset and liability are integrally linked, so there is
no net temporary difference at inception. Subsequently,
as differences arise on settlement of the liability and
the amortisation of the leased asset, there will be a net
temporary difference on which deferred tax is recognised.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.27

2.28

Leases (Continued)

The Group has adopted Amendment to HKFRS 16 — Covid-
19-Related Rent Concessions retrospectively from January
1, 2022. The amendment 16 provides a practical expedient
for lessees to elect not to apply lease modification
accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic. The practical
expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as
a direct consequence of the pandemic and only if (i) the
change in lease payments results in revised consideration
for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less than,
the consideration for the lease immediately preceding
the change; (i) any reduction in lease payments affects
only payments originally due on or before June 30, 2022;
and (iii) there is no substantive change to other terms
and conditions of the lease. The group has early adopted
Amendment to HKFRS 16 - Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond June 30, 2021, which extended the
practical expedient to lease payments that were due on or
before June 30, 2022.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as
a liability in the consolidated financial statements in the
year in which the dividends are approved by the entities’
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.29

2.30

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property,
plant and equipment and other non-current assets are
included in the non-current liabilities and are credited to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives
of the related assets.

Interest income

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes. Any other interest income is
included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets
the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).
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The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance. Risk management
is carried out by the senior management of the Group and
approved by the executive directors.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The functional currency of majority of the entities
within the Group is RMB. Most of the Group's
transactions are based and settled in RMB. Foreign
currencies are used to settle the Group’s revenue and
borrowings out of Mainland China.

RMB is not freely convertible into other foreign
currencies and conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
Government.

Details of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
as at December 31, 2022, denominated in foreign
currencies, mainly USD are disclosed in Note 24.

The management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange exposure should the
need arises.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

(c)

The Group's income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates and the Group has no significant
interest-bearing assets except for cash and cash
equivalents, details of which have been disclosed in
Note 24.

The Group has no long-term borrowings with variable
rates, which expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. And lease liabilities expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk. The Group currently has not
used any interest rate swap arrangements.

Credit risk
(i) Risk management

The Group is exposed to credit risk primarily in
relation to its cash and cash equivalents as well
as trade receivables and other financial assets
at amortised cost. The carrying amount of each
class of the above financial assets represents
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to the corresponding class of financial
assets.

To manage this risk, deposits are mainly
placed with state-owned or reputable financial
institutions in the PRC. There has been no
recent history of default in relation to these
financial institutions.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has the following types of financial
assets subject to expected credit loss model:

. trade receivables

° other financial assets at amortised cost

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject
to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was insignificant.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics. The expected
credit loss also incorporates forward looking
information.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost
include other receivables, and management
makes periodic assessments as well as
individual assessment on the recoverability
based on historical settlement records and
past experience. Forward-looking information
incorporated in the expected credit loss model.
The Group has performed historical analysis and
identified the key economic variables impacting
credit risk and expected credit loss. It considers
available reasonable and supportive forwarding-
looking information. Especially the following
indicators are incorporated (if applicable):

° internal and external credit rating;

o actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant change to the debtor's ability
to meet its obligations;

o actual or expected significant changes in
the operating results of the debtor; and

o significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the debtor,
including changes in the payment status
of debtors in the Group and changes in
the operating results of the debtor.
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MBERER (F)

3.1 BHEREE (&)

(c)

(d)

FERR (&)

(i) RIEZERNLHE
EREERFE

R2022%F » A&

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c¢) Credit risk (Continued)

(iii)  Net impairment losses on financial assets
recognised in profit or loss

During 2022, the following losses were

TETJ?JEESBZE@%EQ recognised in profit or loss in relation to
ERREHER - impaired financial assets:
BZE12A318LEFE
Year ended December 31,
2022 % 20214
2022 2021
ARBT T ARKEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BB E A Impairment losses
Z 5 IR A BB Movement in loss allowance for
) (fF5E20) trade receivables (Note 20) 107 (59)
H b fE Uk FR B ETIE B4 E Movement in loss allowance for
e (FIsE21) other receivables (Note 21) (245) 212
SRMEEM ORER  (Impairment losses)/net reversal
1B),/ BEEULEEFE  gains on financial assets (138) 153
RENE SRR (d) Liquidity risk
AEEEEHAFTTENE The Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and

ERBSEFEY - ARME
MEBNBHREE K&
BERERAERNRER
ReSEMERESNE
A

cash equivalents. Due to the dynamic nature of the
underlying businesses, the Group maintains flexibility
in funding by maintaining adequate cash and cash
equivalents.
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MBERER (F)

3.1 BHEREE (&)

(d)

RBESEE (&)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

TERREEBEHURES
MBI B ORERIRE - &
R HAR DT A K E
MIETESRAE - RF
BENEBE/BHREA

RERE -

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities into relevant maturity grouping
based on the remaining period at the end of each
reporting period to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

PME 1225 2858 SERE it REE
Between Between

Less than 1and 2 and Over Carrying
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARMTR AR%TR AR%ETx
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000

R20225128318 At December 31, 2022
ZHREMEMZIE*  Trade and other payables* 69,882 - - - 69,882 69,882
MHEARE Lease liabilities 197,669 192,623 478,835 344,540 1,213,667 1,035,602
267,551 192,623 478,835 344,540 1,283,549 1,105,484

R2021E128318 At December 31, 2021
ET S Borrowings 75,099 - - - 75,099 74173
BHREMEMNFTIES  Trade and other payables* 121,274 - - - 274 121,274
HEBE Lease liabilities 191953 174275 452477 332,452 1,151,157 947,358
388326 174275 452,477 332452 1,347,530 1,142,805

* TeEESEEEH R * Excluding non-financial liabilities of accrued employee

ENREANFSRA

&

benefits and tax payable.
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3 MHERERE (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.2 E4ERER 3.2 Capital risk management
$5ﬁ<%f¥%$g‘j§%7%1ﬂﬁzﬁ The Group's objectives on managing capital are to
%ﬁ%ﬁ%%g‘]ﬁ?ﬁ&iﬁ$§ safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
E’Uﬂ%%ﬁ%@ AR B R B2 ¢ concern and support the sustainable growth of the Group
@*&%ﬁ/ﬁ\mﬂ{ﬁﬁ@%%@i\ﬂ in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
%\‘/ﬂgﬁ%%1§§$%%u%ﬂ for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
EEHBANRMEE - structure to enhance equity holders’ value in the long

term.
ﬁﬁg;ﬁgﬁg§$;§% AR E In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
EX%’EJ%:%E[E1#%E§%E?H§/%\$ the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
R BITHRG I EEER shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
DER - debt.
K%Eﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ%tt%%%ﬁ The Group monitors capital on the basis of the asset-
;K ° EZtt%ﬁ&fﬁw@ﬁ%\@M%@ﬁE liability ratio. This ratio is calculated as total liabilities
EJr%: cARBEEREEARGL divided by total assets. The Group aims to maintain the
RERHTERENCE - asset-liability ratio at a reasonable level.
R12H31H
As at December 31,
20225 20214
2022 2021
ARBT T AREETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BEE Total liability 1,345,058 1,500,958
WA E Total assets 2,930,368 3,199,303
EESMELR The liability-to-asset ratio 45.90% 46.92%
4 BARGEHETTRHE 4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

et RAE D RBEBELRREMBE
R (BREARBBEATHRREANS
IRTEHD) FHAERTAA o

AEBEHRRELGTMEE - B
BE  FEEsEFHESEARER
ERAR - RAKESEHTEYRE
EHMEERBBENKREEFLERH
Em At MR mMT o

JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

215
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4 ?%ﬁ#ﬁ*&%%
n\ﬁ

(a)

(b)

BERENGE
AEESFHARERTEET
ERE - RSN - BeE

A B ) T U O 2 RRAR IR 0 PR (B
BENFTEEE  MEBES

EBRABE - HEERERNEER
[EHAERE R F RN EREK
BEmETRM -

AFHEONRSREFEAK T
18FT AT IR REHE - tE
BMERHERBSELEMLLTT
¥R TEMITERSMEMTEAE
e

BEARESS I%F“&I%
BREA RSN ENFS
MIEE18 N EE ©

& R SR A AT AR S
B

AEBEF BT AR BERNT
BRE - UBFAREN TR ER
BREPER -

$$lemﬁm$§ﬁgﬁmﬂ
BT RN - LBHREAFELE
tﬁmmﬁﬂiﬁ“ﬁﬁ%%$
EBEGHFMTERER - AEETE
BB EBFERANTE - 1
MHEFAERFAE Fzmzﬁ
12A318 » HIBHERRER
LMEFM1%%%AEMSE
BT (20215128318 : AR
io0a &) (H5E28) -

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Estimation of goodwill impairment

The group tests whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment on an annual basis. For the reporting periods,
the recoverable amount of cash-generating units (CGUs)
was determined based on value-in-use calculations which
require the use of assumptions. The calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period.

Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using the estimated growth rates stated in Note 18. These
growth rates are consistent with forecasts included in
industry reports specific to the industry in which each CGU
operates.

Details of impairment charge, key assumptions and impact
of possible changes in key assumptions are disclosed in
Note 18.

Estimation of variable consideration for refund
to customers

The Group estimates variable considerations to be included
in the transaction price for the refund to customers in
respect of unsatisfactory services rendered.

The Group has estimated the refund which is based on the
Group’s past experience with customers. Any significant
changes in experience as compared to historical patterns
will impact the expected refund estimated by the Group.
The Group updates its assessment of expected refund
on a regular basis and the refund liabilities are adjusted
accordingly. The amount recognised as refund liabilities for
the expected refund was approximately RMB8 million as at
December 31, 2022 (December 31, 2021: RMB10 million)
(Note 28).
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4 BREHGHTRHUE 4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
(#48) JUDGMENTS (Continued)

(c) FrfE™ (c)

pi ]}

Income taxes

AEBEXEAGRPEMAEN
RETREHEBRAFHER
HE o BT RS RAAENREN
BEELTHEE - MZEEEN
RERBRBHERBYTLHENTER
TR AEERATEIELEH
8 E HIR M BIHA PR 1S 2% SR AT Al
SR -

IERERBERETEBRAA
(TIEREXR]D) FERFEME
X([=FpivhzE]) 8% - =8
15% K EBRFEHREE - B85
202112 A17 B A - B
B3IF -  REME  ARAEIAEMR
AR HEARIRFEAERS
FHMER - MARRTFES
M EEER  THEIHK
BE  RENBLEFEEEE
HiRY & BT S AR REFR 15 80 ©

EFIEEERASARBEREE
FAHELCHEMEERERRER
B R PR FE AR IR AT A A S R
BB RBIEERRER - KK
FE R T UL A BLIE R PR EA R ENAS A
FEMTE M RO KL R
FERBIA - BETFELERKE
R T B RO B R K 6 B RS B VR
et R Y - HEENERARK
ERRAELORER  KEER
B0 8 88 BUE 5] R R IER T T
EEET - B REEERERMEM
BEMNEABONE—FSHER
HENEBROE — S HR%
EHIBRBETER  c HESE
BH AEEBB@HIEEELEM
BR RN AERECHEHREE
BRMIFE13 ©

The Group is mainly subject to income taxes in the PRC.
Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are some transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current income tax and
deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination are made.

Beijing Yonghe Medical Investment Management Co.,
Ltd. (“Beijing Yonghe”) is qualified as “High and New
Technology Enterprises” (“HNTEs”) and is entitled to the
preferential income tax rate of 15%. The qualification
started from December 17, 2021 and is valid for 3 years,
and upon expiry the Company is required to submit the
application to relevant government authority to certify the
HNTEs qualification. If the Company disqualified from the
HNTEs certification, it cannot enjoy the preferential income
tax, and the change in tax rate will affect the current and
deferred income taxes in the period in which the change
takes place.

Deferred income tax assets relating to tax losses and
unused tax credits are recognised as management considers
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the tax losses and tax credits can be utilised.
Future taxable profit includes the profit from operating
results and taxable profits of future periods reversed of
taxable temporary differences. Estimates and judgment are
required in determining the timing and amount of future
taxable profit generated. In case where the actual future
taxable profit generated are less than expected, or change
in facts and circumstances which result in revision of future
taxable profit estimation, a material reversal or further
recognition of deferred income tax assets may arise, which
will be recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
such a reversal or further recognition takes place. As of the
respective balance sheet date, the Group’s unrecognised
deferred income tax assets in respect of tax losses and tax
credits have been set out in Note 13.
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7 EHEF

REpRIRER T BLERKERM
MABREE-—BNITAE2HR T8
RERREABE DR ERNFHEE
DEHRIR - CHE/EDEEIRE
MARAEZE - ARBTENER
HEZERERY P RBELUNREE
A BUMEFEE  BUNEER
BEREUNEBRR - ERERHEAE
E 2T (i FEE S E B L) BE
MEBMETEDE - At - ARF
MEIBKERRER/AEEES —

gL 8 -

AEENTEELEBHURTE -
ARHmERAREENTEZRATE
hEIEL -

P2022F12 4310 - AEEHAZH
IEMENEE L RPE -

RMERA > WEE—IINBEFPEL
I AME AR EE R AR 10% KA L -

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the CODM. The CODM, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segment, has been identified as the board of
directors of the Company that make strategic decisions. The
Group is principally engaged in the provision of hair transplant
service which are subject to similar type of services, similar
class of customers, similar regulatory environment and similar
business risk. Resources are allocated based on what is beneficial
to the Group in enhancing the value as a whole rather than any
specific unit. Therefore, the CODM of the Company regards that
there is only one operating segment for the Group.

The major operating entities of the Group are all domiciled in
the PRC and major of the Group's revenue were derived in the
PRC during the reporting period.

As at December 31, 2022, majority of non-current assets of the
Group were located in the PRC.

There was no revenue derived from a single external customer
accounting for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue during the
reporting period.
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REEEESHHWA 6 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH

CUSTOMERS

HZE12A31HLLEE
Year ended December 31,

2022 F 20214
2022 2021
AR¥ET T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BEEE Hair transplant 1,030,454 1,565,434
BEEEE Medical hair care 362,508 582,290
EAh Others 19,829 20,856
1,412,791 2,168,580
BZ12A318LEE
Year ended December 31,
2022 F 20214
2022 2021
AR®ET T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
REHERNETSIA Revenue from customer and recognised at
a point time
BEBRE Hair transplant 1,030,454 1,565,434
BEESE-HEE®R Medical hair care — sale of goods 40,399 30,498
Hih — HEEMm Others — sale of goods 9,173 11,014
1,080,026 1,606,946
REEREROEP A Revenue from customer and recognised
over time
BEEE - RB Medical hair care — services 322,109 551,792
Hith — % Others — services 10,656 9,842
332,765 561,634
et Total 1,412,791 2,168,580
BZ12A31HLEE
Year ended December 31,
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR¥T T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
mREDHE LA Revenue from customer by region
A B At Mainland China 1,403,092 2,160,776
B Hong Kong 9,699 7,804
1,412,791 2,168,580
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7 HilkA

7 OTHER INCOME

BZE12A31HLLEE
Year ended December 31,

2022 20214
2022 2021
ARBTR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BT BN (a) Government grants (a) 7,817 822
IBE RN R (b) Additional value-added tax credit (b) 1,870 2,781
9,687 3,603
(a) HUGABBBOERITHEIEALER S (a)  Government grants relating to income include various government
TEEGAR DR LT - D2 subsidies received by the group entities from the relevant
B EELESHEEDESSEEK government bodies in connection with listing of the shares on the
T 2B P U B /) 22 TH IR T /5 B © FR B 7 Stock Exchange, enterprise development, tax refund and employee
AL ARNEE S A EEEE LA S related grants etc. All subsidies were recognised at the time when

EEZ R -

the Group fulfilled the relevant criteria and the related expenses
were incurred.

(b)  ZEEMSAL£EE201944 B2 (b)  The amounts represent the additional value-added tax credit
HERBHETFATEEARIEER applicable to certain subsidiaries of the Group providing hair care
PNEHER o services since April 2019.

g

8 Hib (EE) Uk — 8 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS — NET

BZ12A31HLLEE
Year ended December 31,

20224 20214F
2022 2021
AR®TR AREETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

HEME  BELEBENEBIE  Losses on disposal of property, plant and
equipment (2,036) (1,127)

REXRIEMERER S Gains on early termination of property

leases 2,121 -

RARFRIEWEMRENTEE  Compensation from the early termination
of a property lease 52 6,521
HAh Others (1,079) 1,321

(942) 6,715
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9 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales and services, selling and
marketing expenses, general and administrative expenses and

research and development expenses are further analysed as

follows:

BZE12A31HLLEE
Year ended December 31,

20224 20214F
2022 2021
ARMT T AREEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
EERMMAZ (HH3E10) Employee benefits expenses (Note 10) 616,705 700,258
R &L HERRX Promotion and marketing related
expenses 481,202 684,274
EREEESE (FIEE17) Depreciation of right-of-use assets
(Note 17) 113,177 107,729
Y« E N R EITE (H5£16) Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 16) 106,842 92,029
FEREMAR Cost of inventories and consumables 94,216 101,220
KEE - HEBMAZEMAY  Utilities, maintenance fee and office
expenses 50,449 51,647
Bi1E &M & Taxes and surcharges 29,377 44,820
ZR R BHFRX Travelling and entertainment expenses 26,641 37,131
REHEERS MY (MI7E17())  Rental expenses for short-term leases
(Note 17(b)) 13,465 18,693
Bl g Technical fee 8,963 6,000
mpEEEE (MiE18) Amortisation of intangible assets
(Note 18) 4,653 1,217
1% B4R 7 B Auditors’ remuneration 4,265 7,158
— ZBBRTS — Audit services 3,150 7,158
— FIELE AR - Non-audit services 1,115 -
EHREE Consulting service fee 3,319 6,048
WX Listing expenses - 42,519
EEx Other expenses 29,745 22,213
HE Total 1,583,019 1,922,956
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10 EEBAIBX

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

BZE12A31HLLEE
Year ended December 31,

20225 20214

2022 2021

ARET T ARBFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

IE& - e kitsi Wages, salaries and bonuses 504,234 609,612
BESKA — REHKE Pension costs — defined contribution plans 46,689 38,538
Ht g REK AR Other social security costs 24,415 21,970
F 5=/ Housing benefits 20,983 16,542
& R H A 2 Welfare and other expenses 20,200 13,412
LA BB A7) 7 EE T ) 46 (8 7 2 Share-based compensation expenses 184 184
616,705 700,258

(M)

(if)

REE R B/AS EP BT T IK
B IR NGB AR B SRE (R 8I -
REB AT EIFL O HRIRBTT
TRARENEEFENSER
DEEE - URE B RR KRR

RHEES -

HZE2022F12A318ILEE -
7N 8 A 4 AT e B2 40 05 BRFT P 8
EMREERFEEEOERR
TSR o

BESKA - ATHKTER
2022FFFEMN EBRHR
T&  EAXEHSRIEAR2020
FER2021FMEF - Bt » KA
EFETE  FHERIELTESE
HEE SR AN ©

(i)

Employees of the Group are required to participate in a
defined contribution plan administrated and operated
by the local municipal government in the PRC. The
Group contributes funds which are calculated on certain
percentages of the employee salary as agreed by the local
municipal government to the plan to fund the retirement
benefits of the employees.

The Group did not have any forfeited contribution for the
year ended December 31, 2022 in connection with defined
contribution plan operated by local governments.

Pension costs — defined contribution plans increased in
2022, primarily due to wages, basic salaries and bonuses
increased from 2020 to 2021. Thus, pension costs, which
are calculated using last year's wages, salaries and bonus
increased.
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10 BRERFBX (&)

(iii)

hE&E=FMAL

HZE2022F12A31BILEE -
rEEBAMESESMNABALE
% (Q201F : —R)EF
HENS M 34T R DT AR
BR o 7A2022 EFTE 820U (2021
FmB) ALHBSmT

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

(Continued)

(iii)  Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments are the highest in
the Group for the year ended December 31, 2022 include
one (2021: one) director whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis shown in Note 34. The emoluments payable
to the remaining four individuals during 2022 (2021: four)

are as follows:

HZE12A31HLLEE
Year ended December 31,

2022 % 20214
2022 2021
ARMT T ARKEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
T& - #%<e T84 - FEATE Wages, salaries, bonuses, housing

& REMIESRET funds and other employees benefits 5,695 4,669

BEESRA — REHKETE] Pension costs — defined contribution
plans 175 170
AR D BETR A mE R Share-based compensation expenses 12 16
5,882 4,855

ZOBRALTOMEN KA T

The emoluments of the four individuals fell within the

: following bands:
BZ12A31HLLEE
Year ended December 31,
20225 20214
2022 2021
AE A
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
e #E - Emoluments bands:
1,000,001 702 1,500,000/  HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1 3
1,500,001 022,000,000/ 7C  HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 2 1
2,000,001 7£2,500,000 7 HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1 -
4 4

RBER - BEESEKAEH
ISE AUV =g RS G
& - EAKS| A& B Rk
INAZ & B 1% 52 E) 3k 1 A RERR A

=y
g o

During the reporting period, no director or the five highest
paid individuals received any emolument from the Group
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.
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12

BAIERAS — B ER

11 FINANCE COSTS - NET

BZE12A31HLLEE
Year ended December 31,

20224 20214
2022 2021
ARMT T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000

BB A Finance income
SN U 2 Foreign exchange gains 88,120 -
HRITHE ARSI Interest income on bank deposits 15,262 6,130
103,382 6,130

B 3% B A Finance costs

RITERFERX Interest expenses on bank borrowings (1,605) (3,946)
HESBENBMAX Interest expenses for lease liabilities (49,622) (48,003)
(51,227) (51,949)
IR — BE Finance costs — net 52,155 (45,819)

F AT

12 SUBSIDIARIES

AEER2022F12831THHNEZE TR
AIETIN T o BRBERAIN - ZF
FRAMBRAER LT BARAR - I
AEBEHEERZE  MAKBEMEES

The Group’s principal subsidiaries at December 31, 2022 are
set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital
consisting solely of ordinary shares that are held directly by the
Group, and the proportion of ownership interests held equals
the voting rights held by the Group.

TR L DI TS BRI IR AR

BiER ERALBHREASR IEXBRAEHE BRARARREE FEBFEERRRERLY
Proportion of interest
Place of incorporation and Principle activities and Particulars of issued  and voting power held
Name of entity kind of legal entity place of operation share capital by the Group
(AR®TR)  mE 0%
(RMB'000) 2022 2021
ERER
Directly Owned

Yonghe Management Consulting Co. Ltd.
Yonghe Management Consulting Co. Ltd.

BEEE

Indirectly Owned

PrEBRMERRAA (L RERR])

Beijing Haiyouyou Technology Co., Ltd.
("Beijing Haiyouyou") *

RER
Beijing Yonghe*

RERLEE AREALT
The BVI, limited liability company

hE N EBELR

The PRC, wholly foreign-owned enterprise

hE - BRELAA
The PRC, limited liability company

ERBRABBEEHNIRY
Consulting in the BVI

EREENEEREREREH
Investment and management in
the PRC

EREENEEREREREH
Investment and management in
the PRC

IRERR 1E7T 100% 100%
1 ordinary share, USD$1

711,765 100% 100%

442,857 100% 100%
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12 ¥ H 12 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
BiER EREEESVINY] IEXBRAEHE BEARAREE FEBFEEERRERLY
Proportion of interest
Place of incorporation and Principle activities and Particulars of issued  and voting power held
Name of entity kind of legal entity place of operation share capital by the Group
(AR®TR)  mE 0%
(RMB'000) 2022 2021
IR EEEENRERLT hE - BRELAA EPRRREERERT 8,000 100% 100%
Beijing Hafada Hair Increase Technology Co., Ltd. *  The PRC, limited liability company Wig business in the PRC
IREREEREEERAT hE - BRELAA EPRRREEZEANRS 10,000 100% 100%
Beijing Yunyihui Medical Management Co., Ltd. *  The PRC, limited liability company Hair consulting in the PRC
PRERBERGFARERAR hE - BRELAA ERERNEL TR AR 500 100% 100%

Beijing Yonghe Hair Transplant Technique Research Hair research in the PRC

Laboratory Co., Ltd. *

The PRC, limited liability company

FEHEE (LR)ARAA

Svenson Hair Care (Beijing) Co., Ltd. *

hE - BRELAA
The PRC, limited liability company

EHESREETERRER
Hair care in the PRC

358,752 100% 100%

FHRRERAEEEZE
(TR ])

Chengdu Wuhou Yonghejimei Medical Cosmetology ~ The PRC, limited liability company
Clinic Co., Ltd. (Chengdu Yonghe) *

YHARAA T BREALA AREENCE T EERRE 556 100% 100%

Hair-related healthcare services in
the PRC

BREREEFD HERA
Beijing Yonghe Meidu Outpat\ent Department Co.,

hE - BRELAA
The PRC, limited liability company

ERESMELTEERRR 1,500 100% 100%
Hair-related healthcare services in

Ld. * the PRC
BMERERZANYBERLR hE - BRELAA EPERRNEEEERERE 500 100% 100%
Guangzhou Yonghe Medical Cosmetology The PRC, limited liability company Hair-related healthcare services in
Outpatient Department Co., Ltd. * the PRC
REFHERBREA D IRRAA hE BREARA ErEENELEERERE 500 100% 100%
Dongguan Dongcheng Yonghe Medical Beauty The PRC, limited liability company Hair-related healthcare services in
Clinic Co., Ltd. * the PRC
EifEgr DARAR ([HHRE)) BE BRELLA ErEENEEEERERE 9 100% 100%
Nu/Hart Hair Solutions Ltd (“NUHart") Hong Kong, limited liability company Hair-related healthcare services in
the PRC
Hai Zhousheng Biotechnology (Beiing) Co., Ltd B+ ERELLT ERESNEEEERRRE 10,000 100% 100%
Hai Zhousheng Biotechnology (Beijing) Co., Ltd* ~ The PRC, limited liability company Hair-related healthcare services in
the PRC
Shanghai Yuhui Management Consulting Co., Ltd ~ #E - BREFLA EREENE e ELRRRE 1,000 100% 100%

Shanghai Yuhui Management Consulting Co., Ltd*

The PRC, limited liability company

Hair-related healthcare services in
the PRC
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Beijing Xunyi Technology Development Co. LTD* ()  The PRC, limited liability company

Investment and management in
the PRC

12 ¥ H 12 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
BiER ERALBHREARR IEXBRAEHE BEARAREE FEBFEEERRERLY
Proportion of interest
Place of incorporation and Principle activities and Particulars of issued  and voting power held
Name of entity kind of legal entity place of operation share capital by the Group
(AR®TR)  mE 0%
(RMB'000) 2022 2021
RREERNREREHLT hE - BRELAA EPERNELEERERE 2,000 100% 100%
Shijiazhuang Yonghe Technology Co., Ltd* The PRC, limited liability company Hair-related healthcare services in
the PRC
RIEREERERAMDH hE - BRELAA EPERNELEERERE 1,000 100% 100%
Shenzhen Yonghe Jimei Medical Cosmetology The PRC, limited liability company Hair-related healthcare services in
Clinic* the PRC
AEEREVIRY BERAR hE - BRELAA EPREREEZERRNS 1,000 100% 100%
Hefei Yonghe Plastic Surgery Outpatient Department  The PRC, limited liability company Hair-related healthcare services in
Co,, ltd. * the PRC
RFUERBERBERRA hE - BRELAA EPREREEZERRNS 2,000 100% 100%
Shijiazhuang Yonghe Medical Service Co., Ltd. ¥ The PRC, limited liability company Hair-related healthcare services in
the PRC
IRERERBHNERAT hE BREHAT EPREREEZERRNS 500 100% 100%
Beijing Yonghe Information technology Co., Ltd*  The PRC, limited liability company Hair-related healthcare services in
the PRC
BREER
Structured Entity
FRAZNBERARLAW) hE - BREELT EPEAREERERERRE 100 100% 100%

* BERXAHEEENRE -

*

English names are translated for identification purpose only.
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(a)

(b)
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MITERER - AEBEE BRI
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SEEREH A ENEERAA
KENER - UWRKRIIERE
R(REZEHRBNHEREREE -
AEBFEARER SN MK EAER B A
BB TSP E R — DB A

<
ZS o
I

ERPRH

AR®B291B8& T (M7E24)
(202145 : AR¥E386EEIT) WY
ReERBSEEMRTREANME
B R E R INE S HIEF] R
PR o b5 E i B SNE B BIEBIAR
E o BRBA—RIREI  BREE
B E AN

12 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

The Group primary engages in providing hair transplant
services and medical hair care services, which involve
the operating of medical institutions, and therefore
falls into the scope of the “restricted” category of the
Special Administrative Measures for the Access of Foreign
Investment (Negative List). As advised by Company’s PRC
legal advisers, the Company, as a foreign entity, shall
not hold, either directly or indirectly, more than (i) 90%
equity interest in the Company’s hair transplant institutions
located in Sichuan province; and (ii) 70% equity interest in
the Company’s hair transplant institutions located in other
provinces other than Sichuan. As a result, in line with
common practice in industries in the PRC subject to foreign
investment restrictions, the Group entered into a series of
contractual arrangements with Beijing Xunyi Technology
Development Co. LTD and its shareholders to enable the
Group to gain effective control over, and receive all the
economic benefits generated by the businesses currently
operated by Beijing Yonghe (together with the medical
institutions it wholly owned, other than Chengdu Yonghe)
and Chengdu Yonghe.

Significant restrictions

Cash and cash equivalents of RMB291 million (Note 24)
(2021: RMB386 million) are held in Mainland China and
are subject to local exchange control regulations. These
local exchange control regulations provide for restrictions
on exporting capital from the country, other than through
normal dividends.
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13 FriEHiB

13 INCOME TAX EXPENSES

BZE12A31HLLEE
Year ended December 31,

20225 20214
2022 2021
AR¥T T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BIEIFT1S Current income tax 3,744 93,649
ESEPTASH (FifRE30) Deferred income tax (Note 30) (27,352) (3,561)
FRS R Income tax expense (23,608) 90,088
(a) FHEEE (a) Cayman Islands
AARIRFEHESRERERES The Company is incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as
NEVEAMK I RERRERA an exempted company with limited liability under the
Al AL EREHARSESM Companies Act of the Cayman Islands and, accordingly, is
1 exempted from Cayman Islands income tax.
(b) REEL#EE (b) British Virgin Islands
RIERBEZESRITAN & Under the current laws of the British Virgin Islands, the
RERZBESTIMAZNF AT subsidiaries incorporated in British Virgin Islands are not
BABNPTER o subject to income tax.
(c) BEBREH (c) Hong Kong Profits Tax
REBEIMK I FRABIEARE The subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong is subject
& B BB EA L R R to Hong Kong profits tax at the rate of 16.5% on any
BRI E16.5%MMEAFEH - estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong.
(d) PEBITXE£FREH ([1% (d) PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT")
FRrig# 1)

ERAX el FaARERERE
) BN ER RO RE RS B - A Y
LENMEHEEBIREBRITA
PIFNE iR R BRI - X FH%
HIR TR (S R R A B DA E A B

HH -

The income tax expenses consist of current and deferred
income taxes payable in the PRC by the subsidiaries.
Income tax provision in respect of the operations in the
PRC has been calculated at the applicable tax rate on the
estimated assessable profits for the year or period, based
on existing legislations and interpretations and practices in
respect thereof.
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13 FriEHifx (&

(d) PERELCEREH (13
FrE®il) (&)

M2021%12 8178 » £ REK
HERFBEMEEER  BEX
15%MEBMEHBE - 28
NEZIARERB=-—FEFHEED
HBEMEEFHZRERR 1t
Hh - IRIE A B BRI AR A KoK
B ERBEONETFRARMFEN
WMEER -

B Lt F AR EAbER B
BEBERABRELEMEVIER
TRRE R IR 25% MR EFS T
MR

BA KBRS B AT AEET E
B BEA25%EFEMETH

13 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

(d) PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) (Continued)

On December 17, 2021, Beijing Yonghe was qualified as
HNTEs and is entitled to the preferential income tax rate
of 15%. This status is subject to a requirement that Beijing
Yonghe reapply for HNTEs status every three years. In
addition, certain of the subsidiaries in the PRC are qualified
as small and micro enterprises under the relevant tax rules
and regulations of the PRC.

Other than the above-mentioned subsidiaries, the other
operating entities in the PRC are subject to standard
income tax rate of 25% pursuant to the enterprise income
tax law and related regulations.

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

229

BENERSTEMEFOT statutory tax rate of 25% are as follows:

BZE12A31HLLEE
Year ended December 31,

20225 20214

2022 2021

ARET T AREF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

BETSRLRT (B518),/ I E (Loss)/profit before income tax (109,466) 210,276

25% A EMERFTEMRI  Tax calculated at statuary tax rate of

25% (27,367) 52,569
LATIEE BB E Tax effects of:
I ERERIELLAEHEENAR  Unused tax credits for which no

A HIEEZ) deferred income tax assets was
recognised (i) 10,685 25,374
AR REROTIIAEIE  Utilisation of previously unrecognised
tax losses (86) (18)
LI Expenses not deductible for tax
purposes 2,139 1,165
e EE R Research and development tax credit (3,685) (2,607)
WEERIELFSHEERNT  Tax losses for which no deferred
IHEE income tax asset was recognised 18,339 448
BRBERNTE Impact of preferential tax rates (23,633) (7,879)
FR B TE A0 AT S R (i) PRC withholding income tax (ii) = 12,697
FAPIFTEHEBMDEZER  Income tax of shares transfer of Beijing
Frig i Haiyouyou in Reorganisation - 8,339

(23,608) 90,088
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13 FiE%imx (&
(d) RELRMEH ([L¥

&

()

(i)

Bl (&)

RIR D EPTS B R AE
ER O BERAXHBRKR
AMEMRREFEAD
15% - M & Al &8
EERFEEMN - AESL
EERAXHAREAMEE
RHERELERESHEE -
RARASESEERE
PR R RS AR
HEHEX%  BEERRRA
78RR A KA BE B A %
ERERHARR

M2022F12AH318 - I
BB EEN I ENES
X ERELCMSHEE
WABATERESELY
BARBS35HETT (2021
F12A318  AR¥A492
BET) -

HEIENAREHR

BIKE2007F 12 A6 HE
R E TS BE T IR
Bl - #2008 1 A1 8% -
VAR B A R EE A HY R E )
HGMNEEEDROEKE
TR 10% BB AN 78 40
Frig®i - P ERHFRQ
ANEEZEZERARRNES
AR FAE R BE A
HEBRITNBHE B TR
P Al FE A EBEAY5 % TE 0
FT{SRiE -

B =2022%12H318 -
b FEN R E R ERE
BIERAERAREIRTMA
f% 8 (R2021F9AH6H -
1t FUB B K R %8 K B B i
BERAASEEEAR
126 B &L - WAFE
AT ABRNARE3
BEITWIENMRER)

13 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

(d) PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) (Continued)

()

(ii)

Pursuant to the EIT Law and related regulations, the
pre-tax deduction for advertising expenses is limited
to the 15% of the revenue in the current year, and
the excess could be carried forward for deduction
in the following years. Deferred income tax assets
relating to unused tax credits of advertising expense
are not recognised as management considers it
is not probable to utilise these unrecognised tax
credits in the foreseeable future because the Group
will continue to invest on promotion and marketing
activities to expand its businesses.

As at December 31, 2022, unused tax credits for
which no deferred income tax assets has been
recognised in respect of deductible advertising
expense carried forward amounted to approximately
RMB535 million (December 31, 2021: RMB492
million).

PRC withholding income tax

Pursuant to the Detailed Implementation Regulations
for Implementation of the EIT Law issued on
December 6, 2007, dividends distributed from the
profits generated by the PRC companies after January
1, 2008 to their foreign investors shall be subject
to withholding income tax at the rate of 10%, a
lower 5% withholding income tax rate may be
applied when the immediate holding companies of
the subsidiaries in Mainland China are incorporated
in Hong Kong and fulfil the requirements to the tax
treaty arrangements between Mainland China and
Hong Kong.

As at December 31, 2022, there are no dividend
to Yonghe Medical Holdings Limited was declared
by Beijing Haiyouyou (On September 6, 2021, the
dividend of RMB126 million to Yonghe Medical
Holdings Limited was declared by Beijing Haiyouyou
and the withholding income tax of approximately
RMB13 million was recognised in income tax
expenses).
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13 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

(d) PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) (Continued)

(ii) PRC withholding income tax (Continued)

At as December 31, 2022, the Group has not accrued
any withholding income tax for the undistributed
earnings of its subsidiaries in Mainland China as the
Group does not have a further plan to distribute
these earnings from its subsidiaries in Mainland China
except for the above dividend (December 31, 2021:

nil).

A12H31H
As at December 31,
202245 20214F
2022 2021
ARET T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
WABBEA25%FTSFE  Unused tax losses for which no
B E B RIEETEH deferred income tax assets has
BAEMASAHIBERE been recognised for entities
subject to the income tax rate of
25% 77,265 4,253
HESEBEAERANK The expiry dates of the unused tax losses as of the
PAMEBEBENISHA N respective balance sheet dates are listed as below.
T °
®12A31H
As at December 31,
2022 F 20214
2022 2021
AR¥T T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
HENATFEL : Year ended/ending:
20234 2023 815 815
20244 2024 357 699
20254 2025 948 948
20264 2026 1,790 1,791
20274 2027 73,355 -
77,265 4,253
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14 8 (BE), 2R
(a) EREX (FE) BF

BREX (BR),/ BN TIEAT
BREETEST

. EN/NS: RN
BT RERRBZRHR
MREBEHANEBEOERS
B & F)) (Mf5E26)

o BRUMBEEREITEIN
B LR ME T - W
MFERNDETEBR (T
BREMEERDTEFA
EIRR (5 ) &9 A% F F8 = (B 5
26) °

14 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

Basic (loss)/earnings per share

Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

o the profit attributable to equity holders of the
company, excluding undistributed earnings
attributable to unvested restricted shares during the
vesting period (Note 26);

o by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the
year and excluding shares held for employee share
scheme (Note 26).

BZE12A31HLLEE
Year ended December 31,

20225 20214
2022 2021
ARET T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AN EE=EE ARG FR (Loss)/profit for the year attributable
(E518),/ 7B (ARET  to equity holders of the Company
JT) (RMB'000) (85,858) 120,188
W RERBRBEHMDNE Less: undistributed earnings attributable to
BEENERRI R D BLAEF]  unvested restricted shares during vesting
(ARETT) period (RMB'000) 1,882 (2,618)
ARFEESREREF A (Loss)/profit attributable to the ordinary
NAEREEEIEE AJEN  equity holders of the Company used
(E518),/ FIE (AR®TF  in calculating basic earnings per share
JT) (RMB'000) (83,976) 117,570
BETERAMNEFIE Weighted average number of ordinary
(F1&%) equity shares in issue ('000) 512,900 400,750

MEANRRQTEEEZRS  Basic (loss)/earnings per share for profit
BAEGFIEZB/RER  attributable to ordinary equity holders of
(&18),/ BF| (LAFI A  the Company during the year (expressed
R¥ETTIR) in RMB per share)

(0.16) 0.29
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14 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
(Continued)

(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into
account:

o undistributed earnings attributable to unvested
restricted shares during the vesting period added
back to the numerator, and

o the weighted average number of additional ordinary
shares that would have been outstanding assuming
the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

The potential ordinary shares were not included in the
calculation of dilutive losses per share, which would be
anti-dilutive, and the dilutive losses per share was the same
as the basic losses per share.

As the Group incurred losses for the year ended December
31, 2022, the potential ordinary shares were not included
in the calculation of dilutive losses per share, which would
be anti-dilutive. Accordingly, dilutive losses per share was
the same as the basic losses per share.
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MMEBER(ER), BA

(&

n

(b)

(c)

SREBE (BB EF

(&)

HZE2021F12A831HIEFE -
FREERFIT -

14 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
(Continued)

(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the diluted
earnings per share was as follows:

AR EERERBNHAR
A EBESFHE ARG

Profit attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the
Company used in calculating basic earnings per share

(AR®TT) (RMB’000) 117,570
e RKBRBZREIRMDNEEE  Add: undistributed earnings attributable to unvested

BB A DI AFI (AR restricted shares during vesting period (RMB’000)

T 2,618
BRETESREERFINA D Profit attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the

AIEEERSIF A AR Company used in calculating diluted earnings per share

(ARETT) (RMB’000) 120,188
BEsTEERERAFINS T  Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as the

BRI 8 (FR%Y)  denominator in calculating basic earnings per share ('000) 400,750
METEHEREER AR Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share:

ZR IR G (FR) Restricted shares ('000) 29,418
RAEstEEREEREFNNHE  Weighted average number of ordinary shares and potential

B N OB B INAE S ordinary shares used as the denominator in calculating

HE (TR diluted earnings per share ('000) 430,168
FEANANRQ T EZEEE AL Diluted earnings per share for profit attributable to equity

FEz B EEREF (LAE  holders of the Company during the year (expressed in

ARETTIIR) RMB per share) 0.28
EREFSENER (c) Information concerning the classification of

RN EZRFERTREINR
R il B £ 70 57 I 2 B AR AR A3
Bk - FRER (BR), BRI
EEW AR AZRSIBND - ZR
SRR EBMAFRES KD
BB D FEAREBOZR
IR FEAE BV R 0 BL B AV
B NAESRELR(BR) &
e ZERN T ERETBKR
IREFIHEA

FREE (BR) BNNEE
EFtARRHIRGD - HERER
(B18),/ BNOBABEINEES
Mg (B518), ANME S Foh -

B RS R BI OFEBE M T
26 °

securities

Restricted shares granted to employees under share award
schemes are not regarded as outstanding until they are
vested. The restricted shares have not been included in the
determination of basic (loss)/earnings per share. Restricted
shares are entitled to undistributed earnings during the
vesting period, and the numerator should be adjusted for
undistributed earnings attributable to unvested restricted
shares. These shares are excluded from the weighted
average number of ordinary shares for the calculation of
basic (loss)/earnings per share.

Restricted shares have been included in the determination
of diluted (loss)/earnings per share. The adjustments to
basic (loss)/earnings per share are added back to the
numerator in diluted (loss)/earnings per share.

Details relating to the restricted shares are set out in Note
26.



ANNUAL REPORT 2022 =—Z=——4F#&# 235

E R SR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 RE 15 DIVIDENDS
BZE12A31HLLEE
Year ended December 31,
20224 20214
2022 2021
ARET T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
% 2.5k (a) Dividend distribution (a) 40,058 69,800
EEAHIR B B ARE0.0767T  Proposed final dividend of

RMB0.076 per share - 40,058

HR2022%F6 A28  ARREIRFES (@ On June 28, 2022, the Company declared a cash dividend of

A% B 4949.02 BB T (W ARKA40.06 approximately HKD49.02 million (approximately RMB40.06
B&ET) - BIEAR0.093%8 T - REE million), being HKD0.093 per share. The dividend has been paid
R2022F9 148N - BRESEA on September 14, 2022 amounting to RMB43.16 million (On
AREA316BETT o (R2021F11 A November 12, 2021, the Company declared a cash dividend of
128 ' AR ST RBE/EHARE approximately RMB69.80 million, being RMBO0.1645 per share.
69.80B & T - ANFKRARKO0.1645 The dividend has been paid on November 25, 2021).

JC ° BB ER2021F11 A25HIKN) ©
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16 Y% - BERFE 16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
RENFEER
BARR ZERERAR
BRRE ETRH RZ& RE ERRiE @t
Leasehold
improvement
and
infrastructure
Office of safety
Medical ~ Electronic furniture Motor  and medical
equipment  equipment and fixtures  vehicles treatment Total
ARBTRT ARBTR ARETR AR%T:R ARBTT AR¥TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
RA&: Cost
®202151818 At January 1, 2021 28,007 26,735 18,405 791 347,684 421,622
SN Acquisition of a subsidiary - 228 - - 34 262
HE Additions 11,417 11,606 6,510 4 204,632 234,169
& Disposal (1,427) (1,728) (1,286) - (24,741)  (29,182)
20215128318 At December 31, 2021 37,997 36,841 23,629 795 527,609 626,871
#2021 718 At January 1, 2022 37,997 36,841 23,629 795 527,609 626,871
HE Additions 18,653 9,558 7,292 1,347 265,899 302,749
HE Disposal (2,117) (3,855) (2,079) (2) (18,391)  (26,444)
20225128318 At December 31, 2022 54,533 42,544 28,842 2,140 775117 903,176
RifHE Accumulated depreciation
#202151A18 At January 1, 2021 (7,173) (13,399 (5,902) (241) (85,470)  (112,185)
ik Depreciation (6,418) (7,840) (4,049) (136) (73,586) (92,029
kS Disposal 616 1,538 661 - 24,741 27,55
#2021512A31H At December 31, 2021 (12,975) (19,701) (9,290) (377) (134,315)  (176,658)
#202251R18 At January 1, 2022 (12,975) (19,701) (9,290) (377) (134,315)  (176,658)
ik Depreciation (8,616) (9,195) (4,915) (439) (83,677)  (106,842)
kS Disposal 845 2,788 1,009 1 17977 22,620
R2022%12A318 At December 31, 2022 (20,746) (26,108) (13,196) (815) (200,015)  (260,880)
REFE Net carrying amount
20215128318 At December 31, 2021 25,022 17,140 14,339 418 393,294 450,213

#2022F12R31H At December 31, 2022 33,787 16,436 15,646 1,325 575102 642,29
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16 V¥ - BERS%E (& 16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17

(Continued)

MERIZFABRIRE M2 HE W= Depreciation expenses have been charged to profit or loss and
RZFNWT presented in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income as follows:

BZE12A318LEFE
Year ended December 31,
2022 % 20214
2022 2021
AR®T T ARKEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
SHE KRR A Cost of sales and services 90,376 79,012
HEREHAX Selling and marketing expenses 9,828 9,226
—MRITHFAX General and administrative expenses 6,638 3,628
R Research and development expenses - 163
106,842 92,029
==
HE 17 LEASES
(a) REHEEEBRERN (a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance
& RE sheets
R12H31H
As at December 31,
2022%F 20214
2022 2021
AR®ET T AREEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEREEE Right-of-use assets
HEgF Leased buildings 989,235 925,142
HEEE Lease liabilities
E Current 190,554 185,055
FERED Non-current 845,048 762,303

1,035,602 947,358
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17 #HE (&) 17 LEASES (Continued)
(a) REMEEEBRERY (a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance
+£8 (&) sheets (Continued)
NEMEERABERNTEREERE The movement in right-of-use assets in the consolidated
g balance sheet are as follows:

BZE12A31HLLEE
Year ended December 31,

20224 20214F
2022 2021
ARET T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
A Cost
NE ) At beginning of the year 1,250,543 1,032,566
NE Additions 279,162 380,569
HERE Lease expiration (34,394) (44,511)
HEEH®IE Termination of lease contracts (44,200) (32,006)
HEBH() Lease modification (i) (11,071) (86,075)
RER At end of the year 1,440,040 1,250,543
A& Accumulated depreciation
REL) At beginning of the year (325,401) (221,913)
FRPFTEREL Depreciation charge for the year (171,314) (159,679)
A& 5 5 Lease expiration 34,394 44,511
HEEHRIE Termination of lease contracts 11,516 11,680
RER At end of the year (450,805) (325,401)
RERE Net book amount
RER At end of the year 989,235 925,142
(i) HZE2022F12A31HIEF (i) For the year ended December 31, 2022, lease modifications
& REBEEFTM AR ER have been recognised in relation to certain rent concessions
20226 A30REERETH granted to the Group after 30 June 2022 as a result of the
CERAMEREEER - COVID-19 pandemic.
HZE2021F12A831HIEFE - For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group has
REBEMN2020F5 AL R A— leased a property for a new clinic in Beijing in May 2020
R EE—REME  HEH with a term of six years. Due to the change of the lessor,
BNEF o BRHBEANEE - K the Group terminated this lease contract on July 31, 2021
EEN202157 A31 B IEZE and then entered into another agreement with the new
EE4) - SA1ER2021F8A25H lessor on August 25, 2021. The change has no impact on
BB ABEI N — D5k o % the operation of the clinic.

BHDMNZEELERE -
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17 HE& (&) 17 LEASES (Continued)
(b) REHZEKERERN (b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
ot statements of comprehensive income

BZE12A31HLLEE
Year ended December 31,

20224 20214
2022 2021
ARET T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
CHREEERER: Depreciation charge of right-of-use
assets 113,177 107,729
FERZ (FEE11) Interest expense (Note 11) 49,622 48,003
EHEERERX Expense relating to short-term leases 13,465 18,693
(c) FRAEEENET AT (c) Depreciation of right-of-use assets are charged
Eh to the following categories:
BZE12A318LEFE
Year ended December 31,
2022 % 20214
2022 2021
AR¥TT ARKEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
SHE AR A AN Cost of sales and services 104,188 98,862
—MRITHAE General and administrative expenses 4,318 3,544
HEREHMAX Selling and marketing expenses 4,671 5,323
N Subtotal 113,177 107,729
EREEAREMEREREL Capitalised as leasehold improvement
2 RERAEAREE and infrastructure of safety and
medical treatment 58,137 51,950
171,314 159,679
(d) #Z202212A318ILEE - (d) The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended
HERSRLEREORARE December 31, 2022 are approximately RMB195 million
195 HE L (2021F + AR (2021: RMB221 million).

221EETT) °
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18 BILEE

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

B4 [ Be BE
Software Trademarks Goodwill Total
ARBTRT AR%®TR AR®ETR AR%®TxR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
B : Cost
MW2021F1A1H At January 1, 2021 4,376 - - 4,376
G B /NC] Acquisition of a subsidiary - 4,758 25,157 29,915
NE Additions 8,240 772 - 9,012
k= Disposal (197) - - (197)
H2021F12A31H At December 31, 2021 12,419 5,530 25,157 43,106
M2022F1A1H At January 1, 2022 12,419 5,530 25,157 43,106
AE Additions 1,618 1,456 - 3,074
& Disposal (223) = = (223)
M2022F12A31H At December 31, 2022 13,814 6,986 25,157 45,957
g £ Accumulated amortisation
MW2021F1A1H At January 1, 2021 (829) - - (829)
B Amortisation (1,174) (43) - (1,217)
HE Disposal 197 - - 197
202112 A31H At December 31, 2021 (1,806) (43) - (1,849)
MW2022F1A1H At January 1, 2022 (1,806) (43) - (1,849)
jigis Amortisation (4,455) (198) - (4,653)
HE Disposal 223 = = 223
M2022F12A31H At December 31, 2022 (6,038) (241) - (6,279)
BRTERE Net carrying amount
720214124318 At December 31, 2021 10,613 5,487 25,157 41,257
12022412 A31H At December 31, 2022 7,776 6,745 25,157 39,678
(a) BEFRIFABRIREHEZE (@) Amortisation expenses have been charged to profit or
WK 2T loss and presented in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income as follows:
BZ12A31HLLEE
Year ended December 31,
2022 % 20214
2022 2021
ARBT T ARKEFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
—MRITHRAX General and administrative expenses 4,440 1,206
e Research and development expenses 213 9
HEREHMAX Selling and marketing expenses = 2

4,653 1,217
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18 |BILEE (&)

(b)

M2021%F5A318 - GUEREH
BEELANEEHARKE2H

SEM([BeEEEM]) -
EITRERR - R2022F12 A
318 - BEBENmESEITRERT
b BIMEEKENEEEBEE
AW B SR E BB (HER
My DIREEREE ([EARE
BDFEET - stEFERERE
ENERENENTFEMEE
EMHeREEA -

TREHHMN2022F12 8318
BEETRESRETEMNAETTE
ERENHMKENSEEER

= .
B -

2023F YA 30.4%
(% FHER)

2024F E2025F /A 17.0%
(% FHER)

2026 F YA 12.0%
(% FHER)

2027 F WA 6.0%
(% FHEER)

BRI RE 2.0%

BRAEGATALIR X 18.1%

M2022412 8310 - BiBFEA
BEMENHSEEBMATK
E&EARKISEETRBREEA
REIEETLHNEAEARE?
BEL - EEECEELTGHE
HEFERBNSIBAIAEE - B
I 48 5 B AT ] AT RE S| AR E(E
BEAWEEFENBR

EEERETHERENFHH
REDHT o TREFIN20224F
12A31TEREIREZ/RER
T seEe) RNMEREEMNE
FR 18 S B AE S 5 BR TR SR IR RE A
&

-0.6%
1.0%

FPAERE
BT

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(b)

The goodwill of approximately RMB25 million arising from
the acquisition of NU/Hart on May 31, 2021 has been
allocated to the cash generating unit (“CGU") of NU/
Hart for impairment testing. As at December 31, 2022,
management performed an impairment assessment on the
goodwill. The recoverable amounts of the hair transplant
business operated by NU/Hart have been assessed by an
independent valuer and determined based on value-in-
use (“VIU") calculation. The calculation used cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year
period approved by management.

The following table sets forth each key assumption on
which management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill as at December
31, 2022:

Revenue 2023 30.4%
(% annual growth rate)

Revenue 2024 to 2025 17.0%
(% annual growth rate)

Revenue 2026 12.0%
(% annual growth rate)

Revenue 2027 6.0%
(% annual growth rate)

Terminal growth rate 2.0%

Pre-tax discount rate 18.1%

As at December 31, 2022, the recoverable amount of
the CGU of RMB35 million calculated based on VIU
calculation exceeded its carrying value of RMB33 million by
RMB2 million. Management has considered and assessed
reasonably possible changes for other key assumptions
and have not identified any instances that could cause the
carrying amount to exceed their recoverable amount.

Management has undertaken sensitivity analysis on the
impairment test of goodwill. The following table sets
forth all possible changes to the key assumptions of the
impairment test and the changes taken in isolation in
the VIU calculations that would remove the remaining
headroom as at December 31, 2022:

-0.6%
1.0%

Annual revenue growth rate
Discount rate

241
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18 |BILEE (&)

(b)

(@

(&)

ARAEEFARYETELHN
BEAEEHESIBREELE
UMREERBEATNE S -

LR2EFIHEMMR2022F12
A31BFEMmAIE S5 - AR
RIEEET #E22022F12 A
31 FERFIRAERER
f& o

MARBSBEEITHIEN20214
5A31 B RERFMESEBEA -
BEMERY  BHEENKRA
T 2RENEREERRREED
BEBERDE - BEERREM
EEFRKREREREER - KM
REHERY - BE2ZMHER
T RBARBERITFRAR
Bi- iz EELEMNZEET
BX-

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

The directors of the Company considered there is no
reasonably possible change in key parameters would cause
the carrying amount of each CGU to exceed its recoverable
amount.

By reference to the recoverable amount assessed by the
independent valuer as at December 31, 2022, the directors
of the Company determined that no impairment provision
on goodwill for the year ended December 31, 2022.

The trademark of approximately RMB5 million is identified
in the acquisition of Nu/Hart on May 31, 2021. As of
the valuation date, the revenue of NU/Hart mainly comes
from hair transplant services with the Nu/Hart trademark.
Management considered that NU/Hart will provide
continuous service by using the trademark after acquisition
and by reference to the valuation report, this trademark
will make revenue contribution for 11 years and after that,
the incremental economic benefit became immaterial.
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19 €T EDHE 19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
SRMEE ®12H31H
Financial assets As at December 31,
20225 20214
2022 2021
FiEE AR®T T AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
R A ETE RS RYEE ¢ Financial assets at amortised cost:
RekReZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 24 565,093 1,566,192
EHFR Term deposits 23 412,940 -
e R HMEWRIE Deposits and other receivables 21 69,590 57,442
B 5 WA Trade receivables 20 7,055 13,351
1,054,678 1,636,985
cREasE ®W12A31H
Financial liabilities As at December 31,
20224 20214
2022 2021
BisE ARET T ARBFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

RS AETEN SR AE © Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
B 5 REMBERNFIE (DR Trade and other payables
REMNBIERETES (excluding tax payables and

‘) accrued employee benefits) 28 69,882 121,274
HEEE Lease liabilities 17 1,035,602 947,358
& Borrowings - 74,173

1,105,484 1,142,805
AEEEBRHEFIMLESHTARH The Group’s exposure to various risks associated with the
MZERR - RREHARAMBENRA financial instruments is discussed in Note 3. The maximum
SERMBMBAOA NS ERSREE exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the
ZIREE - carrying amount of each class of financial assets mentioned

above.
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20 B 5 WA

20 TRADE RECEIVABLES

M12831H
As at December 31,
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR¥T T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
RERFPHONE S EWFIA Trade receivables from contracts with
customers
—8=75 — Third parties 7,086 13,489
T R E RS Less: allowance for impairment (31) (138)
7,055 13,351
(a) &~&EE—KBELEAETF IR (a) The Group usually receives the payment from customers

1B - B RWIALE BEEKE
FEEBETRMBERE=TXN
FRHEBENTNSRBBLE
=AXNFERIE - BRHTE=
XA F A MEERTZERNE
EEFE  —REEHRISAR -
20214 - AEEMRBALEESR
FH#HERMR  —REEHMR3ME
R REZAMETHE SR

in advance. The trade receivable is primarily the receivable
from financial institutions or the third-party payment
platforms which the customers have already settled their
payment through financial institutions or the third party
payment platforms. The credit term given to the third
party payment platforms are determined on an individual
basis with normal credit period within 15 days. The Group
starts to sell goods to the corporate customers in 2021
and generally offers them a credit term of 3 months. The

FIBEREC AT - ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on invoice
date is as follows:
R12H31H
As at December 31,
20224 20214
2022 2021
ARBT T AREEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
=EAKRA Up to 3 months 6,805 12,305
=ZEREA 3 to 6 months 249 1,184
NMEAZE—F 6 months to 1 year 22 -
—EMF 1-2 years 10 -
7,086 13,489
B R EEE Less: allowance for impairment (31) (138)
HEt Total 7,055 13,351
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20 E5 WA (8) 20 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
(b) EZERFTENAAEER (b) Fair values of trade receivables
AR REEBGIAB RS Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables,
HEMERRSEANABERX their carrying amounts are considered to be approximately
M - the same as their fair values.
() BEKEAE (c) Impairment and risk exposure
REME3.1() AT - 720214 On the basis as described in Note 3.1(c), the loss allowance
2022F12 A31BHHE ZEWK for trade receivables as at December 31, 2021 and 2022
FIEBBRHETOT are determined as follows:
W12A31H
As at December 31,
2022 20215
2022 2021
FHEER RASE FERENE BUEEXR FReE BEEER
Gross Loss Gross Loss
Expected  carrying allowance  Expected carrying  allowance
loss rate amount  provision loss rate amount provision
ARETT AR®TR ARETLT ARETET
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
g R EWFE Trade receivables
- SEkE - Financial institutions 0.11% 6,170 7 0.08% 10,958 9
-E=FATE — Third party payment platforms 1.33% 678 9 1.63% 673 1
—EEP - Corporate customers 6.36% 238 15 6.35% 1,858 118

7,086 31 13,489 138
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21 FAEE - IR R EAM 21 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

=+
FE WK TE RECEIVABLES
R12H31H
As at December 31,
2022 % 20214
2022 2021
ARMT T ARKEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARBEE Included in current assets
AT RRIE Prepayments
BE ks SRR & Advertising and information technology
services fee 22,823 27,410
BEGFE Purchase of inventory 6,880 8,240
EERRIERBE Professional and agency service fees 5,845 2,737
HeRYEERE Rental and property management fees 2,531 6,585
EAth Others 2,557 5,861
40,636 50,833
KA EE I EE Deductible input VAT 6,075 7,683
H{th fE W g Other receivables
% (a) Deposits (a) 64,363 52,809
AT IEERE S (D) Cash advance to employees (b) 3,293 649
Hith Others 4,445 6,250
72,101 59,708
AL E A EUERIB A RE B () Less: provision for impairment of other
receivables (c) (2,511) (2,266)
69,590 57,442
NEF Subtotal 116,301 115,958
SFAERBEE Included in non-current assets
EBLEE W% MENEE  Prepayments for intangible asset, property,

SR CE plant and equipment 9,258 1,508
st Total 125,559 117,466
(a) HR2FZpRFHEeRESR - (a) Deposits consists primarily of security deposits for rental.
by BENTFTEENRSA/EER % (b) Cash advance to employees are unsecured, interest-free

BRIRERER - and repayable on demand.
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RECEIVABLES (C

DEPOSITS AND OTHER
ontinued)

(c)  Impairment and risk exposure

On the basis as described in Note 3.1(c), the loss allowance

EHRIZEEK AT ENEMS for other financial assets at amortised cost at the end of
BEEMNEEEGETHOT ¢ reporting periods are determined as follows:
R12A318
As at December 31,
20226 20214
2022 2021
BHEEE RELAE BERENR BESEx FEAE BEEEHE
Gross Loss Gross Loss
Expected  carrying allowance  Expected carrying  allowance
loss rate amount  provision loss rate amount provision
AR¥TR AR¥TR ARETT ARBTR
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Htb W E Other receivables
- %% - Deposits 3.79% 64,363 2,438 4.10% 52,809 2,164
-2 FEEMNEE - Cash advance to employees 0.79% 3,293 26 0.77% 649 5
— B EGE — Other receivables 1.06% 4,445 47 1.55% 6,250 97
72,101 2,511 59,708 2,266
A=
22 78 22 INVENTORIES
M12H31H
As at December 31,
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR¥T T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
B EEEM Medical hair care consumables 39,811 12,883
) % 58 R FEM Pharmaceuticals and medical consumables 21,485 17,617
VR EEE R Wash and hair care products 20,596 16,894
Hith Others 6,197 5,744
88,089 53,138
W FERERE Less: allowance for impairment of
inventories - -
88,089 53,138

HZE2022F12A31HILFE » HERE
HEMBRBEXNANTENRBARKI
BETL(2021F : HARKBI01EE

JT) °

Inventories recognised as cost of sales and services during the
year ended December 31, 2022 amounted to approximately
RMB94 million (2021: approximately RMB101 million).
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23 EHEX 23 TERM DEPOSITS
REME R12831H
The Group As at December 31,
20225 20214
2022 2021
ARBT T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
B ITE HiTF HKD term deposits 180,938 -
EITE BFR USD term deposits 161,451 -
AREFEHFR RMB term deposits 70,551 -
412,940 -
AAT R12831H
The Company As at December 31,
20225 20214
2022 2021
AR®ET T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BITTE BFR HKD term deposits 180,938 -
EITE BITF R USD term deposits 91,352 -
272,290 -
2 BRHR R = {8 A &9 7F BA T RO Term deposits with initial terms of over three months were
EEINARORE © FA2022812A318 ¢ neither past due nor impaired. As at 31 December 2022, the
120 5 By R 3 = & A B9 F 817 3R AR carrying amounts of the term deposits with initial terms of over
EEEEAFERE - three months approximated their fair values
24 HERREEEY 24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
REME R12831H
The Group As at December 31,
20225 20214
2022 2021
ARBT T ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
H|ITER Bank deposits 563,683 1,565,882
FHRRES Cash on hand 1,410 310

BeRREEED Cash and cash equivalents 565,093 1,566,192
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24 e RBEEEEY (8) 24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(Continued)
AEBNBESRESZEVNERE The carrying amount of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
THRATEH%ETE - are denominated in the following currencies:
®12A31H
As at December 31,
2022 F 20214
2022 2021
AR®T T ARKEFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR RMB 292,526 385,502
ET usD 184,908 7,250
BT HKD 87,659 1,173,440
565,093 1,566,192
LN R12A318
The Company As at December 31,
2022 F 20214
2022 2021
AR®T T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
RITIFHK Bank deposits 151,852 1,176,033
RekBEeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 151,852 1,176,033
AATWES LRSS EEYNERE The carrying amount of the Company’s cash and cash
THRATE¥ETE - equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:
MA12H31H
As at December 31,
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR®TF T ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR RMB 1,330 -
ET usb 67,924 7,218
BT HKD 82,598 1,168,815

151,852 1,176,033
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25 BARR B RE

26

25 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

LmREE EEEN B tn 4 18
Number of Share Share
ordinary shares capital premium
AR¥ETT ARBEFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
EE Authorized
R2022%12A31H As at December 31, 2022 5,000,000,000 323 -
EEITRER Issued and fully paid
M2021%F12831H As at December 31, 2021 519,955,916 8 1,240,408
RITE B ERIZEMRMEEIT  Issuance of ordinary shares upon
Timhk (M5t )) the over-allotment (Note (a)) 7,124,500 —* 91,879
EEITREZE Issued and fully paid
7"2022%12A31H As at December 31, 2022 527,080,416 8 1,332,287

(a)

Ll gREE R AR 1,0007T ©

ANAFH2022F 1 A5 B HE
7,124,500 B A% 15 ([ 858 Bd 2% A
7 1) LAER15 88 TR BIRITE
ol EEER - HKRAE
EETHEBEE - BeMEAd
BITBR% - ARREINIEIL
107. 5B 8BTS FIRFEE -

AR A 5 EL 1 B 37 BA

(a)

IR A0 R b=t &l

R2020F3 A318  bFF K
B B SR B A BE DARR 10 A L
I FBNET SRS (RIERBELE)
HITEE Bt 1) BERAK
AN AR AL RE R KRR (B
IERAZBIN) UARBINEE
TTHREMKRELERII8ESE
B EEEEAHSWMH AT
& (I8% & ERRMETEI]) 1 2)
RABEAARBSIEFEE TN
ERRELEZEITHORHAER
Ak Hm (TenEEMKMETE]) -
Fitt - 20203 A31 B#R AL
BEURGO AEROTHAORD
HEA(THEEEE]) -

*

The balance stated above was less than RMB1,000.

The Company partially exercised the over-allotment
option on January 5, 2022, in respect of an aggregate of
7,124,500 shares (the “Over-allotment Shares”) at a price
of HKD15.8 per share. The Company received additional
net proceeds of approximately HKD107.5 million, after
deduction of underwriting fees, commissions and other
offering expenses payable by the Group.

26 SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

(a) Share award schemes

On March 31, 2020, the shareholders of the Beijing
Haiyouyou communicated the details of the share-based
compensation scheme including the performance criteria
with the grantees, pursuant to which, 1) shareholders
(other than Beijing Xunyi) of Beijing Haiyouyou who would
convert to the shareholder of the Company would transfer
in total 8% of the shares of the Company to Mr. Zhang Yu
and 118 eligible employees at a consideration of RMB111
million (the “8% Employee Share Plan”); 2) the Company
would issue approximately 6% of the shares of the
Company to Mr. Zhang Yu at a consideration of RMB89
million (the “6% Employee Share Plan”). Accordingly,
March 31, 2020 is considered as the grant date (the “grant
date”) of the selected share-based compensation.
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26 LU 0 B E 1 89 I B 26 SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION
(%8 (Continued)

(a) KipERBEHE ()

(a) Share award schemes (Continued)

8% EERH=HE

R2021F4A238 » KABIRRE
(RELAE MRBEAERIN) ([
AL RIE8% & B D EH &M
FREEHER AR QR ME AR
RIERBR QG DB EEMEE
5,000,000 /% & 3,000,000 A% % 17
(D BUEARRE]EBEITIRHG A5 %
53%) c RIDEEIREEAS
BRAR AW FI#E1T -

RIEZATE - REXAERT18F
AEREE ([AEREE]) H 5
J&1%5,000,000/% % 3,000,000 /%
f& R o % TR ELEMBRMLBER
THREERGE RTEERE
EMRHBENEERE XA AR
Bk BHAEREETNK —T
KRS BRI BR 8 o B 30% A%
EWRHAINBEHREEREREA
BERBERAREERTERMFR
EHIRS SR8 30% MRS A
REBAEREEEAERAENR
PRBEETN = FRISHNE
B BT 40%AINBHEEERE
BHEAERBRARAEEELTEN
WERBEHRGERE - ME E1%(E
BERZUBETBEZERERE -
BT SR IE B BB T ai%
EEZVMNBEBLRSMNI 5%
HFEFIE (WER) #1708 -

RERARE13.89TTHEMNR
HEREHARBINMNEBELE
HEREEERZEEEREEBD
MR2021F5 ABEE T4
RESEMBROEERS -

FHRHEERAER AR ([FEl)
M202151 A1SBERBERE LB
EFEMAY c ARELEEEEH
B BERIERER AR (2B
H)R2021F1B15BEHRE
BRABEEMA - BBRERE
RIEHINE E1%EBNEESME

T

8% Employee Share Plan

On April 23, 2021, shareholders (other than Mr. Zhang Yu
and Mr. Zhang Hui) of the Company (the “Transferors”)
transferred in total 5,000,000 and 3,000,000 shares
(representing 5% and 3% of the issued shares in the
Company, respectively) to Yunuo Technology Holdings
Limited and Zhirui Technology Holdings Limited,
respectively, under the 8% Employee Share Plan. The
shares transferred was in proportion to the Transferors
respective shareholding in the Company.

Under the plan, Mr. Zhang Yu and 118 eligible employees
(the "eligible employees”) were granted 5,000,000 and
3,000,000 shares, respectively. The shares granted to Mr.
Zhang Yu would be vested when the consideration have
been paid. The shares granted to eligible employees would
be vested when such eligible employees complete a certain
service period after QIPO. In which, 30% of these shares
could be vested when such eligible employees complete a
two-year service period after QIPO, 30% of these shares
could be vested when such eligible employees complete
a three-year service period after QIPO, and the remaining
40% could vest when such eligible employees complete a
four-year service period after QIPO. If an eligible employee
ceases the employment by the Company within this period,
the awarded shares will be repurchased by employee
incentive platform, at the price that the employees initially
purchased, and if applicable, plus 4.5% per annum
interest.

The total consideration for the shares calculated at the
price. of RMB13.89 per share of approximately RMB111
million were fully paid by Mr. Zhang Yu and those eligible
employees in May 2021 and the shares granted to Mr.
Zhang Yu had been vested.

Yunuo Technology Holdings Limited (the “Yunuo”) was
incorporated in the BVI on January 15, 2021 and wholly
owned by Mr. Zhang Yu. Zhirui Technology Holdings
Limited (the “Zhirui”) was incorporated in the BVI as a
limited company on January 15, 2021 as an employee
incentive platform for the eligible employees, which is
controlled by the controlling shareholders.
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26 LR 10 B E® 8 # B 26 SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION
(& (Continued)

(a) KiPERBEHE ()

(a) Share award schemes (Continued)

6% EE R 17t &

202148268  KRQFA]
REceNEERMOEMRMZY
Investment Capital Ltd. 27T
6,382,979k - IEA QA
&5 #16.0% ° ZY Investment
Capital Ltd. 1E3RJEE 2 # 5k
K - BRELRELEHRE o &
TTRELAENROANREES
NEERE -

BITHEESRARE13.89 T
HEMRREBARBSIEELERN
2021 F5AZN - mMAAERGE
EHB -

REBEFABBRRESRELE
R ERMETEITE TAEERS
RELBHNAABEEE AT
AR 14.197T - BB ERR (0
ARIRE R AR RRIBTER) & E
HEEHEEEET c BTEE
BOEIETRONA R EBES

6% Employee Share Plan

On April 26, 2021, the Company issued 6,382,979 shares,
representing approximately 6.0% of the shares of the
Company, to ZY Investment Capital Ltd. under the 6%
Employee Share Plan. ZY Investment Capital Ltd. was
incorporated in the BVI and wholly owned by Mr. Zhang
Yu. The share issued to Mr. Zhang Yu would be vested
when the consideration has been paid.

The consideration of RMB89 million in total at an exercise
price of RMB13.89 each share was paid in May 2021 and
the shares granted had been vested.

The Group has applied discounted cash flow method
to determine the fair value of the underlying shares of
RMB14.19 per share under the respective Employee
Share Plan on the grant dates. Best estimates of key
assumptions, such as discount rate and projections of
future performance, are required to be determined by
management. Key assumptions used in determining the

BArBERHRSEET fair value of shares under the Employee Share Plans are as
follows:

8% EERMDTE 6%EERMBEE
8% Employee 6% Employee
Share Plan Share Plan
ALIR & Discount rate 13.5% 13.5%
2 L P ) Risk-free interest rate 3.21% 3.21%
R Volatility 53% 53%
T2 E I AT EE Discount for lack of marketability 10% 10%
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26 LR AEBRNEM 26 SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

(%) (Continued)
(b) EEmGEHE TEBRMNEE D (b) Set out below are the movement in the number of
FEEHD T ¢ awarded shares under the Employee Share Plans :
BZE12A318LEFE
Year ended December 31,
2022 % 20214
2022 2021
R&EE iz 8
number number
of shares of shares
RF A At the beginning of year 3,000,000 14,382,979
Esdun] Granted - -
b= Vested - (11,382,979)
RER At the end of year 3,000,000 3,000,000
REREARE L KD Shares not yet granted at the end of
year = -
() UBRGOBRERNZNARS (c) Expenses arising from share-based payment
EEXWEX transactions

BE12A31BLEE
Year ended December 31,

2022 % 20214
2022 2021
ARMT T ARKEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RIEEB R EIZE/THALA  Share award schemes issued under the
HREENET & Employee Share Plans 184 184

$2022%F12A318 © URH A As at December 31, 2022, the accumulated expenses
EMINRFEENRFFZEL arising from share-based payment transactions amounting
RAR¥ABET - HE AN to approximately RMB4 million, with the corresponding

f& 10 A E T & N o credit to the share-based compensation reserve.
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27 RIEERMTEIZEAERN 27 SHARES HELD FOR EMPLOYEE SHARE

gy

SCHEME

BRHOEE ARETT

Number of shares RMB’000

M20215F12H31H As at December 31, 2021 - -
ZEEAWER D Acquisition of shares by the Trustee 10,409,000 79,038
7"2022%F12A31H As at December 31, 2022 10,409,000 79,038

MR2022F7H268 AR ESER
FERANZRBIRMDEAFT B - ZTE
ERBAARMBHET0)F - B8E
ABRAR ([ZFEAL) » TTHARA]
L) BREEBAEXSBR AR
BN BT 5 B E IR AR IR -

ZETEIE T AR ABBAARE FERA
MR AAE : (WVEZREEREPARTE
MBARAEBEITRA CREEE) K
10% * R(NVBFUARF D EITERA
(TEEE)MN2% AR o REM12E
AHABA - IREZTE R T ER
AEANBROEE TEBREAAGE
BATIRA (PR HE)M1% ©

EXSRTHMMESHE TEON
ThE(BEREARE) - (DEEHH
BRI B tn B (TSR HIA D Bz )
HEBRDWBERRAEE © (2)BE
HEIRAREE  (3)ZRHIBD EAR
& 18 15 e A 35 A WER B 35 (B 1O (B SR 88
B &EER - R4 &AERTREA
BHATEHETHESRERTORT
FHEIHIR -

M2022% » ARAECLBE RENEH
BOMZFTEAHENARBIOBESTT

HZE20229012A318 T AD
MWHOARKIOEETE AKAQF
10,409,000 & 10 o ZFEABIER D
BOMESFHBNARBI1IEET
BEEBRARSMACEEY -

On July 26, 2022, the board of the Company has resolved to
adopt the restricted share units scheme. The scheme will be
effective for a term of ten (10) years after the adoption date.
The shares underlying the awards will be purchased by the Futu
Trustee Limited (“Trustee”) which has been appointed by the
Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited or off
the market.

The aggregate number of shares under the scheme available
to be granted to the grantees during the valid period (i) shall
not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company (as
changed from time to time) throughout the valid period, and (ii)
shall be subject to an annual limitation within 2% of the issued
share capital of the Company (as changed from time to time).
The number of shares which may be awarded to an individual
grantee under the scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company (as changed from time to time) in
any 12-month period.

The board shall periodically approve each grant plan which shall
include (1) the range or the maximum number of the shares
underlying the restricted share unit ("RSU") to be granted,
(2) the scope of the proposed grantees; (3) the price range or
the minimum price of the consideration to be received from
the grantees upon vesting of the underlying RSUs; and (4) the
duration of the grant plan for each batch of the proposed grant
under the scheme from time to time during the valid Period,
which shall be proposed by the administrator.

During 2022, the Company has contributed approximately
RMB90 million to the Trustee for the purchase of the shares
underlying the awards.

As at December 31, 2022, 10,409,000 shares of the Company
have been acquired by the Trustee with approximately RMB79
million. The remaining cash held for the share repurchase by
the Trustee was approximately RMB11 million, which has been
disclosed as Cash and cash equivalents.
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28 E 5 R HMENFIR 28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
A12H31H
As at December 31,
20224 20214F
2022 2021
ARMT T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000

[EETHE B &R Accrued employee benefits 61,136 83,712

H 5 e I8 Trade payables 43,968 36,059

FETRRIE Tax payables 13,100 20,722

RFRAE() Refund liabilities (i) 8,188 10,293

B E A Accrued expenses 8,197 42,122

RED Security deposit 5,691 4,270

JEE 1T BABE 05 3B Amounts due to related parties = 25,354

HAh Others 3,838 3,176

144,118 225,708

(i) 21$%€E$ETJ€$EIE’J§5@E%3}5 (i)  The Group has estimated the refund liabilities which is

LR RRAE (M1FE2.25) based on the Group's past experience with customers (Note
2.25).

(i) BERESHREMENZIEBSH (i)  The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are
MY EREEHEEREEAL considered to be approximated to their fair values, due to
BEESE - their short-term nature.

(i) MBIMEHR  BEXZQHIET (iii)  Aging analysis of trade payables based on invoice date at
EWE S ENFIENRE D0 the end of each reporting period are as follows:

T
R12H31H
As at December 31,
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR¥T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
=@AR Up to 3 months 36,190 29,120
—Z=N@AA 3 to 6 months 3,182 3,291
NEAZE—F 6 months to 1 year 1,669 1,378
—FEMF 1 to 2 years 1,747 1,961
BB E Over 2 years 1,180 309

43,968 36,059
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29 ERIAE 29 CONTRACT LIABILITIES
MA12H31H8
As at December 31,
20225 20214
2022 2021
AR¥TT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARAE Contract liabilities

BEER Medical hair care 129,959 167,488

BEEE Hair transplant 14,423 12,268

Hith Others 10,595 9,768

154,977 189,524
SEHEZEAR ,\%ﬁiﬁﬁ’mmiﬂ% The Group classifies these contract liabilities as current because

& REZ ZK% ?ﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁiﬁﬂﬁ—r the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer for at

HECEZEWESREZED12MA least 12 months after the reporting period.

(i) ERBEBENEXREH (i) Significant changes in contract liabilities
HRFEMAIER  BEEEE Contract liabilities for medical hair care contracts have
HHERBREEMRD decreased as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak.

(i) REREERINBA (i) Revenue recognised in relation to contract

liabilities
TRIRARE BERAEESR The following table shows how much of the revenue
BERANBAEE recognised in the current reporting period relates to
carried-forward contract liabilities:
BZ12A31BLEE
Year ended December 31,
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR¥T T AREEFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
EEEE Medical hair care 110,030 85,251
BERE Hair transplant 4,913 3,862
Hity Others 4,239 4,385
119,182 93,498
(iii) REITEXR (iii) Unsatisfied contracts

Mﬁlﬁi‘ﬁﬁﬂ M2022412 A31

REFHABITEESEY
}\Eﬁﬁmﬁéﬁ(zominﬂ
1 MARBITEET) HRE
R—FAERARA o BREBEEHR
—FRIER -

Management expects that the amount of approximately
RMB79 million of the transaction to unsatisfied
obligations as at December 31, 2022 (December 31,
2021: approximately RMB97 million) will be recognised
as revenue within next one year. The remaining will be
recognised in more than one year.
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30 IEEFTEH 30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
(a) IRIEFTEHEEDNITAOT : (a) The analysis of deferred income tax assets is as follows:
M12H31H
As at December 31,
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR®ET T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
FEIEFTISTHEE - Deferred income tax assets:
— BREBA12E BB UWER - Deferred income tax assets to be
BEFTISTEE recovered after more than
12 months 47,680 29,739
— B 128 B AR EEIEIE - Deferred income tax assets to be
FrisHiEE recovered within 12 months 13,258 3,092
60,938 32,831
RIBE G SOE B ELFTS5  Set-off of deferred income tax liabilities
BE pursuant to set-off provisions (515) (287)
EEFTSHEAEFE Net deferred income tax assets 60,423 32,544
FEEFSHARE Deferred income tax liabilities:
— BRBBI12E R BEER - Deferred income tax liabilities to be
FIEFTSREE settled after more than
12 months 1,609 852
— 2B A NEEERIEE - Deferred income tax liabilities to be
FrIEfRasE settled within 12 months 408 410
2,017 1,262
BRI ISR SSIRIEFTSH  Set-off of deferred income tax assets
BE pursuant to set-off provisions (515) (287)
REFTSH AEFE Net deferred income tax liabilities 1,502 975
(b) EEFTSHIRAFEEEHNT (b) The net movement on the deferred income tax account is
as follows:

BZ12A31HLEE
Year ended December 31,

20224 20214

2022 2021

AR¥T AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

RE Y] At beginning of the year 31,569 28,793
FTARGEHAZ (HE13) Credited to income tax expense

(Note 13) 27,352 3,561

WEE A Acquisition of a subsidiary = (785)

RER At end of the year 58,921 31,569




258 ZHERBEEEAMRALT YONGHE MEDICAL GROUP CO., LTD.

B O B 35 R Y R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 IRIEFFEHR (&) 30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
(€)  FR2022F K2021F R » IEIEFT () The gross movements in deferred income tax assets and
BHREEMBELEMSHEERRE deferred income tax liabilities during 2022 and 2021 are as
BEIOT - follows:
(i) IRIEFTEHREE : (i)  Deferred income tax assets:

B8R DY G
HEEE HE EB¥AE ZENEEE  AERRE  EROHH @t
Provision for  Intra-group
Tax Refund  impairment unrealised  Share-based
losses Leases liabilities of assets  profit or loss compensation Total
ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARET T ARBTT  AR%TR ARBTR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000

R2021%1518  As at January 1, 2021 11,924 13,937 1,895 494 400 541 29,191

SABR Credited to profit or loss ~ (4,050) 7,395 678 (39) 371) 27 3,640
2021512 318 As at December 31,

2021 1,874 21,332 2,573 455 29 568 32,831

R2022%1818  Asat January 1, 2022 1,874 21,332 2,573 455 29 568 32,831

STAER Credited to profit or loss 21,482 6,690 (526) 13 420 28 28,107
R2022%12 8318 As at December 31,

2022 29,356 28,022 2,047 468 449 596 60,938

(i) IRIEFTEFEE (i)  Deferred income tax liabilities:
HE BERE At
Intangible
Leases assets Total

ARBTRE AR®TRT AR®TR
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000

7"2021F1818 As at January 1, 2021 398 - 398
Uhg S aV/NC] Acquisition of a subsidiary - 785 785
FFAER Credited to profit or loss 133 (54) 79
M2021%F12831H As at December 31, 2021 531 731 1,262
sFAEZR Credited to profit or loss 824 (69) 755

7A2022%12H31H As at December 31, 2022 1,355 662 2,017
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31 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

2022 20214 - IRETISH
AIMBEZEMSR MK

(a) Cash (used in)/generated from operations

Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash
generated from operations for 2022 and 2021:

BZ12A31HLEE
Year ended December 31,

20224 20214
2022 2021
B 5T ARET T ARETT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BrATSEAT (&18),/ (Loss)/profit before income tax
B (109,466) 210,276
FATHIEELFE : Adjustments for:
PrE R Depreciation and amortisation 9 224,672 200,975
LARR 7 72 EE 188 & 5 BM Share-based compensation 10 184 184
HEWE - WER Losses on disposal of property, plant
RIEEE and equipment 8 2,036 1,127
RERIEMERE Gains on early termination of property
Frisias leases 8 (2,121) -
BTSN Finance costs 11 51,227 51,949
MEMKA Interest income 11 (15,262) (6,130)
SRBERERE, Impairment losses/(net reversal gains)
(B e Uz F5E) on financial assets 138 (153)
B 3 U5 2 Exchange gains (88,120) -
HiBEA#E Change in working capital :
- FE — Inventories (34,951) (26,117)
— B 5 RHAMEW K — Trade and other receivables,
IH - B HIERES prepayments and deposits (1,935) (8,211)
—ZE 5 RHAMEMNFKIE - Trade and other payables (53,474) 42,296
—&RBE - Contract liabilities (34,547) 68,877
%8 (FTA),/ BT8R & Cash (used in)/generated from
operations (61,619) 535,073
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31 REREER (KR)
(b) ¥RLBMETH

(o)

(b) Non-cash financing activities

31 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

BZE12A31HLLEE
Year ended December 31,

20224 20214
2022 2021
AR®T T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
REFHAEEE Addition of right-of-use assets 279,162 380,569
A EERFTE 2 (# FA#E Reduction in right-of-use assets and lease
ERHEaER L (M liabilities due to lease modification
17(a)i)) (Note 17(a)(i)) (11,071) (86,075)
FEEREHEE (c) Net debt reconciliation
BZ12A31HILLEE
Year ended December 31,
2022 % 20214
2022 2021
Bt AR¥ T ARET T
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
BeMIBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 24 565,093 1,566,192
TERIFER Term deposits 23 412,940 -
fBx Borrowings = (74,173)
HEAE Lease liabilities 17 (1,035,602) (947,358)
FE Net debt (57.569) 544,661
ReERBELEED Cash and cash equivalents 24 565,093 1,566,192
TEBIFR Term deposits 23 412,940 -
BIET Gross debt (1,035,602) (1,021,531)
FEB Net debt (57,569) 544,661
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CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

EEREHER (E) (c) Net debt reconciliation (Continued)
METBMBAE
Liabilities from financing
activities
Bek
HE BR  BEZED EHER @t
Cash and
cash Term
Leases Borrowings equivalents deposits Total
ARBTRT AR®TrR AR%Tr ARETR AR%Tn
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R2021FE18188 Net debt as at January 1,

BEH 2021 (829,930) (25,870) 292,856 - (562,944)
BengE Cash flows 204,743 (47,832) 1,271,559 - 1,428,470
R E New leases (380,569) - - - (380,569)
BERHRILE Termination of lease contracts 20,326 - - - 20,326
MEEBH Lease modification 86,075 - - - 86,075
R R BB A Finance costs recognised (48,003) - - - (48,003)
B (BE)/ e Exchange (loss)/gain - (471 1,777 - 1,306
R2021512A318#  Net debt as at December

FEE 31, 2021 (947,358) (74,173) 1,566,192 - 544,661
R202251R181 Net debt as at January 1,

FEB 2022 (947,358) (74,173) 1,566,192 - 544,661
BeRE Cash flows 194,664 74,173 (1,092,181) 408,840 (414,504)
HEIHE New leases (277,041) - - - (277,041)
MEAHKLE Termination of lease contracts 32,684 - - - 32,684
HEES Lease modification 11,071 - - - 11,071
BHER R B IR A Finance costs recognised (49,622) = = = (49,622)
ERERMS BB Finance income recognised - - - 4,100 4,100
& % e Exchange gain - - 91,082 = 91,082
R2022%12A318#  Net debt as at December

FEY 31, 2022 (1,035,602) - 565,093 412,940 (57,569)
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32 A 32 COMMITMENTS
(a) BEAEIE (a) Capital commitments
RIERARDITHNEMKRERE Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the end of
BEMBEAEARRAZNOT : the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is as
follows:
A12H31H
As at December 31,
20224 20214F
2022 2021
ARET T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
HEWEREENLE NERE Leasehold improvement and infrastructure
TR AT R of safety and medical treatment 35,550 74,158
Hinz - BE R Other property, plant and equipment 2,352 521
37,902 74,679
(b) HE&AE (b) Lease commitments
RHHEE (RemREEERg The Group's future aggregate minimum lease payments
AEMMEAR) THASHEZ due under short-term leases (which are exempted from
Rz AR EHEENFHEREN recognising the related right-of-use assets and lease
N liabilities) are as follows:
R12H31H
As at December 31,
2022 20214
2022 2021
ARBT T AREEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000

—FR Within 1 year 153 4,683
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33 B AR S

M—F AR NEENEEEHS -5
IHBE—FEVBREERE LB
BATE REFERREBE@E -
ME T R R R R — &6 s kR
%I B TR 4 4R 78 A A B B $§.EEK
ERAB REIRRIEK S TR
EREEETT -

RZFEHUBREEMELTHE
%9\\'50#&%?&?? 7N £5 B B H R e
EiﬁﬁTlIDTEﬁ* o RRFIESE
RAE BEAIRSIREREERBRRE
':F‘BZ$%.§5%X§E§E 73 BT 781 E & 16
FOETT c AEEMEBR AR HNERE
BERDEHEBHEEERET -

() BB TS EWRE
HEA%

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operation decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if
they are under common control or joint control in the controlling
shareholder’s families. Members of key management and their
close family member of the Group are also considered as related
parties.

Same as those disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the following significant transactions were
carried out between the Group and its related parties during the
reporting period. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the related party transactions were carried out in the normal
course of business and at terms negotiated between the Group
and the respective related parties. The Group's pricing policies
of the transactions with related parties are determined on the
basis of mutual negotiations between the relevant parties.

(a) Names and relationships with related parties

BMEBLnE  £B BEADNFNEE

Name of related parties Relationship with the Company

RERAE AARBEmRRENRES

Mr. Zhang Yu Beneficial shareholder and director of the Company

RIS AAAEmRRRES

Mr. Zhang Hui Beneficial shareholder and director of the Company

EiE e HCPEEBHEREBEEMERESR  MCPERLEX LIENEREEAN
[

Xinsiyu A company indirectly owned by a limited partnership managed by CPE,

(b) EEBILINERRS

which is the shareholder of the general partner of Paomao Shanghai

(b) Significant transactions with related parties

BZE12A31HILLEE
Year ended December 31,

20224 20214
2022 2021
AR¥T T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
104 SN Acquisition of a subsidiary
asig Xinsiyu - 30,000
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33 BHARS (&) 33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(c) FREAREEKH MR (c) Year ended balances with related parties
®12A31H
As at December 31,
2022 % 20214
2022 2021
AR¥ET T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
EABE®AEFHIE - FES5 Amounts due to related parties -
non-trade
FoiE Xinsiyu - 25,354
d) TEEEE AS T (d) Key management personnel compensation
TEEEERAREELS A Key management includes directors and senior officers.
B - EERECONSEMNETE The compensations paid or payable to key management for
EREENTFMOT employee services are shown below:
BZE12A31HLLEE
Year ended December 31,
20225 20214
2022 2021
ARET T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
TE  #Haehitia Wages, salaries and bonus 9,405 5,730
BEESRA — REHFKETEIPension costs — defined contribution plans 385 295
H A A RBCAR Other social security costs 255 199
FEEF Housing benefits 258 201
VAR AR 72 B B8 60 3 B Share-based compensation 26 24

10,329 6,449
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34 EEREANRER 34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(a) EEM= (a) Directors’ emoluments
HE2022% 12021124311 The directors received emoluments from the Group (in
gfgﬁgfgggg?}?@ﬂ their role as senior management and employee before their
LA/E%E/;:EQ;&?E% %{/\H;%};J appointment as directors respectively) for the years ended
1211?"1 B a7V December 31, 2022 and 2021 were set out below:
Exge  fiR BEeHA- HURDARERY
BEREMRE e BEEL  REMXTE HMWEX a5t
Basic salaries,
housing Pension
allowances costs - defined  Share-based
and other Discretionary ~ contribution  compensation
allowances Fees bonuses plans expenses Total
Wi ARETR ARETR ARETR AREFR ARETR ARETR
Note ~ RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
BZ20225128318  For the year ended
LEE December 31, 2022
YEs Executive Directors
REEE Mr. Zhang Yu 1,424 - 1 65 - 1,490
FTHRT Ms. Han Zhimei (i) 676 - 353 60 9 1,098
RELE Mr. Zhang Hui 570 - 336 59 7 972
2,670 - 690 184 16 3,560
FHTES Non-executive Directors
HEHhE Mr. Geng Jiagi i - - - - - -
Bass M. hi Feng i - - - - - :
BUFHTES Independent non-executive
Directors
RRBEE Mr. Chan Peng Kuan - 179 - - - 179
FINERE Mr. Li Xiaopei - 17 - - - 1
DI Ms. Liang Jihong (i) - 90 - - - 90
TEERT Ms. Wang Jiping (i - 84 - - - 84
- 525 - - - 525
BZ2021%125318  For the year ended
LEE December 31, 2021
YrEs Executive Directors
RERE Mr. Zhang Yu 1,304 - 140 54 - 1,498
RExE Mr. Zhang Hui 49 - 247 54 7 804
1,800 - 387 108 7 2,302
FUTES Non-executive Directors
YEREE Mr. Geng Jiagi - - - - - -
BBAE Mr. Zhai Feng - - - - - -
BIFHTES Independent non-executive
Directors
ZIMERAE Mr. Li Xiaopei - 14 - - - 14
TRt Ms. Wang Jiping - 14 - - - 14
iy Mr. Chan Peng Kuan - 14 - - - 14
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34 EEENRER (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

EEME (&)
(i) BB 202296 A28H
BETBWNTES -

iy Z#EEEBEN2022F6 A28
AEHE - ERITESBEEE
LU EmEERBEREAEE
TR A AR 75 AT BN B9 BN <& 3 3
REBEE - ARARRIEE
BRAEWESIENHEEE
HBmENME L IEN R EARE
o

(i) FHEFLLBEN202296H28
AT - REELAT 2T 1K2022
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34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

(i) Ms. Han Zhimei was appointed as executive director on June
28, 2022.

(i) Mr. Zhai Feng resigned on June 28, 2022. The emoluments
of the non-executive director Mr. Zhai Feng and Mr. Geng
Jiagi in relation to their services rendered for the Group
were not borne by the Group. Their emoluments were not
allocated to the Group as the management of the Company
considers there is no reasonable basis of allocation.

(i)  Ms. Wang Jiping resigned on June 28, 2022. Ms. Liang
Jihong was appointed as the Group’s independent non-
executive director on June 28, 2022.

Directors’ retirement and termination benefits

No retirement or termination benefits have been paid to
the Company’s directors for the year ended December 31,
2022 (2021: nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

No consideration was provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services during the year ended
December 31, 2022 (2021: nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans or other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors.

No loans, quasi-loans or other dealings were entered into
by the Company in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such directors
during the year ended December 31, 2022 (2021: nil).
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3 EEEAI N ERE (F) 34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(e) EERRG - THIHEN (e) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
HE XK ER arrangements or contracts
REZE2022F12A31HIEFE No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
FRFAEMEERE - FEEAER in relation to the Group’s business to which the Group
SEZ2ERANGESREFH was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
EE AR (EwmEEIHEE) B material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
HREEEBEANERERR the end of the years or at any time during the year ended
5 BHEREH (20214 : £&) - December 31, 2022 (2021: nil).

35 EBIE 35 CONTINGENCIES

REERABEBBESR S RETH The Group has been involved in some lawsuits arising in the

N NEEBRKEERLEZEREATA ordinary course of business. Provision has been made for

BGHRAGERE  AXEEERZS the probable losses to the Group on those claims when the

ZEMESTYNERELEE - HE management can reasonably estimate the outcome of the

BERAEXIAEBGHFRDERLE lawsuits taking into account of the legal advice. No provision has

BEMBETARATREXRERTL - 8l been made for those pending lawsuits where the management

T FhARIRFEAE LB - considered that the outcome of the lawsuits cannot be

reasonably estimated or management believes the outflow of
resources is not probable.
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36 X AT EEBEERREE 36 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

B85 MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
M12A31H
As at December 31,
2022 % 20214
2022 2021
B aE ARET T ARETTT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
&= Assets
ERBEE Non-current assets
RTFREIZEKE Investment in subsidiaries 765,039 265,039
IERBEERE Total non-current assets 765,039 265,039
REBEE Current assets
TEfRRIA « ke RHEME Prepayments, deposits and other
WskiE receivables 384,631 102,104
TEBFE R Term deposits 23 272,290 -
ReRBEEFED Cash and cash equivalents 24 151,852 1,176,033
MEVEEME Total current assets 808,773 1,278,137
EELE Total assets 1,573,812 1,543,176
E= Equity
[N Share capital 25 8 8
& imE Share premium 1,588,268 1,496,389
PR B &I A HAL Shares held for employee share scheme
% 27 (79,038) -
HEmEFE Other reserves 538 538
REBEMN/ (25HEE)  Retained earnings/(accumulated losses) 29,940 (11,171)
EREE Total equity 1,539,716 1,485,764
=L Liabilities
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
IEMBBERRE Total non-current liabilities = -
REBAEE Current liabilities
B 5 R HE M ER FRIA Trade and other payables 34,096 57,412
REE REEE Total current liabilities 34,096 57,412
EEHAHE Total liabilities 34,096 57,412
EEREEET Total equity and liabilities 1,573,812 1,543,176
RATIHEEBEREN20234E3 8 The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board
30REEFEHAETHUTALTRE of Directors on March 30, 2023 and signed on its behalf:
BE
WITES - RELAE HITES - RIBAAE

Executive Director: Mr. Zhang Yu Executive Director: Mr. Zhang Hui
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36 AT EEBEERREE 36 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

(a) Equity movement of the Company

AESRS RERH/
Bx  ROEE AABEORG EeEE  (RREB) g
Shares
held for Retained
employee earnings/
Share Share share Other (accumulated
capital  premium scheme reserves losses) Total

ARBIR ARMTR ARRTR ARMTR  ARMTn ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

B2021E1 B1BRER Balance at January 1, 2021 - - - - - -
ERFIHE Profit for the year - - - - 58,629 58,629
SEhEEE Currency translation differences - - - 545 - 545
2ENEEE Total comprehensive income - - - 545 58,629 59,174
BERBAANRS Transaction with equity holders
Ri7lkiy Issue of shares 7 - - 1) _ .
R2REENETTAR Issuance of ordinary shares

upon global offering T 1,217,986 - - - 1,217,987
DOEE Share issuance costs - (66,267) - - - (66,267)
[AZY Investment Capital Ltd  Issue of shares to ZY

£SO Investment Capital Ltd - 88,689 - - - 88,689

ERPREMGIEESHE  Deemed capital contribution from

shareholders in Reorganization - 255,981 - - - 255,981
REATR Dividend distribution 15(a) - - - - (69,800) (69,800)
W2021512831AM%E8  Balance at December 31, 2021 8 1,496,389 - 538 (11171) 1,485,764
R2022F1A1BHES Balance at January 1, 2022 8 1,496,389 - 538 (11,171) 1,485,764
ERHE Profit for the year - - - - 81,169 81,169
2ENRLEE Total comprehensive income - - - - 81,169 81,169
REEREANRS Transaction with equity holders
Rtk ERRER Issuance of ordinary shares upon

EIE Tl the over-allotment 25(a) -t 91,879 - - - 91,879

REDK Dividend distribution 15(a) - - - - (40,058) (40,058)
BEEERMHENERD  Acquisition of shares under

employee share scheme 2 - - (79,038) - - (79,038)
#2025 12831 RS Balance at December 31, 2022 8 1,588,268 (79,038) 538 29,940 1,539,716

* Ll eRER A AREE,0007T © * The balance stated above was less than RMB1,000.
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DEFINITIONS

[BRRBAFAE]
“AGM"

[ESERMA ]
“Articles of Association”

[EREEE

“Audit Committee”
[FAZE ]

“Beijing Xunyi”

[Exg]

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

[KBELHS ]
“BVI"

[HEFESARE]
“Cayman Islands Companies

Act”

[{EER<FA]
"“CG Code”

[EER]

“Chairman”

MR FE
“China” or the “PRC”

[AAF ]

“Company” or “Our Company”

[EH%HE]

“Contractual Arrangements”

1§52023F6 A 16 HRITHAARINKRREAFAE

annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 16 June 2023

RATMABERMR (ETEHEET)
the articles of association of the Company (as amended from time to time)

ExgeuTERZERS

the audit committee of the Board

TRABRERERAF - —RN2016F 11 16 BIRBFEEAERINBEREER
A REANZHREMOTAR

Beijing Xunyi Technology Development Company Limited (tFABRIEFZERAR A
al), a limited liability company established under the laws of the PRC on November 16,
2016, our subsidiary by virtue of the Contractual Arrangements

AAREEE

the board of Directors of the Company

KBRS
the British Virgin Islands

FEREENCATNE) (BETM) (EARIEET » Mz sk AE 7 X&)
the Companies Act (As Revised) of the Cayman Islands as amended, supplemented or
otherwise modified from time to time

LR RIS+ AR R (R EEIRT A

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

EECER
the Chairman of the Board

B ARKNE - RAREMEFLEES - FERPIRIITRERA R

the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose of this report, Hong Kong,
the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan
ERABEEEBRAR  —KN2020F9A 17 ARERASHSEZEFMA LM ERE R
NS

Yonghe Medical Group Co., Ltd. (EAREHFEEEBRAF), a limited liability company
incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands on September 17, 2020

BH(EFeE tRElR F2RE AR RAENRERBII VN —RIEHOLH
(RIERAME)  BEFBEHARBRERZ LY —6

the series of contractual arrangements, as the case may be, entered into by,
among others, Beijing Haiyouyou, the Registered Shareholders, Beijing Xunyi and
the VIE Entities, details of which are described in the section headed “Contractual
Arrangements” in the Prospectus



[ 3B |
“COVID-19"

[E=]

“Director(s)”

(75 ]

"Group"

[t
“HK dollar(s)” or “HK$"

(&4
"Hong Kong”

[
“Listing”

(LA
“Listing Date”

[ EmRAl

“Listing Rules”

[EMHR]

“Main Board”

[T Al
“Model Code”

[REZEEE

“Nomination Committee”

[ARER ]

“Prospectus”

[ERRR

"Registered Shareholders”

[FMESE

“Remuneration Committee”
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DEFINITIONS

201958 K imH R
Coronavirus disease of 2019

KRAES
the director(s) of the Company

RARRHEFAF
the Company and its subsidiaries

B BREEETEY

Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency of Hong Kong

REEESITTHE
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

B9 P 2021612 A13BEBZIER EH
the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on December 13,
2021

20215127138 REMHEZR LT AR
December 13, 2021, being the date on which the Shares were listed on the Main Board

B2 PR E R A (A RHEET S 5T)
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as amended or
supplemented from time to time

B 22 P AR
Main Board of the Stock Exchange

FHARBIMSE A E A EMEITAEFETESFRHNFETAD
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

ExgETREERS

the nomination committee of the Board

RAFFTIEBHA2021412 A1 ABKRER
the prospectus issued by the Company dated December 1, 2021

AR BREARR - HRlIRRELEERKEEENRPREL S
two individual shareholders of Beijing Xunyi, namely Mr. Zhang Yu and Mr. ZHANG
Hui, Mr. Zhang Yu's younger brother

ExgBTFNEES
the remuneration committee of the Board
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DEFINITIONS

[AR®]

“Renminbi” or “RMB"”

(&
“Reporting Period”

[
“Shareholder(s)”

gl
“Share(s)”
[ A

"Stock Exchange”

[XH ]

"U.S.”, “US”, or "United States”

=

“U.S. dollar(s)” or “US$”

[VIE]
"VIE"

[A#RHEE ]

“VIE Entities”

RAFEREN  BXEZHHMEIN - [
BAL THEBSEE] - TREEAL]
RIRTFRREAZAEB LHRRME T

AT

[ 5 R% i% “connected person”,

AR HEDEEEY

Renminbi Yuan, the lawful currency of the PRC

2022F1 A1 R ZE20224F12 431 B+ & A #ifH
the twelve-month period from January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022

BE A
holder(s) of Share(s)

A2 RIIRA A GAREE0.0000025 % TT ) E AR
ordinary share(s) with nominal value of US$0.0000025 each in the share capital of the
Company

BERMARSHAARRAA
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

EFRERE
the United States of America

ET o ENBRERBEETEEE
United States doIIar(s), the lawful currency of the United States of America

A FIREE
variable interest entity

BB BaNLHRE TR LRENER  RERERAIITHEE -
ERRERERANBRME (BEERIRIN) LK ZER

the entities that we control certain percentage of their shareholding through the
Contractual Arrangements which comprised, as at the Latest Practicable Date, Yonghe
Investment, Medical Institutions (other than Chengdu Yonghe) wholly-owned by
Yonghe Investment and Chengdu Yonghe

BREAKRE

In this annual report, the terms “associate”, “associated corporation”,
“controlling shareholder” and “subsidiary” shall
have the meanings given to such terms in the Listing Rules, unless the
context otherwise requires.
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